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A. Directors’ Statements
(pursuant to article 4(2) of Law 3556/2007)

The members of the Board of Directors of the Comgpaading as ELLAKTOR SA (hereinafter the Company),
with registered offices at 25 Ermou str., Kifisstdtica:

1. Anastasios Kallitsantsis, son of Parisis, Chairmitihe Board of Directors

2. Leonidas Bobolas, son of Georgios, CEO

3. Georgios Sossidis, son of Theodoros, BoD membpeadecision of the Company’s Board of Directors
acting in our above capacity, hereby state andicorhat, to the best of our knowledge:
(a) the annual financial statements of the Compamy the Group for the period 01.01-31.12.2012, lwviniave
been prepared in accordance with the applicabéenational accounting standards, fairly repredemtassets and
liabilities, the equity and the statement of incoamed operating results of the Company as well ashef

companies included in the consolidation as a whmlesuant to the provisions of article 4 of Law 868007, and

(b) the annual report of the Company’s Board oebliors fairly represents the information requiredar article
4(2) of Law 2007.

Kifissia, 28 March 2013

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD THE MANAGING DIRECTOR  MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF

OF DIRECTORS DIRECTORS
ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS GEBRGIOS TH. SOSSIDIS
ID Card No.Z 434814 ID Card Nax 237945 ID Card No. T 504522
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B. Annual Report of the Board of Directors

B.1. Annual Report of the Board of Directors of ELLAKTOR SA
On the consolidated and separate financial statesmen
For the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

This report of the Board of Directors pertainstie twelve-month period from 01.01-31.12.2012 fer fimancial
year then ended, and provides summary financialmétion about the annual financial statementsrasdlts of
ELLAKTOR SA and the ELLAKTOR Group Companies. Thert outlines the most important events which
took place during 2012, and the effect that suchness had on the financial statements, the mairs résid
certainties the Group is faced with, while it aksets out qualitative information and estimates aljoture
activities. Finally, the report includes importardnsactions entered into between the Company andpGand
related parties, and a Corporate Governance Statgp@rsuant to Law 3873/2010).

The companies included in the consolidation, exé@pparent company ELLAKTOR S.A., are those meamtit
in note 9 of the attached financial statements.

This Report was prepared pursuant to article 4avf B556/2007 and accompanies the financial statenienthe
financial year 01.01-31.12.2012.

|. Overview of financial results for 2012

Due to the ongoing financial crisis, the drastidugtion of major new projects in Greece and theyein the
promotion of road concession projects which havenbput to hold, the Group's results for 2012 aré no
significantly different from those of 2011.

Overall, the Group’s consolidated income for 201@od at €1,232.8 million, up by 2.4% in relation ttee
consolidated income for the previous year. Opegat@sults were down by 24% standing at €114.6 aonilli
compared to €150.8 million in 2011. Profit margioal at 9.3% compared to 12.5% last year. Withettezption
of wind farms, all other segments posted a decre&gerofits at operating level, as a result of thragoing
recession. Profit before tax was €57.9 million canegl to €90.0 million in 2011, and profit after tsbood at
€32.3 million compared to €72.9 million in 2011.

At balance sheet level, the Group’s cash as 0fZ3201L2 amounted to €706,8 million compared to €3déillion
on 31.12.2011, and equity amounted to €1,255.2anitompared to €1,315.0 million in 2011.

Total borrowings at consolidated level stood a#78&,5 million on 31.12.2012 compared to €1,891.8ianion
31.12.2011. Out of total borrowings, the amoun€552.8 million corresponds to short-term and th@wamh of
€1,203.6 million to long-term borrowings. Total bmwings include amounts from parent company noouese
debt under co-financed projects, amounting to €B%98illion. The Group’s gearing ratio as of 31.12.20vas
calculated at 29%. This ratio is calculated asoihetient of net corporate debt to total employepiteh (i.e. total
equity plus net debt).

The Group’s net debt as of 31.12.2012 and 31.12.,2@Epectively, is detailed in the following table
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All amounts in EUR million. CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Short term bank borrowings 552.8 478.0
Long-term bank borrowings 1,203.6 1,413.6
Total borrowings 1,756.5 1,891.6
Less: Non recourse debt 999.1 1,023.3
Subtotal of Corporate Debt (except non recoursésjieb 757.4 868.3
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts 244.1 272.4
Net Corporate Debt/Cash 513.2 596.0
Total Group Equity 1,255.2 1,315.0
Total Capital 1,768.4 1,911.0
Gearing Ratio 0.290 0.312

Note:

(1) Committed deposits (€81.8 million), Time dep®siver 3 months (€101.1 million) and bonds helchadurity (€158.7 million) have been

added to total Cash and cash equivalents for 202@6(8 million), and cash and cash equivalents,naitted deposits, time deposits over 3
months and bonds held to maturity which corresptingion recourse debt (€804.3 million in total) hdeen deducted. Respectively,
Committed deposits (€47.9 million) and bonds helaniaturity (182.6 million) have been added to to&sh and cash equivalents for 2011
(€806.2 million), and the cash and cash equivalemtsmitted deposits and bonds held to maturityesponding to non recourse debt (total:
€764.3 million) have been deducted.

I 1. Evolution of activities per segment
1. CONSTRUCTION
1.1. Important events

Despite the adverse financial conditions, turndeerthe Construction segment stood at €890.2 mijliop by
7.2% compared to 2011, with operating results andfitpbefor tax at €22.8 million and €12.6 million
respectively. As a result of the consequences foperating in conditions of recession, projectslided and,
combined with increased financial costs (interesl guarantee letter commissions), profits befoxegsawere
compressed.

AKTOR and its subsidiaries undertook new contract2012 in Greece and abroad, of €641 million italto
(proportionate total contractual amount), while reamtracts of €785 million are expected to be gigne

In 2012 AKTOR strengthened its presence abroadnisyréing new contracts in the countries where itrates.
These include the following:

1. In Serbia, AKTOR, which participates with 50% ifjoint venture, signed two contracts in the context
construction of the motorway E80 (Corridor X):
a. LOT 1: Prosec — Bancarevo section, ~ €36 million
b. LOT 2: Bancarevo — Crvena Reka section, ~ €40 onilli
Also, AKTOR was the lowest bidder and was awardeyjlept LOT 2: Stanicenje — Pirot East section, ~

€71 million, for which the relevant contract is exfed to be signed.

2. In Albania, AKTOR, which participates with 49% inj@int venture, undertook the construction of two
sections of the Tirana-Elbasan motorway, budgeted- &JSD$169 million, while it is currently
constructing the bridge connecting those two sastia project of ~ €60 million.
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In Turkey, AKTOR, holding a leader share of 51%aidoint Venture with a Turkish company, entered
into a contract for the construction of the proje®VASTE TREATMENT PLANT OF THE
METROPOLITAN MUNICIPALITY OF SMYRNA (TURKEY) — SLUBDGE DIGESTION AND
DRYING PLANT". The contractual amount stands at @b@25 million.

In Romania, AKTOR, holding a 51% leader share idaint Venture with a Romanian company,
undertook the construction of the Micasasa-Coslsgiction of the Brasov-Simeria Railroad Line. The
contractual amount stands at €163 million. Theguis financed by 85% by the EU Cohesion Fund and
by 15% by the Romanian Government.

In Bulgaria, AKTOR entered into a contract with thenistry of Public Works of Bulgaria for the
construction of the LOT-4, Sandanski — Kulata secf the STRUMA motorway. The budget of the
project amounts approximately to 56 million Leva €28 million). The project is financed by the
European Union, under the “Transport” programme.

In Bosnia, AKTOR signed a contract for project “i@gsand construction of the waste management
plant in the Municipality of Mostar - phase 1", ef €10 million. The project is co-financed by the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Developtr{éBRD).

In Skopje, AKTOR signed a contract of ~ €210 millitor the construction of section Demir Kapija —
Smokvica on the Pan-European Corridor X.

Three new contracts were undertaken in Qatar, foE374 million in total, which relate to the
implementation of electrical-mechanical works om&aa island (€13 million), the construction of an
indoor sports centre (€109 million), and the depaient of Quatar's homeland security service faedit
(€252 million). Further, in 2012 tenders were défeolsfor new projects budgeted at ~ €260 million,
which were proclaimed in the Gulf countries.

The largest projects undertaken by AKTOR in Graachkide:

1.

Costruction of the transverse axis on the Sialsiastallopigi section of Egnatia Road, in a joimnture,
in which AKTOR participates with 33.3%

Arrangement of Eschatia river, section 1, budgetegb9 million, in a joint, in which it participagevith
50%

Construction of the remaining section on PATHE mety, from the Agia Marina junction to the
Raches junction, budgeted at €36 million, in atjgenture, in which the company participates widb

Construction of Phase A - Section 3 of the new daport, of €40 million, in a joint, in which the
company participates with 30%

Another important event for the construction segiveas the completion of merger by absorption ofs@libries
BIOSAR ENERGY SA and D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA by AIOR, in order to ensure economies of
scale. Further, on 24.08.2012 BIOSAR ENERGY tramsfl the company ILIAKI ADERES SA to Yangtze
Solar Power (Luxemburg) International Itd. The s&fen price stood at €1,8 million. ILIAKI ADERES SA
operates a 2MW photovoltaic farm (location SAMBALESgolida) and holds 2 photovoltaic farm genenatio
licences of 2MW andMIW, respectively.
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1.2. Outlook

AKTOR's priority in shaping the outlook is the rat®n of its highly experienced and qualified hurmasources,
so that the company can take advantage of the tppies which should emerge once the Greek ecorstanys

to rebound. Until then, the projects to be impletednby AKTOR amount to €3.1 bn, while contracts of
approximately €785 million are expected to be sigraue to the circumstances, AKTOR has focusedrojegts
executed in the Balkans and the Middle East, bytalegging on its long experience and the availad@ipment
worth 360 million in replacement value. As a resniitthis strategy, 52% of unexecuted projects, +.e€1.6
billion, correspond to projects abroad.

In addition, after absorbing BIOSAR, AKTOR has begrerating in the construction of photovoltaic farand
has constructed 400MW so far, while 80MW are exgubtd be constructed in Greaaa 70MW in Romania in
2013. Further, an important partnership has beerated in the USA with LIBRA GROUP through
GREENWOOD BIOSAR LTD for the construction of PVrifias in the USA. As the company’s international
prospects are very good, the company has now tumélde Middle East, the USA and Latin America fbe
development of a future market.

1.3. Risks and uncertainties

Due to the size of AKTOR, the limited tender proaed activity and limited to hardly existent private
investments, combined with the prolonged suspersidarge road concession projects, the constrnge@gment
is faced with a particularly challenging and unagrtbusiness environment in Greece.

2. CONCESSIONS
2.1. Important events

The decline of traffic, which started in spring RO4fter the rise in fuel prices and the austerigasures which
compressed disposable income, the ongoing recesdidhe Greek economy and the resulting reductibn o
commercial and professional trips, continued ircalicession road projects.

Revenue from the concessions segment in 2012 stio232.9 milion, down by approximately 13.4% conegla
to the previous year. This decrease is mainly dube decline of Attica Tollway revenue. Operatirgults stood
at €70.7 million compared to €82.4 million last geahile net profit after tax stood at €37.5 milicompared to
€40.9 million last year.

2.2. Outlook

As regards the three large road construction pt®jat which the Group participates — which are fe t
construction phase, i.e. (a) the Corinth-Tripoliglkmata motorway with a 71,67% Group participatif),the
Aegean motorway (Maliakos-Klidi section of the PAEHMotorway) with a 20% participation, and (c) the
Elefsina-Corinth-Patras-Pyrgos-Tsakona motorwayh &i 17% participation — the construction worksatty
completed (data of 31.12.2012) represent 83,65%9988 and 28,9% of the total construction works,
respectively.

The construction period of project (a) has beertragtually extended (with the fault of the Statg)l4.5 months
to 16 November 2013, while the determination ofHar extension to the construction period by thiependent
engineer to 2014 is currently at the stage of te&mi, and construction is anticipated to take @laithin the new
construction schedule. Over the last months, fimgnof the project was temporarily suspended dueh&o
continued decline in traffic and the concerns esped by the banks in relation to the project’s eouin viability.

Nevertheness, construction activity continues: th&n Corinth-Kalamata axis has been delivered, \tlith
exception of the last kilometres before Kalamatheme expropriations were delayed. The concessigntie
banks and the State are currently at an advanagd sf negotiations to resume financing.
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As regards projects (b) and (c), works have eitieem suspended or executed at extremely low paeetodtheir
irregular financing under the business plan. Theyotiations between the State, the Banks and the
Concessionaires, as well as with the European Ufuiothe admittedly absolutely necessary restringuof the
projects and the restoration of financial stabilithich existed prior to the signing of the concesstontracts
have progressed significantly and are now reactiieg final stage. The aim is to resume all prgjesithin the
next few months.

As a result of the adverse financial conditiongiinationally and particularly in Greece, banks ewerently
averse to financing new large projects, therefar@ew projects are promoted. Some activity is sed¢he waste
management segment, where arrangements are gsadudir way for the proclamation of the relevamideer
procedures within the legal framework of Publicvite Partnerships. The tender procedures in wihietGroup
participates via AKTOR CONCESSIONS, HELECTOR andTABR are described in the Environment segment.

In terms of activities abroad, the Group is tryitagundertake concession projects in countries ifchvit is
already active, such as Middle East countries Biakans and Russia. In particular, with AKTOR agtis the
construction company and HELECTOR as the technoprgyider and manager, the Group intends to ppetei
in waste management treatment projects.

2.3. Risks and uncertainties

With regard to operating projects, there is a dskurther reduction in traffic and thus in revenas a result of
the poor economic conditions. Moreover, as refetee@bove, lending banks are unwilling to keep [tiong
funds for the projects in view of the new condisgurevailing now and this may lead to cuts in thgct matter
of projects, rescheduling thereof or even termaratf the relevant contracts. It is, therefore, éngtive to reach
an agreement with the banks so as to smoothlyrasmtivith the financing of the projects and crehéertecessary
momentum for the proclamation of new projects.

3. ENVIRONMENT
3.1. Important events

The turnover for the Environment segment in 2012@amed to to €71.0 million, down by approximateBt 3
compared to 2011, while operating results amoutdegil5.7 million, down by 24%. The decrease in ipabflity
is due to reduced construction activity in relattor2011, losses incurred in relation to projent&ermany, the
special levy on RES sales and accounting lossagraat from the transfer of property and the dispaga
participations. The operating margin stood at 22cti¥ipared to 28.2% last year, while net profit raftex stood
at €10.2 million compared to €15.2 million in 2011.

A significant event for the Environment segmen2@12 was the fact that the Group proceeded todfeisition

of an additional 14.44% in subsidiary HELECTOR SAda50% in HERHOF Gmbh and HERHOF
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT mbH, and now controls 10086 both German companies. At the same
time, the Group disposed its entire participatid®%) in EPANA SA.

Developments were also seen in relation to PPPewaahagement projects in Greece, as the promotitamder
procedures for the construction of eleven wasteagament plants in Western Macedonia, Peloponnesm sy
llia, Serres and Etoloakarnania, Attica (4) and #ah(according to the trail of subsumption 3389B06f total
amount €1.2 billions (in terms of discounted aVzllty fees) is a key priority of the Ministry fdbevelopment
and Infrastructures. For the first six projectstigg 2012 either preselection procedures or proesdaf binding
offer took place. In the first quarter of 2013 th'ephase (call for expressions of interest) for tweresponding
projects in Attica (4) and Achaia is expected:

1. The joint venture, which comprises group compari#s ECTOR and AKTOR CONCESSIONS,
deposited a binding offer on 28 December 2012,rdigg the PPP restricted procedure for the design,
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construction, funding and operation of a waste rganmeent plant in W.Macedonia, with the annual
capacity of 120 000 tons.

Group companies HELECTOR and AKTOR CONCESSIONSigipgted as a joint venture in the first
phase (pre-selection) of the PPP project tendecepghare for the waste management project in the
Peloponnese, which includes the design, constmcfionding and operation of waste management
plant(s) with the indicative annual capacity of 20D tons of waste. Finally, the tender procedtagex

in the end of July, and is expected to be compidétan the 1st half of 2013.

Group companies HELECTOR and AKTOR CONCESSIONSigipdted as a joint venture in the first
phase (pre-selection) of the tender procedurenPPP project “WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANT IN
ILIA. UNDER PPP”, with the annual capacity of 1000@ons. On 8/8/12 our Joint Venture was
announced the decision of pre-selection and qaatifin in phase B, while phase B1 started on 9/1/13

Group companies HELECTOR and AKTOR CONCESSIONSigipgted as a joint venture in the first
phase (pre-selection) of the PPP tender procedura Waste management project in the Municipalfty o
Ilia, with the annual capacity of 100 000 tons. @#/12 our Joint Venture was announced the decision
of pre-selection and qualification in phase B, wlghase B1 started on 25/7/12.

Group companies HELECTOR and AKTOR CONCESSIONSigipdted as a joint venture in the first
phase (pre-selection) of the PPP tender procedura fvaste management project in the Municipalfty o
Etoloakarnania, with the indicative annual capaoityi10 000 tons. On 5/9/12 our Joint Venture was
announced the decision of pre-selection and qaatitin in phase B, while phase B1 started on 33/1/1

HELECTOR, in joint venture with construction compa@HRISTOFOROS D. KONSTANTINIDIS
SA, was awarded the project Design, build and dpesalandfill gas recovery and power generation
system in the existing Ghabawi landfill, Amman, daor, whose budget exceeds €19 million. The
relevant contract was signed on 23 January 2012.

HELECTOR, in joint venture with GOKSIN Insaat Gi@idektrik Turizm Bilisim vw Tuketim Mallari
Pazarlama San. Ve Tic. Ltd. Sti was awarded thgeptroConstruction of Balikesir Solid Waste
Management Project Contract 2008TR16IPR001-02/WKS/The contractual value stands at
€10,303,700, and HELECTOR's share amounts to 25k above contract was signed in October 2012.

Also, HELECTOR, in joint venture with AKTOR, subrigtl a tender for a project in Sofia, whose
budget exceeds €75 million. The project pertainedhe design and construction of a mechanical-
biological processing plant for the production e€sndary fuel of a capacity of 410,000 tons.

HELECTOR submitted a tender, in joint venture wiltle Slovenian company RIKO d.o.0, in Slovenia,
in relation to the project “Regional center for teagnanagement of Dolenjska Region — Phase II”
(design, construction and trial operation).  Thejgct is co-financed by the European Union and
includes, among others, the construction of a bickl treatment plant with the annual capacity of
41,000 tons, of which 3,500 tons will be pre-saddbiodegradable waste. The indicative budgetter t
project exceeds €30 million.

A call for tenders was proclaimed in Cyprus to altre restoration of an uncontrolled landfill ireth
Province of Pafos, amounting to €8 million, and HEEITOR Cyprus has submitted a tender. A tender
has also been submitted for the project pertaitinthe restoration of an uncontrolled landfill imet
provinces of Larnaca and Famagusta, budgeted am@Rén.
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3.2. Outlook

The prospects for the sector are positive. HELECT@R already entered into long-term contracts émgwa
fixed turnover (of approximately €60 million p.agand in addition to that, the non-executed partitsf
construction projects exceeds €60 million.

The need to deal with the waste management probfeenglobal basis becomes even more imperativeatie
impending imposition of onerous fines by the Euspé&nion for keeping illegal landfills. Consequgniinajor
waste management projects are expected to be areubum Greece, which are already delayed mainly tdue
administrative and legal barriers.

In addition to Greece where, as already mentionsate than 12 projects are currently at the stageemder
procedure, whose budget exceeds €2.1 bn in termisadunted availability fees and relate to the ag@ment of
approximately 2 million tons of waste annually, HELTOR now targets several foreign countries. Thapgamy
also focuses on the Balkan countries and partigular Croatia (where the Company is already execut?
contracts), Slovenia and Bulgaria, while it als@i@ges in the markets of Jordan and Turkey. In @aymefforts
are also made to expand the operations of subisisits EU Member States or accession countrieshvhave
secured funds for the implementation of waste meamegt projects.

3.3. Risks and uncertainties

The current economic difficulties have made it hrdsecure the funds required for co-financed tsjén the
energy sector and has increased their borrowings.co8nother major risk for the sector can be idieat in
reactions of local communities and petitions fileidh the Council of State in relation to landfillsd waste
treatment plants, as well as in the time-consunpnacedures for the issue of permits and the approva
environmental conditions.

4, WIND FARMS

4.1. Important events

The wind farm segment posted a turnover of €31.8omiin 2012 compared to €24.7 million in 2011, bp
28.5%. Operating results stood at €13.2 million pared to €11.2 million in 2011, up by approximat&®/5%,
while net profit after tax stood at €3.8 millionmpared to €3.5 million in 2011, mainly due to thastcof
financing and the special levy on RES projects.

As of 31.12.2012, the total installed capacity &fTECH ANEMOS and its subsidiaries was 149 MW and
represents 11 wind farms and 1 photovoltaic falm.January 2013, a 5SMW hydro plant was commissianed
Grevena, and one 16.1MW wind farm is expected tocbmmissioned by June. At the same time, the
development of two other wind farms of approximat@d MW continues, while projects of 865MW in totak
currently at different stages of the licensing paure (installation permit, environmental approggneration
license, approvals by the Regulatory Authority Eorergy), and projects of a total capacity of 1 M\® are now

at the stage of submission of applications for gatien licenses.

The resumption of the licensing procedure for aimeawind farm of 162 MW in Corfu was an important
development: In 2008 ELTECH ANEMOS had filed a resfuwith RAE for obtaining an electricity produgtio
license. Following adoption of Law 3851/2010, ticensing procedure was interrupted, as the intedegarties
would have to take part in a public tender for #jareas specified by competent authorities fer installation
of marine wind farms. Law 4030/2011 stipulatest thaplications filed with RAE for the issue of digcity
generation licences before adoption of Law 3851020dll continue being considered. In the context
consideration of applications, RAE requested uptlateormation in February 2012, which ELTECH ANEMOS
procured in time.
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4.2. Outlook

Despite the recent special levy imposed, pursuahftv 4093/2012, on the turnover of companies djpgran
the production of electricity using RES (relateghe period 1/7/2012-30/6/2014), the outlook fog tharket of
renewable energy sources in Greece remains posiBased on the country’s obligations and pursuarthe
relevant plan of the Ministry for Environment, Eger& Climate Change, it is expected that the ihstapower
for production of electricity using renewable sascwill be significantly increased from ~3,638 MW o
31.12.2012 to ~10.000 MW in 2020. In this contéixis estimated that ELTECH ANEMOS SA will continte
grow at the rates that the reduced liquidity predidby the banking system permits.

4.3. Risks and uncertainties

The ongoing economic crisis and its direct andraxtiimpacts might bring about changes to the firdrmodel
used for the development of wind farms, e.g.:

e Delays in the collection of invoiced receivables;

e Delays in the collection of subsidies already atitteal;

e Limited availability of subsidies, in the contextthe new Development Law, which is though comptatsa
by the ability to sign generated power invoices,pasvided for by law, and the ability to be granteact
exemptions instead of subsidies;

¢ Increase of borrowing rates and making loans orernaerous terms in general.

Despite the progress made during the recent yaatsfollowing recent legislative arrangements, #gstor is
still facing challenges due to the complicated &undeaucratic procedures that exist for the acquerenof a
permit and to the appeals submitted to the Greeln€ib of State, resulting in the prevention of sfgant
projects from being implemented or in their sigrafit delay.

5. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
5.1. Important events
The Group’s real estate development segment pasteche of €5.9 million in 2012 and recorded losses.

Currently, the main activity of REDS is the opewatiof “Smart Park” on the property of subsidiarylAYOU
EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA”, in Yialou, Spata-Atticaand the development of phase B. 90% of the surface
has been leased (in phase A) by renown retail coiepaAfter the T year of operation of “Smart Park”, the
income of employees is either stable or increasasy,opposed to the decline in retail activitiest@dsby
organised establishments (where the decline ramgfegeen 10-20%) and traditional markets (down byQ%).

During 2012 the Group proceeded to the impairmém2034 million for properties of the subsidiarifROFIT
PROFIT CONSTRUCT Srland SC CLH ESTATE SRL, in Roa.

The necessary archaeological excavations were ebeapbn the Kantza property. Following the decisibthe
Central Archaeological Board on the evaluationhaf finds, which is not expected to bring any chanigethe
design, the arrangements for the issue of the falanning design will be made (presidential decespiired).

Finally, remedy has been sought to improve the g¢esfrtown planning in relation to the higher coaént of the

property in area Splaiul Unirii, Bucharest, androg for compensation have been raised for the dadaypart of
the Municipality of Bucharest suffered so far.
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5.2. Outlook

Given the circumstances, the Group has focuseakttgities on promoting the existing properties.tiis point
focus has been placed on obtaining the necessansks

5.3. Risks and uncertainties

As a result of reduced demand, there is a highthiakdelays will be seen in the development ofGineup’s real
estate in Greece and Romania. As regards the pydpeYialou, the risks appear reduced as the pitypgperates
and approximately 90% of its surface has been tkagighout excluding the possibility that the origl goals for
2013 and 2014 will not be achieved fully as a resfitenegotiations with lessees.

6. OTHER
Thermoelectric plants

As regards thermoelectric plants, the Group padigs in ELPEDISON POWER through its subsidiaryldihit
Energy & Development SA (HE&D), which holds 22,74%its share capital, while 75,78% is shared by the
groups of HELLENIC PETROLEUM and EDISON, Italy. EEBISON POWER has got all that experience,
knowledge and economic status that will enabl® iplay an important role in the sector, as thel toistalled
power of its plants that are already in commeroijpération amounts to 811 MW. As it has implemerded
significant investment plan amounting to €525 milliso far, the Company is operating two privatekned
state-of-the-art combined cycle natural gas plamihessaloniki (390 MW) and in Thisvi, Viotia (421W).

The oversufficiency of power due to reduced condionpthe commissioning of new power generatiomgda
and the rapid penetration of photovoltaic plantsatged from the performance of the plants andsequently,
affected the company’s operating results in 201Rickv were reduced compared to those for 2011. Ba22
ELPEDISON POWER posted a turnover of €407.1 milkmmpared to €397.7 million last year, while opieigt
results stood at €28.4 million compared to €32.Higniin 2011. In the short term, i.e. over the h&xo 2 years,
the projected operating results are relatively Istalvhile substantial changes and improvementsapected if
all RAE’s proposals are implemented in relationhte reorganisation of the domestic electricity neariaimed at
strengthening competition and balancing the benefithe historic monopoly.

The objective of ELPEDISON POWER is to retain i®o8g position on the market by expanding its udicf
and actively participate in all developments in pgwver generation industry in Greece. The risk daaee the
usual risks involved in commercial activities, mgidue to the dominant position of the major coritpet

Casino
REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA recorded a declinefigures, with the turnover amounting to
€99,5 million in 2012, compared to €122,4 million2011. Operating profit stood at €4.7 million cargd to

€10.2 million last year. Profit before tax was reeld to €4.6 million compared to €9.6 million in theevious
year, while net profit stood at €3.5 million comparto €7.8 million last year.
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I TI. Significant transactions between related parties

The most significant transactions of the Companth wélated parties within the meaning of IAS 24yanel the
Company’s transactions with the following compar(@ssociated companies within the meaning of Agtit2(e)
of Codified Law 2190/1920) and are presented inféllewing table:

Amounts for year ended 2012

Sales of Income from  Purchases of
goods and  participating goods and Receivable
(in thousand EUR) services interests services S Liabilities
Subsidiaries
AKTOR SA 2,413 - 188 4,827 212
ELTECH ANEMOS SA 162 - 15 242 515
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA 259 - 684 - 24,589
REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA 190 - - 138 -
AKTOR FM SA 33 - 389 38 251
ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI
SA 21 - - 352 -
HELECTOR SA 199 - - 234 -
MOREAS SA 180 - - 31 -
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA 63 - - 108 -
TOMI SA 7 - - 78 -
HERHOF RECYCLING CENTER
OSNABRUCK - - - 95 -
OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 28 18 5 75 1
Associates
OTHER ASSOCIATES - - - 1 -
Other related parties
REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA - - - 12 -
HELLAS GOLD SA 44 - - - -
OTHER RELATED PARTIES - - - 114 -
TOTAL SUBSIDIARIES 3,626 18 1,280 6,219 25,567
TOTAL ASSOCIATES & OTHERS 44 - - 128 -
Amounts of previous year 2011
Purchases
Sales of Income from of goods
goods and  participating and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services  Receivables Liabilities
Subsidiaries
AKTOR SA 2,415 - 446 7,852 589
ELTECH ANEMOS SA 252 - - 176 -
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA 300 - - 34 -
REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA 247 - - 42 -
AKTOR FM SA 20 - 343 6 69
PANTECHNIKI SA 2 - - 813 -
ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA 23 - - 428 -
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Purchases
Sales of Income from of goods
goods and  participating and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services  Receivables  Liabilities
HELECTOR SA 205 617
MOREAS SA 178 20
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA 72 41
TOMI SA 85 140
HERHOF RECYCLING CENTER OSNABRUCK - - - 95 -
EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIA SA 16 13
ALPHA EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIA SA 9 - - 7 -
EFA SA - - - 161 -
BIOSAR SA 163 213
OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 3 41 10 55 1
Associates
OTHER ASSOCIATES - - - 1
Other related parties
REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA 302 15
HELLAS GOLD SA 104 12
OTHER RELATED PARTIES - - - 76 -
TOTAL SUBSIDIARIES 3,988 41 798 10,711 659
TOTAL ASSOCIATES & OTHERS 405 105

With regard to the above transactions in 2012fdahewing points are clarified:

Income from sales of goods and services pertairislyn@ the invoicing of expenses and real estatsé fees to
subsidiaries and associates of ELLAKTOR S.A., witile purchase of goods and services pertains mé&nly
contracts entered into by and between the parenpany and its subsidiaries.

The Company'’s liabilities pertain mainly to contizad obligations for the maintenance of its buitglifacilities
and the invoicing of expenses and contracts by ommpanies.

The Company’s include mainly receivables from thevision of services for administrative and teclahsupport
toward the Group’s companies, leasing of officenises and the granting of loans to related paréissyell as
receivables from dividends receivable.

Income from holdings pertains to dividends fromsdiaries and associates.

The fees paid to Group managers and directorshéoperiod 01.01-31.12.2012 amounted to €7.236 drwlifor
the Group, and €718 thousand for the Company.

No loans have been granted to BoD members or ettezrutives of the Group (including their families).

No changes have been made to transactions betwee@dmpany and related parties, which could have an
essential impact on the financial position andgbdormance of the Company for the period 01.01222012.

All transactions mentioned above have been conduatder the standard terms of the market.
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I1V. Post 31.12.2012 events

1. The crisis in Cyprus has no material effect onG@neup:

e As of 15/3/2013, ELLAKTOR Group held non-guarantdeder €100,000) deposits in Cyprus, via its
subsidiaries and joint ventures, of €575 thousaitd @yprus Popular Bank (“CPB”) in Cyprus, and of
€1,900 thousand with the Bank of Cyprus in Cyprushe total deposits of ELLAKTOR Group
companies with CPB and the Bank of Cyprus in Cymtasmd at €600 thousand and €1,937 thousand
respectively.

e ELLAKTOR Group has no exposure to transferable sges (e.g. bonds or shares) or any financial
instruments with the Bank of Cyprus or CPB.

e The ELLAKTOR Group turnover in Cyprus stood at P&6f the consolidated turnover for the Group in
2012, which is negligible in relation to the grosigonsolidated figures.

2. In Q1 2013, loans of AKTOR (~ €99 million) and Yaoal Emporiki (€25 million) were subject to long-term
refinancing. Negotiations for the refinancing ofihs to parent ELLAKTOR, AKTOR Concessions and
REDS are currently at an advanced stage.

3. As regards the construction segment, AKTOR andutssidiaries participated in the beginning of tearyin
tender procedures for new projects budgeted atta&&l0 million in Greece and in the Balkans, andlaiut
€114 million in the Gulf countries.

4. As regards the concessions segment, the entity singp the group companies AKTOR CONCESSIONS
and AKTOR, Vinci group companies, and Strabag grogmpanies, was pre-selected in phase A of the
tender procedure in relation to 2 concession ptgjiecRomania:

e Construction, financing, operation and maintenamfethe Comarnic-Brasov section on the
Bucharest-Brasov motorway, budgeted at ~ €1.2 barding to the tender documents;

e Construction, financing, operation and maintenasicthe south Bucharest ringroad, operation and
maintenance of Bucharest — Constanta and BucharP#esti motorways, budgeted at ~ €2.1 bn
according to the tender documents.

5. As regards the Environment segment, HELECTOR subdhitdocumentation for the expression of
interest/pre-selection in relation to the 4 praggefdr the Design, Construction, Maintenance, Teszini
Management and Operation of urban waste manageptanmts in BE, SE and West Attica (Fyli & Ano
Liosia) proclaimed by the Special Inter-Collecti&ssociation of the Prefecture of Attica (EDSNA) tlwthe
total annual capacity of 1,355,000 tons.

This Annual Report of the Board of Directors foe feriod from 1 January to 31 December 2012 has pested
on the Internet, atww.ellaktor.com
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B.2. Explanatory Report of the Board of Directors é ELLAKTOR SA for financial year
2012, pursuant to article 4(7) and (8) of Law 3558007, as in force.

a. The Company’s share capital amounts to EUR 182352.39, divided into 177,001,313 shares with the
face value of €1.03 each. All shares are ordineggjstered, voting shares, listed for trading oa th
Athens Exchange, and specifically in the Large €laps.

b. There are no limitations in the Articles of Asition regarding transferring company shares, @xce
those provided by Law.

Significant direct or indirect holdings, withiine meaning of Law 3556/2007, as of 31.12.2012

SHAREHOLDER PARTICIPATION
PERCENTAGE

1. LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS 15.232%(*)
2. MITICA LIMITED 9.997%(**)
3. ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS 5.339% (*)
4. DIMITRIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS 5.296%

(* Also includes the percentage of MITICA PROPHRS SA (0.48%)
* Direct and indirect holding)

There are no holders of shares, pursuant toigiome in the Articles of Association, granting siad
control rights.
e. There are no limitations in the Articles of Asistion regarding voting rights and the deadlines t

exercise the right to vote, except those providetddw.

There are no agreements between shareholddts,aggociated limitations in the transfer of shames
limitations in exercising voting rights that the i@pany is aware of.

There are no regulations on the appointmentrapihcement of the members of the Board of Director
and on the amendment of the Articles of Associatwimich are differentiated from the ones stipulated
Codified Law 1920.

The Board of Directors or certain members ofBloard of Directors are authorised to issue newesha
only as provided for by law.

The Extraordinary General Meeting of the Compayiareholders as of 9.12.2008, a) decided to abolish
the treasury share purchase plan approved by mefmecision of the General Meeting of the
Company'’s shareholders as of 10 December 200Zléadb(1) of Codified Law 162190/1920) and b)
approved a new treasury share purchase plan, purdoaarticle 16(1) et seq. of Codified Law
2190/1920, to replace the abolished plan, for upG® as a maximum of the currently paid up share
capital of the Company, including already acquiskdres, for a period of up to 2 years, at the minim
and maximum treasury share acquisition price oDEl(share face value) and €15.00, respectively.
Said Extraordinary general Meeting authorised tloarB of Directors to proceed to the purchase of
treasury shares, pursuant to article 16 of Codifiadh 2190/1920, and in accordance with Commission
Regulation 2273/2003.

In execution of the above decisions of the Genldiggtings, and in implementation of the ELLAKTOR
BoD decisions as of 21.1.2008 and 10.12.2008, 3/324treasury shares were acquired over the period
from 24.1.2008 to 31.12.2008, which represent 1. 4% e Company’s paid up share capital, for the
total acquisition value of €21,166,017, at the ager acquisition value of €6.93 per share. Over the
period from 01.01.2009 to 31.12.2009, 1,515,30astney shares were also acquired, representing 0.86%
of the Company’s paid up share capital, for thaltecquisition value of €5,906,258, at the average
acquisition price of €3.90 per share. Finally, @@mpany did not purchase treasury shares during the
period from 01.01.2010 through 8.12.2010, which wWesfinal deadline of the treasury share purchase
plan.
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The Company currently holds 4,570,034 treasuryeshaepresenting 2.58% of its paid up share capital
for the total acquisition value of €27,072,275th&t average acquisition price of €5.92 per share.

There are no significant agreements that haes lsggned by the Company, which come into forcarer
amended or are terminated as a result of the chartge Company’s control, following a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Companynantbers of its Board of Directors or its personnel,
which provide for the payment of compensation i élvent of resignation or termination of employment
without reasonable grounds, or termination of teriroffice, or employment due to a takeover bid,
except as provided by Law.
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B.3. Corporate Governance Statement (article 2(2)fd.aw 3873/2010)

a) Corporate Governance Code

b)

ELLAKTOR implements the corporate governance pples, as these are set out in the relevant ldiisla
framework (article 43(a)(3)(d) of Law 2190/1920,w.8016/2002 on corporate governance, article 37 of
Law 3693/2008 and article 2(2) of Law 3873/2010). These corporate governance principles have been
incorporated in the Corporate Governance Code (basethe SEV (Hellenic Federation of Enterprises)
Corporate Governance Code, January 2011), whiphsted on the Company’s websitevw.ellaktor.com

Corporate governance practices implemented by tnCompany in addition to the provisions of law.

The Company has not adopted corporate governaraetiqes in addition to the relevant legislation
provisions for the year ended 2012.

c) Description of Internal Control and Risk Managernent Systems

The Company’s Board of Directors places particéenphasis on internal control and risk management
systems for which it is responsible, aiming at alistg and managing systems which optimise risk
management efficiency. The Board of Directors sbaksponsible for identifying, assessing, meaguaird
generally managing risks, including those relatethe reliability of financial statements.

The Internal Control systems’ adequacy is monitdrgdhe Audit Committee which updates the Board of
Directors through quarterly reports on the curiaternal control framework, and through reportairthe
internal control department related to serious mnissues or incidents which might have significan
financial and business implications.

i. The systems and procedures for risk control andageament in relation to the submission of reports an
the preparation of individual and consolidated fficial statements, include:

e keeping, developing and implementing single acdagrdapplications and processes;

e reviewing, at regular intervals, of the accountimijcies implemented, and disclosing their results
to the competent personnel;

e the procedures which ensure that transactions ecegnised in line with the International
Financial Reporting Standards;

e the existence of policies which govern accountingkkeeping, and the procedures related to
collections, payments and other financial actigitie

e closing procedures, which include submission dead|iaccount reconciliations and verifications,
updates to competent persons and approvals;

e the implementation of single corporate reportingthbfor financial reporting purposes and
administrative reporting purposes on a quarterbisa
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e role determination procedures for system users JE&RIE restriction of access to unauthorised
fields (authorizations), to ensure the integritd @onfidentiality of financial information;

e the existence of policies and procedures for eammmaih, such as major deals, inventory,
payment, duty segregation procedures, etc.;

e the preparation on an annual basis by the Compdnneo consolidated and individual, per
activity/ subsidiary, budgets for the next finamgi@ar, to be approved by the BoD;

e the follow-up of such budgets and revision, if squired, on a quarterly basis;

e updating of the business plan per field of actifiythe next years (usually three), at least ance
year;

e determination of limits regarding Company operai@md transactions via the Company’s legal
and special representatives, pursuant to a spgmiadion of the Company’s BoD;

e ongoing training and development of personnel pg@tkand skills;

e the access control system which allows accessrsppeel and or other persons to selected work
areas, and full recording of movements.

The development of IT systems, managed by a spedrained IT Management Team (IT General
Controls), ensures the integrity and accuracy mdirftial information. Further, appropriate policésd
procedures related to IT System Security and Ptioteare applied across the Company:

e  Backup (daily-weekly-monthly-yearly)

e Restoration

e  Server room security

e Event Record

. Management of user access to IT systems

e  Frequent and mandatory change of password

e  Antivirus Security

e  E-mail Security

. Firewall

i. The Audit Committee evaluates the suitabilitytld Internal Control Systems. It is set up to supthe
BoD in their duties related to financial reportimgternal control and ordinary audit supervision.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee #re following:

As regards internal control and reporting systethes Audit Committee:
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e  Monitors the financial reporting process and thegnity of the Company’s financial statements.
It also monitors any formal announcements relatinthe Company’s financial performance, and
reviews the key points of financial statements Whiontain crucial judgments and estimates on
part of the Management;

e  Supervises internal, management, procedural aaddial audits of the Company, and follows-up
the effectiveness of internal control and risk ngament systems of the Company. To this end,
the Audit Committee regularly reviews the Companyiternal control and risk management
systems, so as to ensure that the main risks apegy identified, managed and disclosed,;

e Reviews any conflicts of interests involved in bempany’s transactions with related parties, and
submits relevant reports to the BoD.

As regards the oversight of the internal audit depent, the Audit Committee:

e Ensures the operating conditions of the internditalepartment are in line with the international
standards for professional implementation of irdéaudit;

e Determines the operating conditions of the Compaimternal audit department;

e Monitors and examines proper operation of the irgkaudit department, and reviews its quarterly
audit reports;

e  Ensures the independence of internal audit, bygsiog to the BoD the appointment and removal
of the head of the internal audit department.

As regards the oversight of the ordinary audit fiomg the Audit Committee:

e Makes recommendations to the General Meeting,hgaBtoD, in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and revocation of the ordinary auditor;

e Reviews and monitors the ordinary auditor’'s indejeate, and the objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process, taking into consideration tblevant Greek professional and regulatory
requirements.

The Committee should meet at least four times par o effectively perform its duties.

d)

The information required under article 10(1)(cl), (f), (h), and (i) of Directive 2004/25/EC ofetliEuropean
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004stated in the Explanatory Report which is includethe
Directors’ Annual Report for year from 01.01.2002311.12.2012.

Proceedings of the General Meeting of Shareholdeand powers — Shareholder rights

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the Conipasypreme decision-making body and may decide on
all significant corporate affairs, in accordanceéhwiaw and the Company’s Articles. The Annual Oedlin
General Meeting of Shareholders takes place ongeag within six months from the end of the pregiou
financial year, to approve among others the Comigaapnual financial statements, decide on profit
distribution and release the Company’s Board oé&twrs and auditors from all liability.

Decision making takes place in a voting procedir@rder to ensure the free expression of all efalder

views, whether present in person or voting via grddhe Company uses effective and cost-efficieringp
methods for shareholders or their representatives.
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A summary of the General Meeting minutes, includir@ing results on each decision of the General
Meeting, must be available on the Company’s websitgin five (5) days from the date of the General
Meeting of shareholders, also translated into Ehgli

At least the Chairman of the Company’s BoD, the GE@he General Manager, as the case may be, and th
Chairmen of the BoD committees, as well as thertaleand Ordinary Auditors, must be present at the
General Meeting of shareholders in order to providermation on issues of their responsibility for
discussion, and on questions or clarifications ested by shareholders. The Chairman of the General
Meeting should allow sufficient time for sharehalkléo submit any queries.

The rights of shareholders are set out in the CayipaArticles and in Law 2190/1920 (on Societes
Anonyme), as in force.

f) Composition and function of the Company’s Boardof Directors and Committees

The Company’s Board of Directors, whose memberseleeted by the General Meeting, will exercise
the general administration and management of catpa@ffairs, to the best interests of the Companty a
its shareholders. The Board of Directors will detere which of its members will be executive and-non
executive. The number of non-executive members mayoe less than 1/3 of all directors. The General
Meeting will designate at least two independent tmer® among the non-executive directors, in
accordance with corporate governance principles.

The roles of the Directors are set out and cleddlgumented in the Company’s Articles, the Corporate
Governance Code, and other official documents. &kez members will see to daily management
issues, while non-executive members will undertaek@ut forward all corporate affairs. Independent
non-executive members will provide the Board ofddtors with impartial opinions and advice on
decision-making, to the Company’s interests angtiogection of its shareholders.

The separate powers of the Chairman of the BoDtl@dCompany’s CEO will be expressly determined
by the Board of Directors and laid down in the Camgs Articles and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board of Directors will meet whenever neededserimposed by the provisions governing the
Company’s operations, as set out in the Articled tre applicable legislation. The Chairman of the
Board of Directors will determine the items on #genda and invite the members to a meeting.

In case of absence or impediment, the Chairman wlreplaced by the CEO; in case of absence or
impediment of the CEO, the Board of Directors d#signate a member to act as his replacement.

This Board of Directors was elected by the Genklegting of the Company’s shareholders on 20 June
2008 for a five-year term of office, pursuant tovland the Company’s Articles, and comprises the
following members:

s/n Full name Position

1. Anastasios Kallitsantsis Chairman, Executive Member
2. Leonidas Bobolas CEO, Executive Member

3. Dimitrios Kallitsantsis Director, Executive Member
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4, Dimitrios Koutras Director, Executive Member

5. Loukas Giannakoulis Director, Executive Member

6. Angelos Giokaris Director, Executive Member

7. Edouardos Sarantopoulos Director, Executive Member

8. Georgios Sossidis Director, non-Executive Member

9. loannis Koutras Director, non-Executive Member

10. Dimitrios Hatzigrigoriadis Director, IndependentmBxecutive Member
11. Georgios Bekiaris Director, Independent non-Executive Member

The CVs of the members of the Board of Directors awailable on the Company's website
(www.ellaktor.com

ii. The General Meeting has set up an Audit Commitseticle 37 of Law 3693/2008) which assists the

BoD in the preparation of decisions and ensuresctife management of any conflicts of interest miyiri
the decision-making process.

The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to monitbnancial reporting, the effective operation of the
internal control and risk management systems, arglpervise and monitor ordinary audits and issues
relating to the objectivity and independence ofileauditors (the Audit Committee tasks are detaited
section c of this statement).

The General Meeting of the Company’s shareholdetrsg this Audit Committee at its meeting on 26
June 2009, and appointed the following members:

s/n Full name Position

1. loannis Koutras Non-Executive Member of the BoD

2. Georgios Sossidis Non-Executive Member of the BoD

3, Georgios Bekiaris* Independent Non-Executive Member of the BoD

* |t is established that Mr. Georgios Bekiaris hedequate knowledge of accounting and auditing ssue
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The office of the current Audit Committee membeii8 @nd simultaneously with the term of office of
the current Board of Directors.

Kifissia, 28 March 2013

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS
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C. Audit Report of Independent Certified Public Auditor-Accountant
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Audit Report of Independent Certified Public Auditor-Accountant

[Trandation from the original text in Greek]

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Shareholders of “ELLAKTOR SA Listed Company”

Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financialt&tements

We have audited the accompanying separate and lmated financial statements of ELLAKTOR SA Listed
Company which comprise the separate and consalidatgement of financial position as of 31 DecenfiEr2

and the separate and consolidated income stateamehtstatement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and cash flow statement for & yhen ended aral summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Gwolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of these separate and consolidatadcial
statements in accordance with International FiredrnReporting Standards, as adopted by the Europesgon,
and for such internal control as management detersnis necessary to enable the preparation of aepand
consolidated financial statements that are freen frwaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud @rer

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesparate and consolidated financial statemersisdban our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance witkrirational Standards on Auditing. Those standezdsire
that we comply with ethical requirements and plad perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuraboat
whether the separate and consolidated financierstnts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairditi evidence about the amounts and disclosurethien
separate and consolidated financial statements. prbeedures selected depend on the auditor's jusigme
including the assessment of the risks of materigdstatement of the separate and consolidated fimlanc
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In ntakiiose risk assessments, the auditor considenhaitcontrol
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair pnéstgon of the separate and consolidated finarstetements in
order to design audit procedures that are apptepnahe circumstances, but not for the purposexpfessing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's in&mrrontrol. An audit also includes evaluating tippr@priateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableoesscounting estimates made by management, asasell
evaluating the overall presentation of the separatkconsolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaimedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisdur audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the separate and consolidated firzrstatements present fairly, in all materialpesds, the
financial position of the ELLAKTOR SA Listed Compaand its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012{treid
financial performance and cash flows for the ybantended in accordance with International Findiégorting
Standards, as adopted by the European Union.

Reference on Other Legand Requlatory Matters

a) Included in the Board of Directors’ Report is tleemorate governance statement that contains the
information that is required by paragraph 3d ofc&t43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

b) We verified the conformity and consistency of thisrmation given in the Board of Directors’ repaiith
the accompanying separate and consolidated firlsstei@ments in accordance with the requirements of
articles 43a, 108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Athens, 29 March 2013
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D. Annual Financial Statements

Annual Financial Statements
in line with the International Financial ReportiStandards
for the year ended 31 December 2012
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Statement of Financial Position

CONSOLIDATED

All amounts in EUR thousand FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Note 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 463,622 471,586 3,034 3,224
Intangible assets 7 1,078,685 1,093,123 - -
Investment property 8 171,055 154,272 56,879 57,847
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - - 940,106 940,259
Investments in associates 11 134,891 135,863 34,871 34,871
Investments in joint ventures 9d 834 876 - -
Financial assets held to maturity 19 25,129 88,232 - -
Financial assets available for sale 13 149,335 284,851 - -
Deferred tax assets 27 41,979 34,091 - -
Prepayments for long-term leases 14 22,667 14,632 - -
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12) 15 16,269 43,284 - -
Other long-term receivables 18 96,715 101,770 24 5,502
2,201,180 2,422,581 1,034,914 1,041,704
Current assets
Inventories 17 43,385 29,255 - -
Trade and other receivables 18 1,095,771 900,982 7,996 8,521
Financial assets held to maturity 19 133,563 94,375 - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit argb| 3 3 - -
Prepayments for long-term leasing (current portion) 14 885 484 - -
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12- curpgition)) 15 90,245 56,804 - -
Committed deposits 20 81,828 47,943 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 21 706,835 806,154 766 3,466
2,152,515 1,936,000 8,762 11,988
Total assets 4,353,695 4,358,581 1,043,677 1,053,692
EQUITY
Attributable to equity holders
Share capital 22 182,311 182,311 182,311 182,311
Share premium 22 523,847 523,847 523,847 523,847
Treasury shares 22 (27,072) (27,072) (27,072) (27,072)
Other reserves 23 216,989 222,226 103,109 103,109
Profit/ (loss) carried forward 71,064 152,045 5,637 21,915
967,140 1,053,357 787,731 804,110
Non controlling interests 288,020 261,657 - -
Total equity 1,255,159 1,315,013 787,731 804,110
LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities
Borrowings 24 1,203,629 1,413,643 161,593 159,314
Deferred tax liabilities 27 109,015 102,748 496 397
Retirement benefit obligations 28 7,600 7,640 109 98
Grants 25 62,023 56,649 - -
Financial derivatives 16 147,874 114,259 - -
Other long-term liabilities 26 25,016 24,062 866 217
Other long-term provisions 29 121,202 118,449 519 519
1,676,359 1,837,450 163,582 160,544
Short-term liabilities
Suppliers and other liabilities 26 815,542 680,963 2,343 3,860
Current income tax liabilities 11,122 5,691 84 -
Borrowings 24 552,827 477,990 89,721 84,720
Dividends payable 242 536 216 458
Financial derivatives 16 - 1,215 - -
Other short-term provisions 29 42,445 39,723 - -
1,422,177 1,206,118 92,363 89,038
Total liabilities 3,098,536 3,043,568 255,946 249,582
Total equity and liabilities 4,353,695 4,358,581 1,043,677 1,053,692

The notes on pages 36 to 115 form an integralgidhtese financial statements.
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Income Statement

All amounts in thousand EUR, except earnings paresh

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income/(expenses) (net)
Profit /(Loss) from Joint Ventures
Operating results

Income from dividends

Share of profit/ (loss) from associates
Financial income

Financial (expenses)

Profit/ (Loss) before taxes
Income tax

Net profit / (loss) for the financial year

Earnings/ (losses) for the financial year
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests

Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €)

The notes on pages 36 to 115 form an integralgidhtese financial statements.

Note

30

30

30

31
9d

11
32
32

34

35

35

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
1,232,817 1,204,319 199 694
(1,065,886) (1,184,477) (160) (446)
166,931 19,842 39 248
(6,812) (9,271) - -
(58,108) (61,283) (4,044) (5,557)
12,067 201,793 2,057 6,414
554 (324) - -
114,632 150,757 (1,948) 1,105
- - 18 41
2,288 1,064 - -
40,915 40,700 17 869
(99,917) (102,487) (14,366) (11,908)
57,919 90,034 (16,279) (9,893)
(25,647) (17,153) (98) (489)
32,272 72,881 (16,378) (10,382)
11,789 72,783 (16,378) (10,382)
20,483 98 - -
32,272 72,881 (16,378) (10,382)
0.0684 0.4221 (0.0950) (0.0602)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Note

Net profit / (loss) for the financial year

Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences

Reclassification adjustment of the foreign

exchange differences reserve of EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU) 23
Changes in value of financial assets available for

sale 13,23

Cash flow hedge

Reclassification adjustment of cash flow hedge
reserve of EGU 23

Other

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for
the period (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for
the year

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for
the period attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
32,272 72,881 (16,378) (10,382)
(3,309) (2,817) Q) -

- (1,278) - -
(41,934) 56,680 - -
(29,654) (44,530) - 194

- (8,784) - -

(57) (297) - -
(74,955) (927) (1) 195
(42,683) 71,954 (16,379) (10,188)
(55,887) 83,171 (16,379) (10,188)

13,203 (11,217) - -
(42,683) 71,954 (16,379) (10,188)

The Other Comprehensive Income presented in theeatt@atement are net, after taxes. The tax corngspg to

the figures included in Other Comprehensive Incisweferred to in note 34.

The notes on pages 36 to 115 form an integralgidhtese financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Attributed to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Results Non
Share Share Other Treasury carried controlling Total
Note capital premium reserves shares forward Total interests equity
1 January 2011 182,311 523,847 190,135 (27,072) 88,621 957,842 ,8221 1,239,713
Net profit for the year - - - - 72,783 72,783 98 2,881
Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences 23 - (2,212) - - 2,2%2) (605) (2,817)
Reclassification adjustment of the
foreign exchange differences
reserve of EGU 23 - - (1,278) - - (1,278) - (BR7
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale 23 - 56,680 - - 985,68 - 56,680
Changes in value of cash flow
hedge 23 - - (33,866) - - (33,866) (10,664) (30)5
Reclassification adjustment of
cash flow hedge reserve of EGU 23 - (8,784) - - (8,784) - (8,784)
Other - - - - (152) (152) (45) (197)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (net after taxes) - - 10,540 - (152) 10,388 (11,315) (927)
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year - - 10,540 - 72,631 83,171 (11,217) 71,954
Transfer to reserves 23 - 14,231 - (14,231) - - -
Proportion of non controlling
interests in the distribution of
results of a LTD subsidiary - - - - - - (88) (88)
Distribution of dividend 36 - - - - (5,310) (531 (6,123) (11,433)
Effect of sale of 15% of
MOREAS SA - - 7,320 - 10,445 17,765 (2,033) 15,732
Effect of acquisitions and change
in participation share in
subsidiaries - - - - (111) (111) (754) (865)
31 December 2011 182,311 523,847 222,226 (27,072) 152,045 1,053,357 261,657 1,315,013
1 January 2012 182,311 523,847 222226 (27,072) 2,085 1,053,357 261,657 1,315,013
Net profit for the year - - - - 11,789 11,789 BB4 32,272
Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences 23 - (2,458) - - 2,4%8) (851) (3,309)
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale 23 - (41,934) - - (41,934) - (41,934)
Changes in value of cash flow
hedge 23 - - (23,238) - - (23,238) (6,416) (29,654)
Other - - - - (46) (46) (11) (57)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (net after taxes) - - (67,630) - (46) (67,676) (7,279) (74,955)
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year - - (67,630) - 11,743 (55,887) 13,203 (42,683)
Transfer from/ to reserves 23 - 62,925 - (68)92 - - -
Proportion of non controlling
interests in the distribution of
results of a LTD subsidiary - - - - - (16) f16
Distribution of dividend - - - - - - (5,672) (5,8Y
Effect of % change in
participation in sub-group of
HELECTOR & ALAHMADIAH - - (532) - (29,733) (30,265 18,978 (11,287)
Effect of participation change in
other subsidiaries - - - - (65) (65) (131) (196)
31 December 2012 182,311 523,847 216,989 (27,072) 71,064 967,140 ,0288 1,255,159

(33) / (120)



‘ ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

Associates participate in the change to Other vesen 2012 with -€6,897 thousand, and to the chaoadresults
carried forward with -€4 thousand. The amountfaitl are -€17,891 thousand and -€13 thousand,atsgle.

COMPANY FIGURES

1 January 2011
Net loss for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in value of cash flow

hedge

Other comprehensive income for

the year (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income for

the year
Transfer to reserves

Distribution of dividend
31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Net loss for the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences

Other comprehensive income for

the year (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income for

the year

31 December 2012

Results
Share Share Other Treasury carried Total
Note capital premium reserves shares forward equity
182,311 523,847 102,564 (27,072) 37,958 819,607
- - - - (10,382) (10,382)
23 - - 194 - - 194
- - 195 - - 195
- - 195 - (10,382) (10,188)
23 350 - (350) -
36 - - - - (5,310) (581
182,311 523,847 103,109 (27,072) 21,915 804,110
182,311 523,847 103,109 (27,072) 21,915 804,110
- - - - (16,378) (16,378)
1) - - 1
- - (€] - - @
- - (1) - (16,378) (16,379)
182,311 523,847 103,109 (27,072) 5,537 787,731

The notes on pages 36 to 115 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

All amounts in EUR thousand. Note CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
01.01.2012- 01.01.2011- 01.01.2012- 01.01.2011-
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Operating activities

Profit/ (loss) before tax 57,919 90,034 (16,279) (9,893)

Plus/ less adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 6,7,8,25 103,226 106,025 1,155 1,167

Impairment of tangible assets, investment propgrj@nt ventures &

financial assets available for sale 30.31 3,484 6,371 - 8

Provisions (5,947) 14,030 11 (95)

Foreign exchange differences (2,243) (834) 1) -

Results (income, expenses, gains and loss) froesting activities (46,508) (44,852) 300 (4,333)

Profit from sale of % in ELDORADO/EUROPEAN GOLDFIBIS

(EGU) & adjustment at fair value of the remainirgding 31 (19,091) (261,250) - -

Debit interest and related expenses 32 95,113 97,010 14,366 11,908

Impairment provisions and disposals 31 12,927 87,1 - -

Plus/ less adjustments for changes in working abpécounts or
related to operating activities:

Decrease/ (increase) of inventory (14,008) 17,745 - -
Decrease/ (increase) of receivables (88,459) 123,901 5,894 (881)
(Decrease)/ increase of liabilities (except banks) 145,590 (25,479) (710) (301)
Less:

Debit interest and related expenses paid (98,383) (105,549) (14,125) (10,302)
Taxes paid (29,007) (49,609) 2 (915)
Total Cash Inflows/(Outflows) from Operating Adis (a) 114,613 44,732 (9,391) (13,637)
Investing activities

Sale of % holding in ELDORADO/EGU 13 112,696 9889 - -
(Acquisition)/ disposal of subsidiaries, associafeiit ventures and

other investments 7,931 (119,121) (23) (38)
(Placements)/ Collections of time deposits overddtins (101,100) 117,200 - -
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets andtiment properties (95,547) (124,417) ) 17)
Revenues from sale of tangible and intangible ass®d investment

property 7,407 10,850 7 -
Interest received 41,211 37,933 17 869
Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related parties 367 9) (79) 298
Dividends received 1,394 2,049 46 9,293
Committed deposits (33,886) (13,147) - -
Total inflows/(outflows) from investing activitiés) (59,526) 5,236 (34) 10,404

Einancing activities
(Acquisition)/Disposal of participation share irbsidiaries from/to

non-controlling interests (10,993) 25,600 - -
Proceeds from borrowings 221,341 479,126 79,400 144,138
Repayment of borrowings (365,904) (543,339) (72,500) (165,000)
Payments of leases (595) (401) - -
Dividends paid (4,915) (10,687) (175) (4,292)
Tax paid on dividends (2,244) (3,603) - (584)
Grants received 25 8,159 17,604 - -
Third party participation in share capital increaésubsidiaries 745 563 - -
Total inflows/(outflows) from financing activiti¢s) (154,406) (35,137) 6,725 (25,739)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents for the period (a) + (b) + (c) 0319) 14,831 (2,700) (28,971)
Cash and cash equivalents at year start 21 806,154 791,323 3,466 32,438
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 21 706,835 806,154 766 3,466

The notes on pages 36 to 115 form an integralgfdhtese financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

The Group operates via its subsidiaries, mainlycamstructions & quarrying, real estate developmeamd
management, wind power and environment, and COITCESS

The Company was incorporated and established iedgrevith registered and central offices at 25 Errsibu
14564, Kifissia, Attica.

The Company’s shares are traded on the Athens Bgeha

These financial statements were approved by thedBofDirectors on 28 March 2013 and are subjecthio
approval of the General Assembly of shareholderseyTare available on the company’s website at:
www.ellaktor.com.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The basic accounting principles applied in the arafion of these financial statements are set elstwb These
principles have been consistently applied to adrgeoresented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated and company financial statentemte been prepared in accordance with the Infenst
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Imétghions of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they havenbeedorsed by the European Union, and IFRS issyetieb
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).eTfinancial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the finaheiasets available for sale at fair value througdfipand loss
(including derivatives) valued at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements unB&9 requires the use of accounting estimates audrgions
by the Management in implementing the accountinicies adopted. The areas involving extensive juelginor
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates hawgnificant impact on the financial statements a
mentioned in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going Concern

The financial statements as of 31 December 2012pmpared in accordance with the International fdre
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and provide a reasornaleleentation of the financial position, profit dieds, and
cash flows of the Group, in accordance with thegple of going concern. Given the economic criligre is
increased financial insecurity in international k&ds, as regards the economy of Greece in pantidatdlowing
careful examination and for reasons explained & Emancial Risk Management (note 3), the Groupol
that:(a) the preparation of the financial staterment accordance with the principle of going conceymot
affected; (b) the assets and liabilities of the Wpra@are presented correctly in accordance with t@unting
principles used by the Group; and (c) operatinggmms and actions have been planned to deal withlgms
that may arise in relation to the Group’s actiatie
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2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations

Certain new standards, amendments to standardsntargretations have been issued that are mandé&bory
periods beginning during the current financial yaad subsequent years. The Group’s evaluationeoéttect of
these new standards, amendments to standardstarptétations is as follows:

Standards and Interpretations effective for theemnirfinancial year

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Disclosues” - transfers of financial assets

This amendment sets out disclosure requirementsaosferred financial assets not derecognisekein entirety as
well as on transferred financial assets derecodnis¢heir entirety but in which the reporting éypthas continuing
involvement. It also provides guidance on applymgdisclosure requirements. This amendment hasfect on the
Group’s financial statements.

Standards and Interpretations effective from perioglginning on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2015)

IFRS 9 is the first Phase of the Board’s projectréplace IAS 39 and deals with the classification a
measurement of financial assets and financialliies. The IASB intends to expand IFRS 9 in suhset phases
in order to add new requirements for impairment bedge accounting. The Group is currently investigathe
impact of IFRS 9 on its financial statements. Theup cannot currently early adopt IFRS 9 as it aisbeen
endorsed by the EU. Only once approved will theuprdecide if IFRS 9 will be adopted prior to 1 Jamy2015.

IFRS 12 (Amendment) “Income taxes” éffective for annual periods beginning on or afteélanuary 201)3

The amendment to IAS 12 provides a practical aggirdar measuring deferred tax liabilities and defdrtax
assets when investment property is measured usinfair value model in IAS 40 “ Investment Propérty

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2013

IFRS 13 provides new guidance on fair value measent and disclosure requirements. These requiresmknt
not extend the use of fair value accounting but/il® guidance on how it should be applied whereugs is

already required or permitted by other standardsiwiFRSs. IFRS 13 provides a precise definitibfiair value

and a single source of fair value measurement asclodure requirements for use across IFRSs. Gigoio
requirements are enhanced and apply to all assétkadbilities measured at fair value, not jussfiicial ones.

IFRIC 20 “Stripping costs in the production phase & a surface mine” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 20113

This interpretation sets out the accounting forrbueden waste removal (stripping) costs in the potidn phase
of a mine. The interpretation may require miningjtess to write off existing stripping assets toeojng retained
earnings if the assets cannot be attributed talantifiable component of an ore body. IFRIC 20 a&spbnly to
stripping costs that are incurred in surface miraotvity during the production phase of the miwdjle it does
not address underground mining activity or oil aatural gas activity.
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IAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of Financial Staterants” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012

The amendment requires entities to separate itgesepted in other comprehensive income into twaigsp
based on whether or not they may be recycled tfit mroloss in the future.

IAS 19 (Amendment) “Employee Benefits” éffective for annual periods beginning on or attelanuary 2013

This amendment makes significant changes to thegrétion and measurement of defined benefit pension
expense and termination benefits (eliminates theidmr approach) and to the disclosures for all lexyge
benefits. The key changes relate mainly to recagniof actuarial gains and losses, recognition astservice
cost / curtailment, measurement of pension expetiselosure requirements, treatment of expensestaxeb
relating to employee benefit plans and distincbetween “short-term” and “other long-term” benefits

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Disclosues” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013

The IASB has published this amendment to includerimation that will enable users of an entity’sditial
statements to evaluate the effect or potentiakefié netting arrangements, including rights ofsitassociated
with the entity’s recognised financial assets awbgnised financial liabilities, on the entity’adincial position.

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentdion” (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 20)4

This amendment to the application guidance in |12 rifies some of the requirements for offsettiimancial
assets and financial liabilities on the stateméffinancial position.

Group of standards on consolidation and joint arrargements éffective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 20)4

The IASB has published five new standards on cédestitbn and joint arrangements: IFRS 10, IFRS ERS 12,

IAS 27 (amendment) and IAS 28 (amendment). Themedards are effective for annual periods beginoimgr

after 1 January 2014. Earlier application is peteditonly if the entire “package” of five standaidsadopted at
the same time. The Group is in the process of sggpshe impact of the new standards on its codatsi

financial statements. The main provisions are Hsvis:

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control eodsolidation in IAS 27 and SIC 12. The new stadda
changes the definition of control for the purpogedetermining which entities should be consolidat&tis
definition is supported by extensive applicationdgmce that addresses the different ways in whichparting
entity (investor) might control another entity (@stee). The revised definition of control focusastlee need to
have both power (the current ability to direct #otivities that significantly influence returns)davariable returns
(can be positive, negative or both) before contsopresent. The new standard also includes guidamce
participating and protective rights, as well asagency/ principal relationships.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”
IFRS 11 provides for a more realistic reflectionjafit arrangements by focusing on the rights ablibations of

the arrangement, rather than its legal form. Thedyof joint arrangements are reduced to two:jop#rations
and joint ventures. Proportional consolidation oin§ ventures is no longer allowed. Equity accoumtis
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mandatory for participants in joint ventures. Hastthat participate in joint operations will foNoaccounting
much like that for joint assets or joint operatidosglay. The standard also provides guidance fotigsathat
participate in joint arrangements but do not hawiatjcontrol. The Group is considering the impattttos
standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose informatioejuding significant judgments and assumptionsictvienable
users of financial statements to evaluate the eatigks and financial effects associated withethiity’s interests
in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangementsuandnsolidated structured entities. An entity peavide any or
all of the above disclosures without having to dpRS 12 in its entirety, or IFRS 10 or 11, or #reended IAS
27 or 28.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate Financial Statements”

This Standard is issued concurrently with IFRS @@ #bogether, the two IFRSs supersede IAS 27 “Cdiatesteld
and Separate Financial Statements”. The amende®TA&escribes the accounting and disclosure reopgints
for investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures asdociates when an entity prepares separate falatatements.
At the same time, the Board relocated to IAS 2uregnents from IAS 28 “Investments in Associatest 4AS
31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” regarding sepafia@ncial statements.

IAS 28 (Amendment) “Investments in Associates andaint Ventures”

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint VerdUreeplaces IAS 28 “Investments in Associates”. The
objective of this Standard is to prescribe the anting for investments in associates and to settbeat
requirements for the application of the equity metiwhen accounting for investments in associatelsjaint
ventures, following the issue of IFRS 11.

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (Amendment) “Consolidad financial statements, joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other entities: Transitbn guidance” (effective for annual periods beginnig on or
after 1 January 2014)

The amendment to the transition requirements irSl6-R0, 11 and 12 clarifies the transition guidand&RS 10
and limits the requirements to provide comparatnfermation for IFRS 12 disclosures only to theipédrthat
immediately precedes the first annual period of3FR application. Comparative disclosures are equired for
interests in unconsolidated structured entitieke @mendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Amendment) “Investmenentities” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014)

The amendment to IFRS 10 defines an investmentyestid introduces an exception from consolidatidany
funds and similar entities that qualify as investimentities will be exempt from consolidating masttheir
subsidiaries, which will be accounted for at fatue through profit or loss, although controlletteTamendments
to IFRS 12 introduce disclosures that an investneerity needs to make. The amendments have ndbegr
endorsed by the EU.

Amendments to standards that form part of the |ASBinual improvements project

The amendments set out below describe the key elsainglFRSs following the publication in May 2012tlee
results of the IASB’s annual improvements projd@ttese amendments are effective for annual periedmbing
on or after 1 January 2013 and have not yet bedarsed by the European Union.

IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”
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The amendment clarifies the disclosure requiremintsomparative information when an entity proddethird
balance sheet either (a) as required by IAS 8 “Aoting policies, changes in accounting estimateksesrors” or
(b) voluntarily.

IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”

The amendment clarifies that spare parts and $egveuipment are classified as property, plant equipment
rather than inventory when they meet the defininbproperty, plant and equipment, i.e. when theywsed for
more than one period.

IAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presentation”

The amendment clarifies that income tax relatedigtysibutions is recognised in the income statenagtincome
tax related to the costs of equity transactiomeéegnised in equity, in accordance with IAS 12.

IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’

The amendment clarifies the disclosure requiremémtssegment assets and liabilities in interim fical
statements, in line with the requirements of IFR®Berating segments”.

2.3 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are economic entities in which theupris able to lay down their financial and businpsicies,

usually in conjunction with a holding in their sharapital with voting rights in excess of 50%. Exéstence and
effect of voting rights that can be exercised anasted are also taken into account to documenthieaGroup is
in control of the economic entity. There may algodontrol in cases where the holding in the shapatal with

voting rights is less than 50%, but the Group ie &b exercise control over the financial and besgpolicies on
a de facto basis. There is de facto control wHeeenumber of voting rights held by the Group, ilatien to the
number and allocation of the rights held by othearsholders, enable the Group to exercise contret the

financial and business policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the datemcontrol over them is acquired and cease t@hsatidated
from the date when control no longer exists.

The purchase method of accounting is used to atcfmrnthe acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
Acquisition cost is calculated as the fair valuahaf assets assigned, of obligations undertakém mace, and of
the financial products issued as of the date afs@ation. The costs associated with the acquisétrenposted in
results. The individual assets, liabilities andtougent liabilities that are acquired during a Imesis combination
are valued during the acquisition at their fairues regardless of the participation share. Thermiffce between
acquisition cost and the fair value of the subsidiequity share as at the date of acquisitioretognised as
goodwill. If the total cost of the acquisition mwer than the Group's portion in fair value of theividual assets
acquired, the difference is immediately recogniseithe income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealga&ids on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminai@egt if the transaction provides indication of aimment of the
transferred asset. The accounting principles oftlisidiaries have been amended so as to be inroaityf with

the ones adopted by the Group. In the parent coyp&tatement of Financial Position, subsidiaries\alued at
cost less impairment.
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(b) Changes to holdings in subsidiaries withouslo§control

Any transactions with minority shareholders havimg effect on the control exercised by the Grouprdhe
subsidiary are measured and recorded as equitgatdans, i.e. they are handled in the same wathais
followed for transactions with key Group sharehaddd he difference between the price paid and éhevant
share acquired in the book value of the subsidsaeyuity is deducted from equity. Any profit ordaaising from
the sale to majority shareholders is also posteuequity.

(c) Sale of / loss of control over subsidiary

As soon as the Group ceases to exercise contsijoificant influence on a subsidiary, the remaingercentage

is measured at fair value, and any differencespasted in results. Subsequently, this asset isifiled as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset, itguagtion value being that fair value. In additicamy amounts
previously recorded under Other Comprehensive Imcawil be accounted for as in the case of sale of a
subsidiary, and therefore they may be accountehfprofit or loss.

(d)  Associates

Associates are economic entities on which the Goaupexercise significant influence but not “cofiffravhich is
generally the case when the Group holds a percerttegveen 20% and 50% of a company’s voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for ubmgdquity method. In accordance with the equityhmet an
investment in an associate is recognized initiathacquisition cost and the book value increasedeoreases in
order for the investor's share to be recognizethénassociate’s profit or loss following the dafeaoquisition.
The “Investments in associates” account also ireduthe goodwill resulting on acquisition (reduced dmy
impairment losses).

In case of sale of a holding in an associate orclwlhe Group continues, however, to exercise somf
influence, only the portion of amounts previoushsied directly under equity will be posted in résul

Following the acquisition, the Group’s share in ti@ns or losses of associates is recognized innteme

statement, while the share of changes in other celmemsive income following the acquisition is reaiagd in

other comprehensive income. The cumulative chamadfest the book value of the investments in assesia
When the Group’s share in the losses of an assadsi@ual or larger than the carrying amount efitivestment,
the Group does not recognize any further losselgssirit has guaranteed for liabilities or made payis on

behalf of the associate.

Unrealized profits from transactions between theuprand its associates are eliminated accorditiget@roup’s
percentage ownership in the associates. Unrealizesks are eliminated, except if the transacticoviges
indications of impairment of the transferred as$éte accounting principles of affiliates have beeljusted in
order to be in conformity to the ones adopted leyG@noup. In the parent company’s balance sheaicitss are
valued at cost less impairment.

(e) Joint Ventures

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are antedi for on the basis of proportionate consolidatiexcept
for those which are inactive on the date of filSRS adoption, which are consolidated using thetgeuethod as
described above). The Group adds its share ofitwnie, expenses, assets and liabilities and casls fhf each
joint-venture with the respective figures of theoGp.

The Group recognises the share in the gains oedoBsm sales of the Group to the joint-venturescivhs

attributed to the other partners of the joint-veattrhe Group does not recognise its share indives@r losses of
the joint-ventures which resulted from purchasethefGroup by the joint-ventures until the assetpuaed are
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sold to a third party. Occurring losses from sudhaasaction is recognised directly if it evideneeeduction in
the net liquidation value of current assets or iimpant. The accounting principles of the joint-waes have
been adjusted in order to be in conformity to thesoadopted by the Group. In the parent comparsianbe
sheet, joint ventures are valued at cost less imeait.

24 Information by segment

Reports by segment are prepared in line with ttermal financial reports provided to the Chairmizwe, CEO and
other executives of the Board of Directors, who mn&inly responsible for decision-making. The keyspeas
responsible for decision-making undertake to esthata strategy, allocate resources and evaluatedtiermance
of each business segment.

2.5 Foreign exchange conversions

(@) Functional and presentation currency

The items in the financial statements of the Greugompanies are measured in the currency of thmapyi
economic environment in which the Group operatesdtional currency). The consolidated financiatestnents
are reported in Euros, which is the functional enay and the reporting currency of the parent Camyppa

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated lmdfnctional currency using the exchange rategagneg at the
dates of the transactions. Profits and losses fiargign exchange differences that arise from thteseent of
such transactions during the financial year andnhftbe translation of monetary items into foreigmlenge at
current rates applicable on the balance sheetadateecorded in profit and loss, except where #reytransferred
directly to Other comprehensive income due to bedhated to cash flow hedges and net investmergdsed

Any changes to the fair value of financial secastin foreign currency designated as availablsdte are broken
down into foreign exchange differences from a cleatrgthe net value of the security and other chamiye to
book value. Foreign exchange differences are defeten profit and loss, and other differences aaegferred to
other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange differences from non-monetarystémat are valued at their fair value are consilaepart of
their fair value and are thus treated similarlyfaor value differences. Foreign exchange differsnae non-
financial assets and liabilities, such as sharassdied as available for sale are included in otoenprehensive
income.

(c)  Group Companies

The results and financial position of all groupitied (none of which has the currency of a hypéatidnary
economy) that have a functional currency differénetm the presentation currency are translated thi®
presentation currency as follows:

i) The assets and liabilities are converted usingates in effect at the balance sheet date;

i) The income and expenses are converted using thageveates of the period (except if the average
rate is not the reasonable approach of the acctedlilmpact of the rates in effect at the datedef t
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transactions, in which case income and expensearerted using the rates in effect at the dates
of the transactions) and

iii) Any differences arising from this process are pbstader other comprehensive income and are
transferred to the income statement upon dispdghkese companies.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the cmsiga of the net investment in a foreign comparsywall as
of the borrowing characterised as hedging of tv@stment are posted under other comprehensivenecdpon
disposal of a foreign company in part or in whalecumulated exchange differences are transferrétetmcome
statement of the period as profit or loss resulfing the sale.

Gains and changes to fair value from the acquisitibforeign companies are deemed to be assettiadnilities
of the foreign company and are measured at theccyrrate applicable on the balance sheet datereRudting
foreign exchange differences are recorded in Qtbeprehensive income.

2.6 Investment property

Properties held under long-lasting leases or dagaéns or both and are not used by Group compaauies
classified as investments in property. Investmeaperty includes privately owned plots and buildings well as
properties under construction which are erectedeoeloped with a view to being used as investmespqgrty in
the future.

Investment property is recognised initially attcascluding the relevant direct acquisition andrbwing costs.
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition or constime of investment property are capitalized to tmeestment
cost for the duration of the acquisition or constian and are no longer capitalized when the figssdet is
completed or stops to be constructed. After initedognition, investments in property are valueaast, less
depreciation and any impairment. Investment bugdiare amortized based on their estimated uséfultiich is
40 years; however historic non refurbished buildiage amortized in 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is added to the carryingeval the property only if it is probable that frteueconomic
benefits related to such property will flow to tBeoup and their cost can be reliably measured. répair and
maintenance cost is booked in the results when isugfalized.

If an investment in property is modified to an agee own use, then it is classified in tangiblsets. Moreover,
investments in property, for which the Group haelagreed their sale, are classified as inventories.

Property held by the parent company and leasedmopanies in the Group are classified as investmients

property in the financial statements of the Compang as tangible fixed assets in the consolidateh¢ial
statements.
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2.7 Leases

€)) Group Company as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantiallyhallrisks and rewards of ownership are classifiedpesating
leases. Operating lease expense is recognize@ iimtbme statement proportionally during the |lgaegod and
includes any restoration cost of the property dtsalause is included in the leasing contract.

Leases of fixed assets where all the risks andndsnaf ownership are maintained by the Group aassified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalizetedeases inception at the lower of the fair valfiehe leased
property and the present value of the minimum lgesanents. Each lease payment is apportioned betthee
reduction of the liability and the finance chargetlsat a fixed interest rate on the remaining faianliability is
achieved. The respective lease liabilities, nefimdnce charges, are included in borrowings. The pathe
finance charge relating to finance leases is reizednin the income statement over the lease. Fasskts
acquired through finance leases are depreciataettio@eshorter of their useful life and the leasente

(b) Group Company as lessor

The Group leases assets only through operatinggedea@3perating lease income is recognized in theniec
statement of each period proportionally duringgeeod of the lease.

2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are reported in the financial staténanhacquisition cost minus accumulated depreciaéind
possible impairment. The acquisition cost includiéghe directly attributable expenses for the asitjan of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngrgfinount or recognized as a separate asset, a3papte,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Groapd the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The repair maintenance cost is recorded in the results veueh is
realized.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other FP&alculated using the straight line method oweirtuseful
life as follows:

- Buildings 20-40 years

- Mechanical equipment 5-7 years
- Transportation equipment 5-7 years
- Other equipment 5-7 years

The residual values and useful economic life of RRESubject to reassessment at least at eaclcbalhaet date.

PPE under construction are included in propergntpand equipment, and their depreciation starenvdomplete
and finished for their intended use.

When the book values of tangible assets exceed rdndverable value, the difference (impairmentasted in
the income statement as expense (note 2.10).
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Upon the sale of PPE, any difference between tbegads and the depreciable amount is recordedoéis qr
loss in the results.

Financial assets concerning the construction oétasare being capitalized for the period needed thm
completion of the construction. All other financédpenses are recognized in the income statement.

29 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between acqorsitost and the fair value of the subsidiary’siggshare as
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising frorqaisitions of subsidiaries is recognised in intaleggassets.
Goodwill is not depreciable, and is tested for impant annually and recognised at cost, less ampairment
losses. Goodwill losses cannot be reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating unitsifopairment testing. Allocation is made to thosetsimir cash
generating unit groups which are expected to befrefin the business combinations which created gibdind
is recognised in line with the operating segment.

Profit and losses from the disposal of an undemtaknclude the book value of the goodwill of thedartaking
sold.

Negative goodwill is written off in profit and loss
(b) Software

Software licenses are valued at acquisition cast tepreciation. Depreciation is accounted for with straight
line method during the useful lives which vary frano 3 years.

(c) Concession right

Concession rights are valued at the acquisitiont, dess depreciation. Depreciation is carried osing the
straight line method during the Concession Conffaate 2.24).

(d) User licenses

User licenses are measured at acquisition costalasstization. Amortization is accounted for by tiee of the
straight line method from the commissioning dateviofd farms, during their useful lives, which is gars.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life, e.g. goodwdre not depreciated, and are subject to impaitrigesting on an
annual basis, and when certain events or changls wircumstances suggest that their carryingevalay not be
recoverable. Assets that are depreciated are subjempairment audit when indications exist thiagit book
value is not recoverable. Impairment loss is remghfor the amount by which the fixed asset'syuagrvalue
exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverablevalthe higher between fair value, reduced byctst required
for the disposal, and the value in use (currenuevadf cash flows anticipated to be generated basethe
management’s estimates of future financial and atpey conditions). For the calculation of impairrhéwsses,
assets are classified in the minimum cash generatiits. Any non-financial assets, apart from godidwhich
have been impaired are reassessed for possibléringrd reversal on each balance sheet date.
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2.11 Financial Assets

2.11.1 Classification

The financial instruments of the Group have beessified to the following categories accordinghe bbjective
for which each investment was undertaken. The Mamegmt makes the decisions on classification atainit
recognition.

(@) Financial instruments valued at fair value thgh the income statement

This class comprises financial assets held foririgad Derivatives are classified as held for trggdiexcept when
they are designated as hedges. Assets falling uhidecategory are recorded in the current aséétgy are held
for trading purposes or are expected to be soldinvit2 months from the balance sheet date.

(b) Borrowings and receivables

These include non-derivative financial assets \iited or predefined payments which are not tradeddtive

markets. They are included in current assets, ¢Xoepnaturities greater than 12 months after thkatce sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assetsodngs and receivables are included in the trae other
receivables account in the Statement of Finan@aitien.

(c) Financial assets available for sale

These include non-derivative financial assets d@hateither designated as such or cannot be includaaly of the
previous categories. They are included in nonesrassets unless management intends to dispofiee of
investment within 12 months of the balance shett.da

(d) Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets held to maturity are non-derieatssets with fixed or determined payments andifgpec
maturity, which the Group management intends toianid position to hold until maturity. Should troup sell
a significant portion of financial assets held tatumity, the entire portfolio of assets classifiagl such are
reclassified under financial assets available &le.sFinancial assets held to maturity are postedon-current
assets, with the exception of assets whose maiarigss than 12 months from the date of the firmmeport, in
which case they are classified under current assets

2.11.2 Recognition and Measurement

The purchase and sales of investments are recéodexh the trade-date, which is the date on whiwh Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investnaetmitially recognised at their fair value, piipenses directly
related to the transaction, with the exceptiorhoke assets, regarding expenses directly relati tivansaction,
which are valued at their fair value through prafiid loss. Financial assets valued at fair valugutih profit and

loss are initially recognised at fair value, arahgaction expenses are recognised in results ipettied they were
incurred. Investments are eliminated when the riglttash flows from investments ends or is tramefkand the
Group has transferred in effect all risks and biemaftached to ownership.

Subsequently, financial assets available for sedengeasured at fair value and the relative gainesses from
changes to fair value are recorded in other congureifle income till those assets are sold or detg#dgnas
impaired. Upon sale or when assets are charadleasénpaired, the gains or losses are transféoréite income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in resdisnot be reversed through profit and loss.
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Borrowings and receivables, as well as financiaktsheld to maturity are recognised initially @t falue and
are measured subsequently at net book cost basthé effective rate method.

The realized and unrealized profits or lossesrmgiiom changes in the fair value of financial assehich are
valued at fair value through the income statememetrecognized in the profit and loss of the pedadng which
they occur.

The fair values of financial assets that are traiedctive markets are defined by their prices. Ron-traded
assets, fair values are defined with the use ofiatEdn techniques such as analysis of recent tctinsa,
comparative items that are traded and discountsial ftaws.

2.11.3 Offsetting of financial receivables and liabilities

Financial receivables and liabilities are offset ghe net amount is presented in the Statementir@nEial
position only where the Group or Company holdslégal right to do so and intends to offset themaociear
basis between them or to retrieve the financiateessd offset the liability at the same time.

2.11.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datenthette is objective evidence that a financiatbesa group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case ofitggsecurities classified as available for salesignificant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the secubigow its cost is considered as an indicator ttatsecurities are
impaired. If impairment is demonstrated, accumuldtss in equity which is the difference betweea tost of

acquisition and the fair value shall be carriedrdeeresults. Impairment losses of equity instruteeecognised
in the income statement are not reversed throughintbome statement. Reversal of security impairmang

recognized in profit or loss if the increase in fhie value of these items can be correlated objelgtto a certain

event that took place after recognition of impaintriess in profit or loss.

In case of objective indications that financialeassheld to maturity and presented at net bookisitigm value
have been impaired, the amount of impairment lessalculated as the difference between their aagryalue
and the current value of estimated future cashdl¢except for future losses from credit risks net realised),
discounted at the initial effective rate. Impairmksses of financial assets helt to maturity arsted in results.

The impairment test for receivables is describebite 2.14.

2.12 Financial derivatives

Group companies evaluate, on a case by case lasisnaking of financial derivative contracts to yedhe
exposure to rate fluctuations connected to longriean agreements.

Upon commencement of a transaction, the Group lestab the relation between the hedging instrumants
hedged assets, as well as the risk managemerdggtriat take various hedging actions. This procedheikides
the linking of all derivatives used as hedges tec#jt assets and liabilities or specific commitrserr
prospective transactions. Furthermore, when stadimedge and thereafter, the extent to which thevatives
used in hedging transactions are effective in elating fluctuations to the market value or cashvfiocof the
hedged assets.

The fair values of derivatives used for hedgingppsges are disclosed in note 16. Changes to the ftagh
hedging reserve under Other comprehensive incomealigclosed in note 23. The total fair value of dind
derivatives is classified under non-current aseett®ong-term liabilities when the remaining hedgesbet has a
maturity over 12 months, or under current assethort-term liabilities when the residual matuitythe hedged
asset is less than 12 months. Derivatives helttdole are classified under current assets or saortdiabilities.
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Cash flow hedge

Derivative assets are initially recognised at ¢t value) as of the date of the relevant agregraed are then
measured at fair value.

The portion of change to the derivative’s fair \ealoonsidered effective and meeting the cash flodgimg
criteria is recognised in Statement of Comprehensicome. Profit or loss associated with the ndeetive
portion of change is directly recognised in theoime Statement, under “Financial expenses (inconat)-

The cumulative amount posted under Equity is temefl in the Income Statement to the periods ovéchwthe

hedged asset has affected period profit or lo§3®s profits or losses associated with the effegiegion of the
hedging of floating rate swaps is recognised inlttteme Statement under “Financial expenses (ingenmmet”.

However, when a prospective transaction to be tebdgsults in the recognition of a non-financialeagsuch as
reserves or fixed assets), then earnings and Ipssemusly posted in net equity are transferrednfEquity and
are accounted for at the original cost of suchtagdese amounts are ultimately charged to regluftsigh the
cost of sales in the case of reserves, and thrdegheciation in the case of tangible assets.

When a financial product matures or is sold, or whehedging relation no longer meets the critefihezige
accounting, the cumulative profits or losses postetthat time under Equity remain in Equity and e¥eognised
when the prospective transaction is ultimately @ash the Income Statement. When a prospectivesdrdion is
no longer expected to be made, the cumulativetgrofilosses posted under Equity are directly feared to the
Income Statement under “Other operating incomgiéazes) (net)".

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of acquisitimst and net realisable value. The cost is caledlasing the
weighted average cost method. The cost of end ptedand semi-finished inventories includes costledign,
materials, average working cost and a proportioth@fgeneral cost of production.

Investments in properties to which a constructiutidgtes aiming at a future sale are re-classifisdnventories at
book value at the balance sheet date. From noweynwill be calculated at the lowest value betwiéencost and
net realisable value. Financial expenses are wmhided in the acquisition cost of inventories. T realizable
value is estimated based on the stock’s curreesgaiice, within the framework of ordinary businass$vities,
less any possible selling expenses, wherever saaleaconcurs.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fatue and subsequently measured at amortized sosy the
effective interest method, except if the discountcome is not important, less provision for impann A
provision for impairment of trade receivables itabished when there is objective evidence thatGhaup will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due, etiog to the original terms of receivables.

Trade receivables comprise of commercial papersates payable from customers.

Serious problems that the customer encountergpdhsibility of bankruptcy or financial reorganizatiand the
inability of scheduled payments considered to idence that the receivable value must be impaired.amount
of the provision is the difference between the tssarrying value and the present value of estahdtiture cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest ratke Bmount of the provision is recognized as an resgpén the
income statement.
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2.15 Committed deposits

Committed deposits are cash equivalents not reagidjlable for use. These cash equivalents mapaaised by
the Group until a certain point of time or eventésached or occurs in the future. In the cases avbemmitted
deposits are expected to be used within one yean the date of the statement of financial posititiese are
classified as a short-term asset. However, if dreynot expected to be used within one year frarddte of the
statement of financial position, they are clasdifess a long-term asset. Committed deposits ardodest in a
separate row in the statement of financial posibohare taken into consideration together withhCaisd Cash
Equivalents and Time Deposits over 3 months whégulzing the gearing ratio.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight depand short-term investments of up to 3 moniith high
liquidity and low risk.

2.17  Share capital

The share capital includes the Company’s ordinheyes. Whenever, any Group company purchasesssbfre
the Company (Own shares), the consideration paiteducted from equity attributable to the Groupislity
holders until the shares are cancelled or dispo§etihe profit or loss from the sale of own shasesecognised
directly to equity.

Direct expenses for the issue of shares appeaf ety relevant income tax benefit, to the reductdequity.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair valuet of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings aresequently
stated at net book cost, using the effective isterate method. Any difference between the procéeds of
transaction costs) and the redemption value isgrized in the income statement over the periodhef t
borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Any borrowing expenses paid upon execution of nesdit agreements are recognized as borrowing ergens
provided that part or all of the new credit linewghdrawn. In this case, they are recorded asréubwrrowing
expenses until withdrawal is made. If the new bemgs are not used, in part or in all, these expsrare
included in prepaid expenses and are recognizpobiit or loss during the useful life of the relew&redit line.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Group has an unconditional right to dséttlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the ala sheet date.

2.19 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax for the financial year comprises currantl deferred taxation. Tax is recognised in treonme
statement, unless relevant to amounts recogniseth@r comprehensive income or directly in equitythis case,
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive iconequity, respectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordanctnlie tax legislation established as of the baaieet date in
the countries where the Group operates, and isgrésed as expense in the period during which preéis

(49) / (120)



ELLAKTOR SA

A Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
ELLAKTOR for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

generated. The management regularly evaluates #dsescwhere the applicable tax legislation requires
interpretation. Where necessary, estimates are fadee amounts expected to be paid to tax autbsri

Deferred income tax is determined using the ligbihethod on temporary differences arising betwnentax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgngunts, as shown in the financial statements. déferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises framitial recognition of an asset or liability in afrsaction, other
than a business combination, that at the time eftthnsaction affects neither the accounting ottdlRable gains
or losses. Deferred tax is determined using thedtes and laws in force as of the date of theroalaheet, and
expected to be in force when the deferred tax vabées will be due or deferred tax liabilities Wik repaid.

Deferred tax receivables are recognised to theneibat there could be future taxable gains tothegemporary
difference that gives rise to the deferred taxikeddes.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are offsdy if the offsetting of tax receivables and lidies is permitted
by law, and provided that deferred tax receivahbled liabilities are determined by the same taxaitihto the
tax paying entity or different entities, and théeimtion has been expressed to proceed to settlcloyewny of
offset.

2.20 Employee benefits

(@) Post-employment benefits

The employee benefits after their retirement ineldéfined contribution programs and defined bemeéigrams.
The accrued cost of defined contribution prograsngtognized as expense during the relevant period.

The liability that is reported in the Statemenfafancial Position with respect to this schemdéspresent value
of the liability for the defined benefit less tharfvalue of the scheme’s assets (if there are)samth the changes
that arise from any actuarial profit or loss ané #ervice cost. The commitment of the defined benef

calculated annually by an independent actuary thighuse of the projected unit credit method. Therest rate

on long-term Greek treasury bonds is used for distng purposes. Due to the current financial eimstances,

the European Central Bank bond curve was usedaitstEGreek government bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustméated on historical data which are less or maaa 0% of
the accumulated liability are posted to the incostegement over the average remaining service lbfethe
employees participating in the plan. The cost Fa&r $ervice time is directly recognized in the rissakcept for
the case where the scheme’s changes depend omgiieyees’ remaining service with the company. Inhsa
case the service cost is booked in the resultgubimstraight line method within the maturity peki

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmetgrisinated before the normal retirement date, logrwan
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchawogethfese benefits. The Group recognizes termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to @itberminating the employment of current employaesording

to a detailed formal plan without possibility ofthdrawal; or providing termination benefits as suteof an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefiiagadue more than 12 months after balance shatet dre
discounted.

In case of employment termination where the nunob@mployees to use such benefits cannot be detednthe
benefits are disclosed as contingent liability, & not accounted for.
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2.21 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration and ouditag litigations are recognised when an actuahllegy
assumed commitment exists as a result of past &wwhen settlement of such commitment will likebguire an
outflow of resources, and when the required amoantbe reliably estimated.

When concession agreements (note 2.24) includecoheessionaire’s contractual obligation to mainttia
infrastructure at a certain service level or restihre infrastructure to a certain state beforevdshig it to the
conceder at the end of the concession period, tlmug; as concessionaire, acknowledges and valuss th
obligation under IAS 37.

Provisions are recognised on a discounted basis Wieeeffect of the time value of money is sigmfit, using a
pre-tax rate which reflects current market assestsnef the time value of money and the risk spedii the
liability. When provisions are discounted, the gmse in provisions due to the lapse of time isgesed as a
financial expense. Provisions are reviewed on eath of financial statements and if an outflowwnids to settle
the obligation is unlikely, they are reversed ia thcome statement.

2.22 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the dellieor collectable price, after deduction of argcdunts.

The Group recognises revenue when this can békeliaeasured and it is probable that the economnefits of
the transaction will flow to the Group.

Revenue mainly comes from technical projects, dpeydeases or sale of property, generation anel alaénergy,
waste management, production and trade of quarpioducts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised wherGroup has transferred material risks and thenasvof
ownership to the purchaser.

Revenue and profit from construction contracts raeognised according to IAS 11 as described in 2028
below.

Revenue from operating leases is recognized irintt@me statement using the straight line methodnduthe
lease period. When the Group provides incentivatstclients, the cost of these incentives is gated through
the lease period with the straight line method d&dely of the income from the lease.

Income from the provision of services and real testaanagement are recorded in the period duringhwtiie
services are rendered, based on the stage of ciionpdd the service in relation to total servicese provided.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basiisguthe effective rate method. In case of impairmef
borrowings and receivables, interest income is gais®d using the rate which discounts future fldies
impairment purposes.

In the case where the Group acts as a representéttiis the commission and not the gross revehag is
accounted for as revenue.

Dividends are accounted for as income when the t@teceive payment is established.
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2.23 Contracts for projects under construction

A construction contract is a contract specificalggotiated for the construction of an asset orrabtoation of
assets that are closely interrelated or interdegmnioh terms of their design, technology and fuorctor their
ultimate purpose or use.

Expenses associated with construction contracteeamgnised in the period in which they are inadirre

When the result of a construction contract canmotdiably assessed, only the expenses realizedpegcted to
be collected are recognised as income from theacmnt

When the result of a construction contract candbiably assessed, such contract’'s income and ezpenifl be
recognised during the term of contract as incontk edpenses, respectively. The Group uses the pgagmeiof
completion method to estimate the appropriate amofinncome and expense to be recognised for aicert
period. The stage of completion is calculated thasethe expenses which have been realised upetbalance
sheet date compared to the total estimated expdosesch contract. If it is possible that theatatost of the
contract will exceed total income, then anticipdtexbes are directly recognised in profit and Esgexpenses.

In order to determine the cost realised by the @rthe period, any expenses relating to futuregas&luded in
the contract are exempted and presented as warogress. The total realised cost and recognisefit p loss
for each contract is compared with sequential icestill the end of the financial year.

Where the realised expenses plus the net profis (lesses) recognised exceed the sequential irsyoibe
occurring difference is presented as a receivabl@ tonstruction contract customers in the acctlirdde and
other receivables”. When the sequential invoiceseed the realised expenses plus the net profi (Esses)

recognised, the balance is presented as a liabiyards construction contract customers in the@aec“Trade
and other payables”.

2.24  Service Concession Arrangements

With regard to Service Concession Arrangements &der public sector body contracts with a privgierator
for the provision of services, the Group applieRIIE 12, provided that the following two conditioaiee met:

a) the grantor controls or determines which sesstbe operator should provide to whom and at wprite, and

b) the grantor controls any other significant ietgs in the infrastructure upon completion of tl@oession
arrangement period.

In accordance with IFRIC 12, such infrastructures r@ot recognised as tangible assets of the opetaibas a
Financing Contribution of the State under finanass$ets (financial asset model), and/ or as a GsimeRight
under intangible assets (intangible asset modepedding on the contractually agreed terms.

i) Guaranteed receipt from grantor (Financial Assebdel)

As an operator, the Group recognizes a financisgtas the extent that it has an unconditional reattial right to
receive cash or another financial asset from thatgr for the construction services.

In the case of service concession contracts, teeatqr has the unconditional right to receive dashe grantor
contractually guarantees to pay the operator:

a) specified or determinable amounts, or

b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts receifredh users of the public service and specific aiedainable
amounts provided for in the Service Concession @oht
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The financial assets resulting from the applicatbh~RIC 12 are recorded in the Statement of FirerPosition
as “Guaranteed receipt from grantor” and recognaashamortised cost based on the effective ratbadealso
deducting any impairment losses. The effective imtjual to the average weighted capital costiferoperator,
unless otherwise stipulated in the Concession @otitr

ii) Concession Right (Intangible Asset Model)

As an operator, the Group recognises an intangibdet to the extent that it receives a right (keg¢rio charge
users of the public service. The right to chargersief a public service does not constitute anaamed right to
collect cash, since the amounts collected depenghether the public uses such service.

Intangible assets resulting from the applicationF&IC 12 are recorded under Intangible AssethienStatement
of Financial Position, analysed as a “ConcessioghRiand valued at acquisition cost less depremiati
Depreciation is carried out using the straight limethod during the Concession Contract.

iii) Guaranteed receipt from grantor and Concessiight (Mixed Model)

When the service concession contract anticipatas tthe operator will be remunerated for the comsion
services partly with a financial asset and partithwan intangible asset, the Group recognises eastponent of
its remuneration separately, according to the aljGuaranteed receipt from grantor and ConcessightRi

The Group recognises and accounts for the reveandscosts associated with the construction or wlgga
services in accordance with 1AS 11 (note 2.23)leviévenues and costs associated with operatimicesrare
recognised and accounted for in accordance withll&fote 2.22).

IFRIC 12, and the Mixed Model (Guaranteed receipinf grantor and Concession Right) in particulapligg to
MOREAS, a company that has undertaken the conairjabperation and exploitation of the Corinth-Talis-
Kalamata motorway for 30 years (until 2038). Theastouction period of said project has been contedlst
extended (with the fault of the State) by 14.5 rhertb 16 November 2013, while the determinatiorfiucther
extension to the construction period by the indéeen engineer to 2014 is currently at the stageesdlution,
and construction is anticipated to take place withe new construction schedule.

The concession right to the intangible assets canasly from MOREAS SA and ATTIKI ODOS SA. The lait

has undertaken the operation of the 65km long dl@setorway comprised of two sections, the Elefsitavros-
Spata Free Avenue and the Western Ymittos Aversi@plerating period will be completed in 2024.

2.25 Distribution of dividends

The distribution of dividends to equity holderstbé parent company is recognised as liability wHistribution
is approved by the General Meeting of the sharedeld

2.26 Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at th&ivalue where there is a reasonable assuraatéhid grant
will be received and the Group will comply with atipulated conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferredracognized in the income statement to match thi@mthe
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants regarding the purchase of fixeséta or the construction of projects are includddng term

liabilities as deferred state grants and are reizegnas income through profit and loss using thaigt line
method according to the asset expected useful life.
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Grants received to finance Concession Contractprasented in accordance with IFRIC 12 as a reaiudt the
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (note 2.24).

2.27 Non-current assets available for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets alafl@bsale and stated at the lower of carrying amand fair
value less costs to sell if their carrying amountestimated to be recovered by the Group througiala
transaction rather than through their use.

2.28 Trade and other liabilities

Trade liabilities are usually obligations to makeyment for products or services obtained durindoperance of
typical commercial activity by suppliers. The acotsupayable are classified as short-term liabditiE the
payment is due within not more than one year. if tliey are classified as long-term liabilitiesadle liabilities
are recognized initially at fair value and are nuead subsequently at net book cost by the useccéffiective rate
method.

2.29 Reclassifications and rounding of items

The numbers contained in these financial statentemis been rounded to thousand Euros. Possiblereliites
that may occur are due to rounding.

In the comparables of 31.12.2011, in the BalanaeeBhhe amount of €47,943 thousand was recladsifoam
Cash and cash equivalents to Committed deposismiar reclassification was made in the cash fldarsthe
comparative period 01.01.2011-31.12.2011 where Committed deposits shows a change to the use 1413
thousand, and Cash and cash equivalents at yeahate been reduced by €34,796 thousand. As & ddihe
above changes, Cash and cash equivalents at yetappear reduced by €47,943 thousand.

In addition, in FY 2011, the amount of €4,100 thent representing impairment of investment properdss
reclassified from Administrative expenses to Othyerating expenses, for comparability purposes.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to several financial riskshsas market risks (macroeconomic conditions inGneek
market, changes to prices for the purchase of prgp@w materials, such as iron and cement, foreixchange
risk, interest rate risk, etc.), credit risk arglidity risk. Financial risks are associated with following financial
instruments:trade receivables, cash and cash denisa suppliers and other payables and borrowiide
accounting principles referred to the above finahicistruments are presented in Note 2.

Risk management is monitored by the finance diwisiand more specifically by the central Financial
Management Division of the Group, and is determibgdlirectives, guidelines and rules approved leyBbard

of Directors with regard to rate risk, credit rigke use of derivative and non-derivative instrutegand the
short-term investment of cash.

€)) Market Risk

Market risk is related to the business sectorsgaudjraphical areas in which the Group operatescatidely, the
Group is exposed to the risk resulting from a cleatgythe conditions prevailing in the domestic dmakign

construction sector, a change to raw material priaechange to the value of properties and iteléaess, along
with risks associated with the completion of prégein undertaken by joint ventures. The Group’satpents
are closely monitoring the trends in the individagrkets in which it operates and plan actionspf@mpt and
efficient adaptation to the individual markets’ neincumstances.

(i) Macroeconomic conditions in Greece

The macroeconomic conditions in Greece and thenfila position of the Greek State remain challeggamd
have negatively affected the Group and Company abipeis (concession projects put on hold, limited
construction activity in Greece, lack of resourttie§inance new projects, higher cost to refinanxisting loans,
etc). The current financial crisis in Cyprus mayéia negative impact on Greece, although posiityesswere
seen recently in Greece (commitment of the coalijovernment to continue with the reforms to rextre the
public sector and strengthen competitiveness, imgnent of fiscal figures, etc).

In this backdrop, the Group continues to pursue ghrategy of geographic dispersion of operationd an
strengthens its international presence. Despitechizdlenges (mainly lack of support from internatb credit
institutions, etc), the Group undertakes projedisoad, particularly in the Balkans (e.g. FYROM, aita,
Bulgaria, Serbia, Croatia, etc) and in Qatar.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has been active in foreign countries,timas the Middle East and the Balkans (RomanialgBria,

Albania, etc.). With respect to its activities imetMiddle East, the Group is exposed to foreigrharge risk
relating mainly to the exchange rates of local encres (e.g. AED, QAR, RON, etc.) and the US Dolduro

exchange rate. It should be clarified that the arge rates of certain currencies (mainly local engies in

Middle East countries) are linked to the US DolRroceeds are made in local currency and in USaboknd
despite the fact that the larger portion of thet emsl expenses are made in the same currencyeigriagxchange
risk exists for the remaining part, which was rign#icant in the financial year. Foreign exchanmgk, where it

is considered to be significant and worthy of beheglged, will be hedged by the use of derivativevéod

contracts. These derivatives are priced at th&irvielues and are recognized as a receivable @bdity in the

financial statements.
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(iii) Cash flow risk and risk arising from fair ua¢ change due to a change in interest rates

The Group holds significant interest-bearing assetsprising sight deposits, short-term bank depasiid bonds
of the European Investment Bank. The Group is esgbds risk from fluctuations of interest ratessang from
bank loans with floating rates. The Group is expose floating interest rates prevailing in the nmerkwhich
affect both the financial position and the cashwfioCost of debt may increase as a result of theaages thus
creating losses or it can decrease on the occwmanenexpected events. It should be noted thaftubtuation in
interest rates in recent years has been causedryifoy the increase in spreads due to the ladiqaidity in the
Greek banking market and the estimated risk of IGoeenpanies, and to a lesser extent by the incrieakase
interest rates (e.g. Euribor).

As regards long-term borrowings, the Group’s Mamagyaét systematically and constantly monitors interate
fluctuations and assesses the need to take relpeaitions to hedge risks, when and if necessarthe context
of risk offsetting, Group companies may enter ies¢iswap contracts and other derivatives.

A significant part of the Group’s loans are signeith floating rates and the largest part of Groaanis is in
Euros. As a consequence interest rate risk is pitynaderived from the fluctuations of Euro interasttes and
secondly from the interest rate fluctuations oreotturrencies in which bank loans exist (US DollED, Qatari
riyal, etc).

The Group constantly monitors interest rate tremdswell as the duration and nature of subsidiafieancing
needs. Decisions on loan terms as well as theiopléetween variable and fixed interest rate anesictered
separately on a case by case basis.

(iv) Price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk relating to thetfiation of the fair value of its financial assatsilable for sale
which can affect the financial statements, as esegains or losses from fair value adjustmentshbilrecorded

as an reserve under equity until these assetolf@sdesignated as impaired. It should be poiotgdhat, if the
closing price of ELDORADO GOLD on 31/12/2012 wasreased (or decreased) by 5%, the reserves awilabl
for sale would be increased (or decreased, respégtby €3,9 million.

(b) Credit Risk

The Group has developed policies in order to enthaetransactions are conducted with customessufficient

credit rating. Due to the conditions prevailingtie market, credit line approval results from &#dr procedure
that involves all senior management levels. Theu@roas been monitoring its debtors’ balances vargfally,

and where receivables with credit risk are idegtifithey are assessed in accordance with establxhieies and
procedures and an appropriate impairment provisiéormed.

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and filad@iative contracts potentially involve credik as well. In
such cases, the risk may arise from counterpaitiyréato fulfil their obligations towards the Groum order to
manage this credit risk, the Group sets limitshte degree of exposure for each financial institytigithin the
scope of the policies of the Board f Directors.

(c) Liquidity risk

Given the current crisis of the Greek State andGheek financial sector, the liquidity risk is haghand the
management of cash flows is urgent. To manageidbédity risk, the Group budgets and regularly ntors its
cash flows and ensures that cash on hand is al&iliaisluding the options of intra-company loans amused
credit lines to meet its needs (e.g. financingrauotee letters, etc).
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During the year, the Group achieved the refinan@fhdoans maturing in 2012, while in Q1 2013 loafs
AKTOR SA and YIALOU EMPORIKI SA were subject to Igsterm refinancing. Further, loans to the parent
ELLAKTOR SA, AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA and REDS SA aterently negotiated for refinancing.

Group liquidity is regularly monitored by the Mamagent. The table below presents an analysis détbep and
Company financial liability maturities as of 31 [@eaber 2012 and 2011 respectively:

All amounts in EUR thousand.
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31 December 2012
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 year Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 559,862 4,720 17,874 551 583,007
Financial leases 593 1,219 344 - 2,156
Financial derivatives 17,504 17,411 43,972 80,011 158,898
Borrowings 624,056 236,073 502,213 723,170 2,085,513

31 December 2011
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 year Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 490,847 14,141 7,358 550 512,896
Financial leases 127 78 42 - 248
Financial derivatives 10,039 21,701 29,708 66,361 127,808
Borrowings 556,240 357,536 588,091 764,696 2,266,562

COMPANY FIGURES

31 December 2012
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 1,956 - 866 2,822
Borrowings 97,118 91,475 77,709 266,302

31 December 2011
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 3,229 - 217 3,445
Borrowings 95,516 30,857 141,923 268,296

The above amounts are presented in the contracldiscounted cash flows and therefore are naivakpnt to
the respective amounts shown in the financial statgés with respect to Supplier and other liab#itiEinancial
lease commitments, Financial derivatives, and Loans
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The Trade and Other liabilities breakdown is exeei®f Advances from customers, Amounts due toausts
for contract work, and Social security and othaeta

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis of Group Borrowngs

A reasonable and possible interest rate changerdnty five base points (0.25% increase/decrease)diead to
a decrease / increase in profit before tax for 2@IRother variables being equal, by €1,889 (2041,988
thousand). It should be noted that the aforemeatiarhange in earnings before taxes is calculatetieofioating
rate loan balances at year end and does not inthedpositive effect of interest income from caslpasits and
cash equivalents.

At a parent company level, a reasonable and pessilbérest rate change by twenty five base poidi8506
increase/decrease) would lead to the decreasedaise in profit before tax for 2012, all other ahtes being
equal, by €443 thousand (2011: €486 thousandhdtld be noted that the aforementioned changevrinrgs
before taxes is calculated on the floating rat@ lbalances at year end and does not include thiévposffect of
interest income from cash deposits and cash eauniigl

(d) Other risks — additional tax charges

In previous years, the Greek State imposed extiganyl tax contributions that had a significant effen the
results of the Group and the Company. Pursuantate £093/2012, during the current year a special lgas
imposed on the turnover of companies operatingha production of electricity using RES (for the ipdr
1/7/2012-30/6/2014) which was charged to the Greuesults (note 40.9). Given the current financaldition
of the Greek State, additional tax measures maympéemented, which could have a negative effectttomn
financial position of the Group.

3.2 Cash management

Capital management is aiming in the safeguard ef ¢bntinuity of operations of Group companies, the
achievement of its developing plans along with @oaredit rating

To evaluate the Group’s creditworthiness, the Gobiet Debt should be evaluated (i.e. total long) strort-term
loans with banks less cash and cash equivaleras)ever excluding non-recourse debt and respectgé and
cash equivalents connected to the financing of seHinanced projects.

The Group’s net debt as of 31.12.2012 and 31.12.,2@bpectively, is detailed in the following table

All amounts in EUR million. CONSOLIDATED FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Short term bank borrowings 552.8 478.0
Long-term bank borrowings 1,203.6 1,413.6
Total borrowings 1,756.5 1,891.6
Less: Non recourse debt 999.1 1,023.3
Subtotal of Corporate Debt (except non recoursésjleb 757.4 868.3
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts 244.1 272.4
Net Corporate Debt/Cash 513.2 596.0
Total Group Equity 1,255.2 1,315.0
Total Capital 1,768.4 1,911.0
Gearing Ratio 0.290 0.312
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Note:

(1) Committed deposits (€81.8 million), Time dep@siver 3 months (€101.1 million) and bonds heldhaturity (€158.7 million) have been

added to total Cash and cash equivalents for 202Q6(8 million), and cash and cash equivalents,naitted deposits, time deposits over 3
months and bonds held to maturity which corresptmaeon recourse debt (€804.3 million in total) hdeen deducted. Respectively,
Committed deposits (€47.9 million) and bonds heldnaturity (182.6 million) have been added to toe&dh and cash equivalents for 2011
(€806.2 million), and the cash and cash equivaleastsmitted deposits and bonds held to maturityesponding to non recourse debt (total:
€764.3 million) have been deducted.

The gearing ratio as of 31.12.2012 for the Grougdkulated at 29,0% (31.12.2011: 31.2%). Thisorédi
calculated as the quotient of net debt to totalleyma capital (i.e. total equity plus net debt).

At a parent company level, the total borrowing®®31.12.2012 amounted to €251,3 million (31.122@1244.0
million), representing long-term loans borrowings€61.6 million (31.12.2011: €159.3 million) ankost-term
borrowings of €89.7 million (31.12.2011: €84.7 aiff).

The Group’s cash on hand (including Committed diégjoas of 31.12.2012 stood at €788.7 million (212011
€854.1 million). Furter, receivables include tioheposits over 3 months standing at €101.1 milliddoreover,

the amount of €158,7 appears in financial assdtstbematurity (31.12.2011: €182.6 million). Finglequity as
of 31.12.2012 stood at €1.255,2 million (31.122041,315.0 million).

3.3 Fair value determination

The financial assets measured at fair value alseobalance sheet date are classified under ttanfiolg levels, in
accordance with the method used for determininig fhi value:

- Level 1: for assets traded in an active market amose fair value is determined by the market gwic
(unadjusted) of similar assets.

- Level 2: for assets whose fair value is deterohibg factors related to market data, either diye@trices) or
indirectly (prices derivatives).

- Level 3: for assets whose fair value is not dateed by observations from the market, but is nyabdsed on
internal estimates.

The following table presents the Group’s finaneissets and liabilities at fair value as of 31 Ddwem®2012 and
31 December 2011:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31 December 2012

Amounts in thousand EUR CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit aogs| 3 - - 3
Financial assets available for sale 144,518 - 74,81 149,335
Financial liabilities

Derivatives as hedging instruments - 147,874 - 147,874
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31 December 2011

Amounts in thousand EUR CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit aoss| 3 - 3
Financial assets available for sale 280,058 - 4,793 284,851
Financial liabilities

Derivatives as hedging instruments - 115,474 - 115,474

The following table presents the changes to Levfal@hcial assets for the financial years ende@biecember
2012 and 31 December 2011:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
LEVEL 3 LEVEL 3
Financial Financial
assets assets
available for available for

sale TOTAL sale TOTAL
At year start 4,793 4,793 6,983 6,983
Additions for the year 23 23 3 3
(Impairment) - - (2,193) (2,193)
At year end 4,817 4,817 4,793 4,793

The fair value of financial assets traded on aatimey markets (e.g. derivatives, stocks, bondsyahfunds), is
determined on the basis of the published pricedlabla at the balance sheet date.An “active” moneyrket
exists where there are readily available and relyutavised prices, which are published by the Istowarket,
money broker, sector, rating organization or suigerg organization. These financial tools are ideld in level
1. This level includes mainly the Group investmémtELDORADO GOLD (which acquired EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS LTD -EGU), which is listed on the ToronBtock Exchange and has been classified as acfalan
asset available for sale.

The fair value of financial assets traded on activeney markets (e.g. derivatives traded outsideravative
market) are determined by measurement methods Ipaisedrily on available information on transactiarasried
out on active markets and using less the estinmsete by the economic entity. These financial tao¢sincluded
in level 2.

Where measurement methods are not based on aeaiteoket information, the financial tools are intgd in
level 3.

The methods used by the Group for financial assetsurement include:
» Market prices or negotiators’ prices for simiessets.

» The fair value of interest rate risk hedges, Whecdetermined as the current value of future ¢asts.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments of thenanagement

Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluatedare based on historic data and expectationfufiore
events, as considered reasonable under the ciranoest

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Annual financial statements along with the accomppannotes and reports may involve certain judgmentd
calculations that refer to future events regardipgrations, developments, and financial performawicéhe
Company and the Group. Despite the fact that seshraptions and calculations are based on the lbasthye
knowledge of the Company's and the Group's managemih regard to current conditions and actiomg t
actual results may eventually differ from calcudag and assumptions taken into consideration imptaparation
of the Company's and the Group's annual finantiéé¢sents.

Assessments and assumptions that involve impoaritdabf causing future material adjustments toaksets’ and
liabilities” book values:

(a) Estimates regarding the accounting conductosfstruction projects according to IAS 11 “Constiioct
Contracts”

() Realization of income from construction contracisdxl on estimation of the percentage completion of
the project.

For the estimation of the percentage completiothefconstruction projects in progress according to
which the Group recognizes income from constructommtracts, the Management estimates the
expected expenses to be made until the completitregrojects.

(i)  Requests for compensation for additional work niaeleond the contractual agreement.

The Group’s Management estimates the amount toebeived for additional work and recognizes
income based on the percentage of completion a@gdserit considers that the collection of this antoun
is probable.

(b) Provisions

(i) Potential provision for landscape restoration

In accordance with article 9 of Ministerial Decisid726/2003, companies operating wind farms
should remove the facilities and restore the laaplsaipon termination of operation of the Power flan

(i)  Income tax

Estimates are required in determining the provis@rnincome taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determipatis uncertain. Where the final tax outcome oféhe
matters is different from the amounts that wergialty recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkmiowhich such determination is made.
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4.2

(iii)

Provisions for disputed cases

There are pending disputed cases relating to tbefgsmhe Management assesses the outcome of these
case and, where a negative outcome is possibleGithep forms the required provisions. Provisions,
where required, are calculated on the basis of dimeent value of the estimates made by the
management of the cost to be incurred for settlimgexpected liabilities as of the Balance Shett.da
The current value is based on a number of fachaisrequires the exercise of judgment.

(c)Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments not listedan active market is determined using valuation
methods which require using assumptions and judtgng@he Group makes assumptions based mostly
on current market conditions in the preparatiofir@ncial statements.

(d) Estimate of useful life and residual value sdets

Judgment is required to determine the useful lifd ¢he residual life of PPE and intangible assets
which are recognised either at acquisition or thfobusiness combinations. The estimate of an asset’
useful life is a matter of judgment based on theupts experience with similar assets. The residual
value and useful life of an asset are revieweceastl annually, taking into account new facts amd th
prevailing market conditions.

(e) Post-employment benefits

Retirement benefit obligations are calculated at discounted present value of future compensation
benefits to employees which will be earned at yaat, on the assumption that such benefits will be
equally earned by the employees during a workingoge The obligations for the above benefits are
calculated on the basis of financial and actudayglotheses which require that the Management makes
assumptions regarding discount rates, salary isereates, mortality and disability rates, retiremen
ages and other factors. Due to the long-term natfisaid provisions, such hypotheses are subjeat to
high degree of uncertainty.

Considerable judgments of the Management on the apipation of the accounting
principles

Distinction between investments in property andetsused by the Group.

The Group determines whether an asset is charaeteds investment property. In order to form the
relevant assumption, the Group considers the extemthich a property generates cash flows, for the
most part independently of the rest of the assetsed by the company. Assets used by the Group
generate cash flows which are attributed not omlthe properties but also to other assets usedrdith
the production procedure or to the purchasing ghocee

Impairment of investment properties

Investment in property is examined for possibleamment when event or changes in conditions indicat
that their book value may not be recoverable. Witthenrecoverable value is less than their carrying
value, investment properties are depreciated tor¢loeverable amount. The Group assesses to its
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discretion whether the indications for the impainmef an investment in property are substantial and
objective.
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5 Information by segment

As of 31 December 2012, the Group was mainly opeyah 6 business segments:

Construction & Quarries
Real estate development
Concessions

Wind farms

Environment

Other activities

The Chairman, the CEO and other executive memifettseoBoard of Directors are the persons respoadin
making business decisions. Having determined thexating segments, the above persons review thenaite
financial reports to evaluate the Company and Grpepiormance and to make decisions regarding fund
allocation. The Board of Directors uses varioutedia to evaluate Group activities, which vary degirg on the
nature, the maturity and particularities of eaedfi with regard to any risks, current cash needsiaformation
about products and markets.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

The results for each segment for 2012 are as fellow

Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms  Environment Other Total

Total gross sales per segment 907,120 5,881 233,18 31,787 77,617 1,444 1,257,032
Intra-group sales (16,880) - (313) - (6,606) (416) (24,215)
Net sales 890,240 5,881 232,870 31,787 71,011 81,02,232,817
Operating results 22,783 (2,421) 70,673 13,167 am (5,248) 114,632
Share of profit/ (loss) from associates 11 (315) 23 2,497 (@) 65 21 2,288
Financial income 32 6,391 205 33,174 102 1,011 2 3 40,915
Financial (expenses) 32 (16,232) (2,314) (57,395 (8,547) (1,661)  (13,769)  (99,917)
Profit/ (Loss) before taxes 12,627 (4,507) 48,948 4,721 15,094 (18,965) 57,919
Income tax 34 (7,168) (1,035) (11,418) (946) 488 (230)  (25,647)
Net profit/ (Ioss) 5,458 (5,542) 37,530 3,775 462 (19,195) 32,272

The results for each segment for 2011 are as fstlow

Real
Constructio estate
n& developm Wind Environmen
Note Quarries ent Concessions farms t Other Total

Total gross sales per segment 862,231 3,126 Q76,9 25,364 82,059 4,345 1,254,122
Intra-group sales (31,978) (185) (8,116) (620) ,618) (289) (49,803)
Net sales 830,253 2,941 268,881 24,744 73,443 564,0 1,204,319
Operating results 49,452 (1,508) 82,419 11,209 ,GHD (11,496) 150,757
Share of profit/ (loss) from
associates 11 (4,025) 77) 2,398 3 328 2,442 1,064
Financial income 32 4,297 270 33,906 302 1,057 68 8 40,700
Financial (expenses) 32 (17,951) (1,158) (62560  (6,750) (2,020) (12,049) (102,487)
Profit/ (Loss) before taxes 31,773 (2,472) 56,164 4,759 20,046 (20,235) 90,034
Income tax 34 6,201 (1,432) (15,224) (1,259) &4)8 (571) (17,153)
Net profit/ (loss) 37,973 (3,904) 40,939 3,500 189 (20,806) 72,881
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Other information per segment through profit areklas of 31 December 2012 is:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Depreciation of PPE 6 (24,851) (30) (2,324) (9)82 (4,077) (1,278) (42,382)
Depreciation of intangible assets 7 (112) 1) ,@@9) (617) (2,444) - (63,253)
Depreciation of investment property 8 (161) (B19 - - - (111) (1,465)
Impairment 30,31 - (2,340) - - (1,144) - (3,484)
Amortisation of grants 25 58 - 211 2,687 917 - 3,873

Other information per segment through profit areklas of 31 December 2011 is:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions farms Environment Other Total
Depreciation of PPE 6 (30,298) (34) (3,446) (8)59 (4,021) (1,894)  (47,290)
Depreciation of intangible assets 7 (116) 1) ,133) (375) (2,446) - (61,714)
Depreciation of investment property 8 - (417) - - - (111) (527)
Impairment 30,31 - (4,247) (2,193) - - (31) (6,371)
Amortisation of grants 25 22 - 211 2,138 1,136 - 3,506

Inter-segment transfers and transactions are ehiete under the normal commercial terms and caust
similar to those applicable for transactions witinalated third parties.

Assets and liabilities of segments as of 31 Decer2b&2 are as follows:

Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total

Assets (less Investments in associates) 1,375,522 167,878 2,151,236 270,292 167,002 86,875218,805
Investments in associates 11 2,337 - 31,211 3,539 4,253 93,550 134,891
Total Assets 1,377,859 167,878 2,182,446 273,831 171,255 180,42,353,695
Liabilities 919,446 40,808 1,624,666 199,665 78,543 235,408,098,536
Investments in PPE, intangible assets, and

investment property 6,7,8 18,496 4,230 45,215 5,6 1,432 486 95,547
Prepayments for long-term leases 14 - - 11,355 1 - - 11,355

Assets and liabilities of segments as of 31 Decer2b&l are as follows:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Real
Constructio estate
n& developm Wind Environmen
Note Quarries ent Concessions farms t Other Total

Assets (less Investments in associates) 1,378,754 175,118 2,153,569 240,736 167,243 107,29%,222,718
Investments in associates 11 1,159 - 31,738 3,541 5,922 93,504 135,863
Total Assets 1,379,912 175,118 2,185,308 244,277 173,165 200,804,358,581
Liabilities 877,708 38,062 1,613,342 174,027 78,661 261,7683,043,568
Investments in PPE, intangible assets, and

investment property 6,7,8 4,213 18,906 71,539 29,0 660 58 124,417
Prepayments for long-term leases

(additions) 14 - - 9,772 36 - - 9,807
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The Group has also expanded its activities abrbagarticular, the Group is active in the Gulf ctigs and
more specifically in the United Arab Emirates, Qateuwait and Oman, as well as in other countrgh as
Germany, Italy, Cyprus, Romania, Bulgaria, Albailarbia and Cameroon. Total sales are allocatetegam as

follows:

1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Greece 947,682 937,629
Gulf countries — Middle East 77,353 119,745
Other countries abroad 207,783 146,945
1,232,817 1,204,319

Non-current assets, save financial assets andrddfeax receivables, are allocated per region l&mAfs:

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11

Greece 1,644,127 1,629,681
Gulf countries — Middle East 11,500 18,734
Other countries abroad 80,401 85,199
1,736,029 1,733,613

Out of the sales made in Greece, the amount of,8233housand for 2012 and the amount of €438 ,084stand
for 2011 come from the State, including Public igtiCompanies, Municipalities, etc.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1 January 2011

Foreign exchange differences
Disposal of participation in JVs
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary
Additions except for leasing

Disposals
Impairment

Transfer from Intangible Assets

Reclassifications from PPE under construction

Transfer to Prepayments for long-term leases

31 December 2011

1 January 2012
Foreign exchange differences

Disposal of subsidiaries/ reduction of % in JVs

Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary
Additions except for leasing
Additions with leasing

Disposals

Impairment

Transfer to Investments in Property

Reclassifications from PPE under construction

31 December 2012

Accumulated Depreciation

1 January 2011

Foreign exchange differences
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Foreign exchange differences
Depreciation for the year

Transfer to Investments in Property
Disposals

31 December 2012

Net book value as of 31 December 2011

Net book value as of 31 December 2012

Leased assets included in above data under firldeasing:

Cost — Capitalised financial leases
Accumulated Depreciation
Net book value

Furniture

Land & Transportation Mechanical PPE under
buildings equipment equipment & gther construction
Note equipment Total
163,629 43,314 414,452 42,092 83,60 747,090
198 29 1,172 578 - 1,976
(75) (210) (932) 4) - (1,221)
12,644 1,793 - - - 14,438
975 2,164 2,016 1,943 29,835 36,933
(783) (4,779) (29,798) (439) (132) (35,930)
30 - - 47 - - 47)
- - - - 347 347
18 - 74,846 - (74,864) -
- - - - (3,270) (3,270)
176,605 42,311 461,709 44,170 5135, 760,315
176,605 42,311 461,709 44,170 3%,51 760,315
(704) (121) (498) (373) ) (1,697)
- (110) (434) (5) (517) (1,066)
16 - 8,418 - 985 9,420
1,096 7,582 9,294 0,2 29,244 48,415
- - 2,400 - - 2,400
(1,265) (3,419) (12,751) (7,793) (1,514) (26,743)
30 (1,144) - - - - (1,144)
8 (18,907) - - - - (18,907)
839 - 29,383 - (30,222) -
156,536 46,243 497,521 37,199 4933, 770,993
(17,353) (28,471) (191,957) (29,971 - (267,752)
(180) (44) (1,123) (592) - (1,940)
30 (4,825) (4,651) (31,704) (6,111) - (47,290)
97 3,845 23,900 412 - 28,254
(22,262) (29,321) (200,884) (88)2 - (288,729)
(22,262) (29,321) (200,884) (36,p62 - (288,729)
166 103 442 311 - 1,022
30 (4,937) (4,808) (29,705) (2,932) - (42,382)
1,975 - - - - 1,975
499 2,992 10,033 7,218 - 20,742
(24,559) (31,034) (220,114) (82)6 - (307,371)
154,343 92,9 260,825 7,909 35,519 471,586
131,978 16,2 277,407 5,535 33,493 463,622
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Transportation Mechanical Transportation Mechanical
equipment equipment Total equipment equipment Total
250 6,426 6,676 250 4,026 4,276
(231) (2,696) (2,927) 122 (1,830) (2,051)
19 3,730 3,749 29 2,196 2,225
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COMPANY FIGURES

1 January 2011
Additions except for leasing
31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Additions except for leasing
Disposals

31 December 2012

Accumulated Depreciation
1 January 2011
Depreciation for the year
31 December 2011

1 January 2012
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

31 December 2012

Net book value as of 31 December 2011

Net book value as of 31 December 2012

No liens exist on fixed assets.

Note

30

30

Furniture
Land & Transportation ~ Mechanical & other
buildings equipment equipment equipment Total
3,217 39 82 1,787 5,126
- - - 17 17
3,217 39 82 1,805 5,143
3,217 39 82 1,805 5,143
- - - 2 2
- (34) - - (34)
3,217 5 82 1,806 5,111
171) (28) (52) (1,471) (1,721)
(58) 6] )] (129)  q19
(228) (33) (58) (1,600)  (1,919)
(228) (33) (58) (1,600)  (1,919)
(58) @ M (1200  qu8
- 29 - - 29
(286) (5) (65) (1,721)  (2,076)
2,989 7 24 052 3,224
2,931 - 18 6 8 3,034
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7 Intangible assets

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Software Concession Goodwill User Other Total
right licence

Cost
1 January 2011 4,159 1,178,513 44,084 19,564 2,904 1,249,223
Foreign exchange differences 18 - - - 17
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - - 523 2116 - 2,684
Additions 209 68,381 - - 1 68,591
Disposals (46) - (20) (56)
Transfer to PPE - - (347) (347)
31 December 2011 4,339 1,246,893 44,608 21,724 485 1,320,112
1 January 2012 4,339 1,246,893 44,608 21,724 2,548 1,320,112
Foreign exchange differences (21) - - - - (21)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - - 5,852 5,852
Additions 230 42,682 - 68 42,980
Disposals (244) - - - - (244)
31 December 2012 4,303 1,289,575 44,608 27,576 18,6 1,368,678
Accumulated Depreciation
1 January 2011 (3,963) (160,213) (1,125) (180%1)
Foreign exchange differences (21) - - - (21)
Depreciation for the year (214) (61,130) (359) 11)( (61,714)
Disposals 46 - - - 47
31 December 2011 (4,152) (221,343) (359) (1,135) (226,989)
1 January 2012 (4,152) (221,343) (359) (1,135)  226,989)
Foreign exchange differences 14 - - - - 14
Depreciation for the year (226) (62,416) - (601) 10)( (63,253)
Disposals 235 - - - - 235
31 December 2012 (4,129) (283,758) - (960)  (1,146) (289,993)
Net book value as of 31 December 2011 187 1,028,55 44,608 21,365 1,412 1,093,123
Net book value as of 31 December 2012 175 1,005,81 44,608 26,616 1,470 1,078,685

For acquisitions that took place during the yeat12Ghe estimates of fair values of assets andlitiab of the
acquired businesses and the resulting goodwill fieadized, as required by IFRS 3. Specifically:

a) The goodwill of €523 thousand was finalised heiit amending the amount initially calculated, whiesulted
from the consolidation of DOAL SA with the full nietd, following the acquisition of the remaining 769
subsidiary HELECTOR SA.

b) In relation to the goodwill of €2,161 thousanchieh resulted from the consolidation of EOLOS
MAKEDONIAS SA with the method of full consolidatipriollowing the acquisition of the remaining 67% by
subsidiary ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA, an equalent intangible asset was recognised (without
amending the amount initially calculated) as “Licehy with a pro rata decrease of the initially rgoised
goodwill.

Comparative figures were adjusted for the aboveghs.

The increase of €5,852 thousand seen in the Licisndee to the consolidation of ILIOSAR SA andstssidiary
SOLAR OLIVE SA acquired in Q4 2012 by BIOSAR PV PFELCT MANAGEMENT LTD for €5,800 thousand.
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Additions include Additions from capitalised inteteof €15,591 thousand of subsidiary MOREAS SA
(31.12.2011: €16,082 thousand).

No change was brought to the intangible assetseoparent company over the current year.

Impairement test for goodwill

The goodwill relates mainly to the operating segnodrconstruction and quarries, which has beengthesed as
cash generating unit for the impairment test penéat. Such goodwill amounts to € 41.8 million.

The recoverable amount of the above mentioned gasérating unit has been determined based on vialuse
calculations. These calculations use cash floweggt@ns based on financial budget approved by Memagt

covering a three-year period. Cash flows beyoedhhee-year period are extrapolated using thengstsons of
Economist Intelligence Unit (EIU) for the real GIQRowth in Greece.

The key assumptions used by the Management farafeelation of projections within the annual impgairent
test are the following:
e Discount rate (pre-tax): the cash flows were disted by the weighted average cost of capital.

e Projected sales: the rate of change of salesgaedi with the real GDP growth based on EIU giveat th
the construction industry is inextricably linkedeoconomic growth.

e Budgeted profit margin: The budgeted margin of apieg profit and EBITDA are calculated based on
actual historical data of recent years, adjustdadke into account expected changes in profitgbilit

Regarding the working capital, Management was bagséckely on historical data.
The key assumptions used, are consistent with ertgnt external sources of information as discuabeue.

Based on the results of the impairment test at Dbee 31, 2012, the recoverable amount of this gasterating
unit exceeds its carrying value and therefore nmainment losses incurred in respect of the abowegdl.
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8 Investment property

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Cost

1 January 2011

Foreign exchange differences
Additions

Disposals

Impairment

31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Foreign exchange differences
Additions

Transfer from PPE
Impairment

31 December 2012

Accumulated Depreciation

1 January 2011

Foreign exchange differences
Depreciation for the year

31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Foreign exchange differences
Depreciation for the year
Transfer from PPE

31 December 2012

Net book value as of 31 December 2011

Net book value as of 31 December 2012

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES
143,523 63,433
(167) -
18,894
(12)

(4,100) -
158,138 63,433
158,138 63,433

(502) -
4,152

18,907

(2,340) -
178,355 63,433

(3,341) (4,617)

2 -
(527) (969)
(3,866) (5,586)
(3,866) (5,586)
6 -

(1,465) (969)

(1,975) -

(7,300) (6,555)

154,272 57,847
171,055 56,879

The additions for the Group during the year amodinite€4.152 thousand (2011: €18,894 thousand), e€iw
€3,601 thousand (2011: €18,433 thousand) pertaimeétle construction of the Commercial Park of sdiasy

YIALOU EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA.

“Smart Park”.

The park commered operations on 20.10.2011 under the name

The Transfer from PPE of €18,907 thousand (anc¢iheesponding depreciation of €1,465 thousandgpestto
the building on Kavallieratou St, Nea Kifissia, whiwas leased in 2012 to companies outside thepGrou

The impairment of €2,340 thousand corresponds fmimment of €1,800 thousand for a property of PROFI
PROFIT CONSTRUCT Srl in the area of Unirii, Buchstreand of €540 thousand of SC CLH ESTATE SRL. The
impairment of properties by the amount of €4,108ufand in 2011 is due to the impairment by the arnot
€3,600 thousand in relation to a property ownedREYDS SA in the Akadimias Platonos area and by theuat

of €500 thousand is due to a property owned by AR@ONSTRUCT Srl.
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9

Group Participations

9.a The companies of the Group, consolidated wmighfall consolidation method, are as follows:

e

D*

PARENT %

S/IN | COMPANY REg::SFTCE:EED DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL UNAUYDJE-LERDS
1 AIFORIKI DODEKANISOU SA GREECE 94.44 94.44 202012*
2 AIFORIKI KOUNOU SA GREECE 75.56 75.5¢ 2010-2011
3 EOLIKA PARKA MALEA SA GREECE 48.61] 48.61 201@p2*
4 AEOLIKI KANDILIOU SA GREECE 86.00 86.00 2010-20*
5 EOLIKI KARPASTONIOU SA GREECE 43.8( 43.86 202012*
6 EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIA SA GREECE 86.00 86.00 2012012*
7 EOLIKI OLYMPOU EVIAS SA GREECE 86.0( 86.0p 202012*
8 EOLIKI PARNONOS SA GREECE 68.80 68.8 2010-2011
9 EOLOS MAKEDONIAS SA GREECE 86.00 86.00 2010-201
10 | ALPHA EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIA SA GREECE 86.00 860 2010-2012*
11 | AKTOR SA GREECE 100.00| 100.00 2010-201
12 | AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA GREECE 100.00 100{00 2200
13 | AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA — ARCHITECH SA GREECE 3 64.37 2010-20121
14 | AKTOR FM SA GREECE 65.00] 65.0( 2010-2014
15 | ANDROMACHI SA GREECE 100.00| 100.00 2010-201
16 | ANEMOS ALKYONIS SA GREECE 49.02 49.04 2010-2011
17 | ANEMOS ATALANTIS SA GREECE 86.0( 86.0D 2010129
18 | APOTEFROTIRAS SA GREECE 66.11 66.11 2010-2011
19 | ATTIKA DIODIA SA GREECE 59.27 59.21 2010-2011
20 | ATTIKES DIADROMES SA GREECE 47.42 47.42 200r:2*
21 | ATTIKI ODOS SA GREECE 59.25] 59.25 2010-2014
22 | VEALSA GREECE 47.22, 47.23 2010-2011
23 | VIOTIKOS ANEMOS SA GREECE 86.00] 86.0( 2010-2014
24 | YIALOU ANAPTYXIAKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2012012*
25 | YIALOU EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA GREECE 55.44 546 2010-2012*
26 PPC RENEWABLES — ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI SA GREECE 43.86 43.86 2010-2012
27 DIETHNIS ALKI SA GREECE 100.00; 100.00 2007-2012
28 DOAL SA GREECE 94.44] 94.44 2010-2014
29 ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 99.80) 99.8( 206012
30 | HELLENIC QUARRIES SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2Q09 2*
31 | GREEK NURSERIES SA GREECE 50.00] 50.0( 2010-2014
32 HELLENIC ENERGY & DEVELOPMENT SA GREECE 96.5 96.56 2010-2012*
33 HED - RENEWABLES GREECE 86.00 86.0 2010-2011
34 | ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS S.A. GREECE 86.0( 86.00 2010-2012*
35 | ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA & Co. GREECE 85.14 85.14 2010-201
36 ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-20129

(72) / (120)



ELLAKTOR SA

‘ Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
ELLAKTOR for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

PARENT %
S/IN | COMPANY REg::SFTCE:EED DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL UNAUYDJELERDS
37 | GAS COMPANY OF SUBURBS SA GREECE 65.00 65.00 01@2012*
38 HELECTOR SA GREECE 80.00 14.44 94.44 2009-201p*
39 HELEKTOR CONSTRUCTIONS SA GREECE 94.44 94.44 01@-2012*
40 ILIOSAR SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012
41 KANTZA SA GREECE 100.00; 100.00 2010-2012*
42 KANTZA EMPORIKI SA GREECE 55.46 55.4¢ 2010-2012*
43 KASTOR SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012*
44 | JV ELTECH ANEMOS SA —TH. SIETIS GREECE 86.00 6.(0 2010-2012
45 | JV ELTECH ENERGIAKI - ELECTROMECH GREECE 100.4 100.00 2010-2017
46 | JVITHAKI 1 ELTECH ANEMOS SA- ENECO LTD GREECE 68.80 68.80 2010-2012
47 | JIVITHAKI 2 ELTECH ANEMOS SA- ENECO LTD GREECE 68.80 68.80 2010-201p
48 | JV HELECTOR - CYBARCO CYPRUS 94.44 94.44 2022
49 LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012*
50 | LAMDA TECHNIKI SA -PTECH SA & CO GREECE 98.0p 98.00 2010-2012
51 LMN SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012*
52 MOREAS SA GREECE 71.67 71.61 2011-2012*
53 MOREAS SEA SA GREECE 86.67 86.67 2010-2012*
54 | NEMO MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 99.8( 99.8p 200642
55 ROAD TELECOMMUNICATIONS SA GREECE 100.0p 100. 2010-2012*
56 | OLKAS SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2011-201p*
57 P&P PARKING SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012*
58 PANTECHNIKI SA (formerly EFA TECHNIKI SA) GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012*
59 PANTECHNIKI SA-D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-201p
60 | PANTECHNIKI SA —-LAMDA TECHNIKI SA -DEPA LTD GREEE 100.00 100.00 2010-201)2
61 PLO —KAT SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012*
62 POUNENTIS ENERGY SA GREECE 43.00 43.p0 2010220
63 | STATHMOI PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.0 100.00 01D-2012*
64 | TOMISA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2008-2012*
65 | AECO HOLDING LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2008-2012
66 | AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100.00 100.00| 2009-201P
67 | AKTOR CONCESSIONS (CYPRUS) LIMITED CYPRUS 100. 100.00 2011-2014
68 | AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS 1000 100.00 2003-2012
69 | AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.00 022012
70 | AKTOR D.O.O. SARAJEVO HEIE?ES(’E-\ICI)Q;INA 100.00 100.00 .
71 | AKTOR INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.0 Q@0 2012
72 | AKTOR KUWAIT WLL KUWAIT 100.00 100.00 2009-2012
73 | AKTOR QATAR WLL QATAR 100.00 100.00 2011-201P
74 | AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD CYPRUS 100.90 (1) 2009-2012
75 | AKTOR SUDAN LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2011-2012
76 | AKTOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION LLC UAE 70.0( w -

(73) / (120)



‘ ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

PARENT %
SIN | COMPANY REg'FSFTl EEED DIRECT | INDIRECT | TOTAL UNAU\?&ER%

77 | AL AHMADIAH AKTOR LLC UAE 100.00 100.00 -
78 | BAQTOR MINING CO LTD SUDAN 90.00 90.0 .
79 | BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2011-2012
80 | BIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD CYPRUS 100.90 100.00 -
81 | BURG MACHINARY BULGARIA 100.00 100.00 2008-201P
82 | CAISSON SA GREECE 85.00 85.0 2010-2012*
83 | COPRI-AKTOR ALBANIA 100.00 100.00 -
84 | CORREA HOLDING LTD CYPRUS 55.46 55.4 2007-2012
85 | DINTORNIESTABLISHMENT LTD CYPRUS 100.0 1000 -
86 | DUBAI FUJAIRAH FREEWAY JV UAE 100.00 100.00 -
87 | ELLAKTOR VENTURES LTD CYPRUS 98.61 98.61L 202042
88 | GENERAL GULF SPC BAHRAIN 100.00 100.00 2006-201P
89 | GULF MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 1000 2008-2012
90 | HELECTOR BULGARIA LTD BULGARIA 94.44 94.44 2012012
91 | HELECTOR CYPRUS LTD CYPRUS 94.44 94.44 20052
92 | HELECTOR GERMANY GMBH GERMANY 94.44 94.44 20@p12
93 | HERHOF GMBH GERMANY 94.44 94.44 2005-201P
94 | HERHOF RECYCLING CENTER OSNABRUCK GMBH GERMANY 94.44 94.44 2006-2012
95 | HERHOF-VERWALTUNGS GERMANY 94.44 94.44 2005420
96 | INSCUT BUCURESTI SA ROMANIA 96.63 96.68 199042
97 | JEBEL ALI SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT JV UAE 100.0 100.00 -
98 | KARTEREDA HOLDING LTD CYPRUS 55.4 55.4p 2006412
99 | K.G.E GREEN ENERGY LTD CYPRUS 94.44 94.44 20012
100 | LEVASHOVO WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT LLC RUSSIA 98.61 98.61 -
101 | MILLENNIUM — CONSTRUCTION —EQUIPVENT & UAE 100.00 100.00

102 | NEASACO ENTERPRISES LTD CYPRUS 94.44 9444 12
103 | PMS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES SA GREECE 455 55.46 2010-20121
104 | PROFIT CONSTRUCT SRL ROMANIA 55.45 55.46 26RIBL2
105 ﬁgﬂ“ﬁﬁfTAkl TSQ - PROJECT  MANAGEMENT  Gregce 65.00 65.0( 2010-2012
106 | REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA GREECE 55.46 55.46 2010-20124
107 | SC AKTOROM SRL ROMANIA 100.00 100.00 2002-201P
108 | SC CLH ESTATE SRL ROMANIA 55.46 55.46 2006-2012
109 | SOLAR OLIVE SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2012
110 | STARTMART LMT CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2006-2012
111 | SVENON INVESTMENTS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.00 002-2012
112 | VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.0( 100.00 202812
113 | YLECTOR DOOEL SKOPJE FYROM 94.44 94.44 20002

* The Group companies which are domiciled in Greere mandatorily audited by audit firms and hab¢amed a tax

compliance certificate for FY 2011, are marked waithasterisk (*). In accordance with the applicdh¥e, financial year 2011
should be considered as the definitive year foratadit purposes eighteen months after the “Tax Ciamge Report” has been
submitted to the Ministry of Finance (note 38). BFase companies, the tax audit for FY 2012 isaggess.
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The following subsidiaries were included for thesfitime in the consolidated financial statemerdgsoé
31.12.2012, but had not been included 30.09.2(d they were established/acquired in Q4 2012:

» ILIOSAR SA, domiciled in Greece. BIOSAR PV-PROJEGTANAGEMENT LTD participates in the
company with 100%, with the participation cost {800 thousand. The company’s objects are the n&gea
design, installation and operation of electricitypguction projects using renewable energy souraed, the
distribution of produced electricity to the low antedium voltage grid. The company is legal holdethe
rights arising from photovoltaics in Kranidi, Argdé, and Andravida. The company participates in SRL
OLIVE SA with 100%. The consolidation of these c@njes resulted in goodwill of €4,682 thousand which
was allocated as Licence of €5,852 thousand adéfesred tax liability of €1,170 thousand.

» AKTOR D.O.0. SARAJEVO, domiciled in Bosnia-Herzegmwv. The company was incorporated by the
subsidiary AKTOR SA with the purpose of executihg project “WASTE TREATMENT PLANT IN THE
MUNICIPALITY OF MOSTAR, BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA”, with he share capital of €1.0 thousand.

Apart from the above companies, the financial statets for the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2@ild ,not
include the following subsidiaries:

» DINTORNI ESTABLISHMENT LTD (Incorporation- 1st coonldation in the interim summary financial
report of 30.06.12)

» NEASACO ENTERPRISES LTD (Incorporation- 1st condation in the interim summary financial report of
30.06.12)

» BIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD (Incorporation {lsonsolidation in the interim summary
financial report of 30.06.12)

» COPRI-AKTOR (Incorporation- 1st consolidation iretimterim summary financial report of 30.06.2012)

» AKTOR INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LTD (Incorporation-1st emolidation in the interim summary financial
report of 30.09.2012)

» LEVASHOVO WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT L.L.C (Incorpatian-1st consolidation in the interim
summary financial report of 30.09.2012)

With regard to the interim summary financial repoft 30.09.2012, the following companies are no &ng
consolidated: a) ADEYP SA, ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI CRSULTANT ENGINEERS LTD, EXANTAS
MARITIME and SYROS MARINES SA as they were dissalvéuring the current quarter with no significant
effect on the Group;

b) BIOSAR SA and D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULQOS SA, as thaibsorption by AKTOR SA was completed
pursuant to registration of the Merger Agreemenbfd44.12.2012 with the Directorate of Registrigsl dT
System Development on 28.12.2012 (note 40.10);

c) LOFOS PALLINI SA, as its absorption by REDS SAaswcompleted by virtue of decision of the Minisfioy
Development, Competitiveness, Infrastructures, 3part and Networks as of 31.12.2012 (note 40.11).

Apart from the aboe companies, the following conipanare no longer consolidated in relation to the
consolidated financial statements for the previgess, i.e. as of 31.12.2011:

» ANEMOS THRAKIS SA, EOLIKA PARKA ELLADOS TRIZINIA SA and EOLIKI ZARAKA
METAMORFOSIS SA, as they were absorbed by ELTECHEMMNS SA, pursuant to decision as of
30.04.2012 of the Deputy Head of Region, AthenstiN&ector Regional Unit, the Amalgamation Balance
Sheet date for each absorbed company being 311112.20

» subsidiary PSITALIA MARITIME COMPANY, due to its dposal to third parties in Q1 2012, with losses of
€140 thousand at Group level,

» subsidiary ILIAKI ADERES SA, due to its disposalttird parties in Q3 2012, with profit of €1,75%tlsand
at Group level;
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A change was made in the consolidation method ofipgmmy HERHOF-VERWALTUNGS compared to the
consolidated financial statements as of 31.12.20hk company was consolidated as an associate tising
equity method; starting from Q2 2012, the companyodnsolidated using the full consolidation metlasda

subsidiary, as a result of the Group's increasgidesn said company.

The Group’s participation share in the share chpitélELECTOR SA was increased in Q2 2012 from 86
95%, increasing accordingly the consolidation petage from 80% to 94.44%, since additional paréitgn was
acquired from non-controlling interests. The tatahsideration paid stands at €7,506 thousand. AteoGroup
increased its participation share in German compBBRHOF GMBH from 50% to 100%, increasing
accordingly the consolidation percentage from 80984.44%, since additional participation was acegiifrom
non-controlling interests. The total considerafiaid stands at €2,906 thousand. The foregoingariiosis had a
positive effect on parent equity holders to the ami@f €750 thousand. Further, the acquisitiothefremaining
50% in ALAHMADIAH in Q2 2012 (and, therefore, thedrease in the consolidation percentage of JEBEL AL
& DUBAI FUJEIRAH from 70% to 100%) had a negativéfeet on parent equity holders to the amount of
€31,015 thousand. Further, SVENON INVESTMENTS LTdaired an additional holding of 25.8% in INSCUT
BUCURESTI SA within Q3 2012, on payment of €3,1B6usand.

9.b The companies of the Group consolidated usingthéty method are as follows:

PARENT %
S/IN | COMPANY REg::SFTEEED DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL UNAUEIIELI;DS
1 ATHENS CAR PARK SA GREECE 20.0B 20.08 20072201
2 ANEMODOMIKI SA GREECE 43.00 43.0 2010-2012
3 ASTERION SA GREECE 50.00 50.0 2010-2012
4 AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. GREECE 20.0 20.00 200826
5 BEPE KERATEAS SA GREECE 35.00 35.00 2010-2012
6 GEFYRA SA GREECE 22.02 22.07 2008-2012*
7 GEFYRA LITOURGIA SA GREECE 23.17 23.1p 2010-201]
8 PROJECT DYNAMIC CONSTRUCTION GREECE 30.92 30.p2 2010-2012
9 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA GREECE 40.0 40.00 202012
10 | ENERMEL SA GREECE 46.43] 46.43 2010-2012*
11 | TOMI EDL ENTERPRISES LTD GREECE 47.22 47.22 1@@012
12 PEIRA SA GREECE 50.00 50.0 2010-2012
13 | TERNA - PANTECHNIKI LTD GREECE 50.0 50.00 2080012
14 | CHELIDONA SA GREECE 50.00] 50.0 1998-2012
15 | AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD CYPRUS 50.00 50.0p
16 | ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. GREECE 30.00 30400 01@2012*
17 ELPEDISON POWER SA GREECE 21.95 21.95 20022201
18 METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK GREECE 22.9|1 22.91 01R-2012
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PARENT %
REGISTERED UNAUDITED
S/IN | COMPANY OFFICE DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL YEARS
19 POLISPARK SA GREECE 25.04 25.04 2010-2012
20 | SALONICA PARK SA GREECE 24.7 24.70 2010-20112
21 SMYRNI PARK SA GREECE 20.00] 20.0 2010-2012

* The Group companies which are domiciled in Greesme mandatorily audited by audit firms and habaimed a tax

compliance certificate for FY 2011, are marked wdithasterisk (*). In accordance with the applicahle, financial year 2011

should be considered as the definitive year foratadit purposes eighteen months after the “Tax Ciamge Report” has been
submitted to the Ministry of Finance (note 38). Base companies, the tax audit for FY 2012 isaggess.

In relation to the consolidated financial statersea$ of 31.12.2011, the following companies arelamyer
consolidated using the equity method:

» EPANA SA, due to its disposal to third parties i 2012, with losses of €369 thousand at Group jevel

» FREEQUEST HOLDINGS LTD due to its disposal to thparties in Q2 2012 with no significant effect b t
Group.

The result shown under Share of profit/ (loss) fragsociates seen in the Income Statement, whidhiperto
profit of €2.288 thousand for FY 2012, mainly asi$em profit for companies ATHENS RESORT CASINO,SA
AEGEAN MOTORWAY SA and GEFYRA SA. The respective amt for the FY 2011 (profit of €1.064
thousand) mainly arises from the profit for the pamies AEGEAN MOTORWAY SA, ATHENS RESORT
CASINO SA, ELPEDISON POWER SA and GEFYRA SA, andnfr losses for the 9-month period for
EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS.

9.c The companies consolidated using the proportiooaolidation are shown in the following table:

PARENT %
REGISTERED UNAUDITED

S/N | COMPANY OFFICE DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL YEARS

1 HELECTOR SA - ENVITEC SA Partnership GREECE (0:50) 50.00 2010-2012

2 THERMAIKI ODOS S.A. GREECE 50.0 50.00 2010-201

3 THERMAIKES DIADROMES SA GREECE 50.00 50.90 peA012*

4 STRAKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 50.0 2010-2012*

5 AECO DEVELOPMENT LLC OMAN 50.00 50.0

6 CARPATII AUTOSTRADA SA ROMANIA 50.00 50.00 2002012

7 3G SA GREECE 50.00] 50.0 2010-2012*

* The Group companies which are domiciled in Greesme mandatorily audited by audit firms and habaimed a tax

compliance certificate for FY 2011, are marked weithasterisk (*). In accordance with the applicah¥e, financial year 2011

should be considered as the definitive year foratadit purposes eighteen months after the “Tax Ciamge Report” has been
submitted to the Ministry of Finance (note 38). Foese companies, the tax audit for FY 2012 isrimgpess. For these
companies, the tax audit for FY 2012 is in progress

Here follows a detailed table with the joint vemtsiconsolidated using the proportional method. ddrapany
only holds an indirect stake in said joint ventwigsits subsidiaries.

In this table, in the columns under "First time Golidation”, 1 indicates those Joint Ventures ctidated for the
first time during the current period as newly ebshied, while they had not been incorporated inithenediately
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previous period, i.e. as of 30.09.12 (indicatio)mor in the respective period of the previousryea. as of
31.12.2011 (indication RPY).

(1/0) | (IPP/RPY)

1 JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.00 202042 0 0

2 JIV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 60.00 2010820, 0 0

3 JIV AKTOR SA - ALPINE MAYREDER BAU GmbH GREECE 1)) 2010-2012 0 0
4 g;l\E/[\?é(;ELIT SS_':‘,;ATODINI CONSTRUZIONI GREECE 45.00 2010-2012 0 0
5 JIVTEO SA -AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2012 0 0
6 JIV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 99.90 2010120 0 0

7 .I‘.]é\éﬁfrscz? BSI?);EIQEE,’::??OE{I%LER SA" - GREECE 33.33 2010-2012 0 0
8 é/X AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA - J & P AVAX GREECE 75.00 2010-201p 0 0
9 é/X AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI GREECE 65.78 2010-201p 0 0
10 i/,;\/L#ETSOAR- i’égEMIJCHANIKI SA-MOCHLOS SA GREECE 45.42 2010-2012 0 0
11 JIV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE 49.8R 2010-2012 0 0
12 JIV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE 49.50 2010-2012 0 0
13 é/X AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI GREECE 65.78 2010-201p 0 0

JN ATTIKI ODOS — CONSTRUCTION OF
14 ELEFSINA-STAVROS-SPATA ROAD & W.IMITOS GREECE 59.27 2010-2012 0 0
RINGROAD

15 JIV ATTIKAT SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.0 2010-201 0 0
16 J/IV TOMI SA — AKTOR (APOSELEMI DAM) GREECE 10@0 2010-2012 0 0
17 JIVTEO SA —AKTOR SA GREECE 49.0( 2010-2012 0 0
18 JIV SIEMENS AG — AKTOR SA — TERNA SA GREECE 60. 2010-2012 0 0
19 JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.0p 202012 0 0
o | AR SRS S e oo om0 o
21 JIV AKTOR SA —AEGEK - J & P AVAX-SELI GREECE 3m 2010-2012 0 0
22 J/IV TERNA SA -MOCHLOS SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 2008-2012 0 0
23 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2010-2012 0 0
24 JIV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE nm, 2010-2012 0 0
25 JIV J&P-AVAX —TERNA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 33.38 2010-2012 0 0
26 JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50.900 2010-2012 0
27 JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50.90 2010-2012 0
28 J/IV AKTOR SA -LOBBE TZILALIS EUROKAT GREECE 338 2010-2012 0 0
29 JIV AKTOR —-TOMI- ATOMO GREECE 51.0( 2010-2012 0 0
30 JA/_?_/TIIAPE(;_IE)SASA -JP AVAX SA-PANTECHNIKI SA- GREECE 59.27 2010-201p 0 0
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REGISTERED | PARTICIPATION | UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N | JOINT VENTURE OFFICE % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
@o) | (PPRPY)
31 | JVTEO SA—-AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 20102012 0 0
32 | JVAKTOR SA—TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 20102002 g 0
33 | JV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 20072012 0 0
34 | JVKASTOR — AKTOR MESOGEIOS GREECE 53.35 20m2| 0 0
35 | JIV(CARS) LARISAS (EXECUTOR) GREECE 81.70 som2| o 0
JV AKTOR-AEGEK-EKTER-TERNA
- P
36 | (CONSTRUCTION OF OA HANGAR) EXECUTOR| CREECE 52.00 2010-201 O 0
JV ANAPLASI ANO LIOSION (AKTOR — TOMI) ]
g7 | Ly ANAPLA GREECE 100.00 2010-201p 0 0
JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION
38 | OF MEGARON MUSIC HALL PHASE B — E/M) GREECE 30.00 20102012 O 0
JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION I
39 | OF MEGARON MUSIC HALL PHASE B- CONSTR)| ~ CREECE 30.00 20102012 O 0
40 | JIV AKTOR SA— ALTE SA GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0
JNV ATHENA SA — THEMELIODOMI SA — AKTOR
41 | SA-KONSTANTINIDIS SA — TECHNERG SA - GREECE 25.00 20072012 0 0
TSAMPRAS SA
42 | JIVAKTOR SA - ALTE SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 6647  2010-2012| 0 0
43 | JIVAKTOR SA— ATHENA SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE . 20102012 0 0
44 | IV GEFYRA GREECE 20.32 20082012 0 0
45 | I AEGEK ~BIOTER SA- AKTOR SA-EKTER | gpeece 1000 2000201k 0 0
45| I AKTOR SA-ATHENA SATHEMELIODOWI GREECE o0 2010200k © 0
47 | JIV AKTOR SA - J&P — AVAX SA GREECE 50.00 201022 | 0 0
45 | IV AKTOR SA- THEMELIODOMI SA -~ ATHENA | Grerce 2343 o0r20Lb o 0
49 | I AKTOR SA-THEMELIODOMI SA - ATHENA | e ce 56.66 2008201k 0 0
J AKTOR SA TOMH-ALTE-EMPEDOS
- P
50 | (OLYMPIC VILLAGE LANDSCAPING) GREECE 45.33 20102012 O 0
JV AKTOR SA -SOCIETE FRANCAISE
- P
51 | EQUIPEMENT HOSPITALIER SA GREECE 65.00 20102012 O 0
JV THEMELIODOMI — AKTOR SA- ATHENA SA
52 | & TE - PASSAVANT MASCHINENTECHNIK GREECE 53.33 20082012 0 0
GmbH - GIOVANNI PUTIGNANO & FIGLI Srl
53 | JVTOMISA - AKTOR SA (LAMIA HOSPITAL) GREECE 100.00 20102014 0 0
54 | JVAKTOR SA - ATHENA SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 40. 2010-2012| 0 0
5 | JVAKTOR SA-ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOM CREECE 53,68 2010201k o 0
56 | JVEKTER SA. — AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0
JV AKTOR SA — DOMOTECHNIKI SA —
- P
57 | THEMELIODOMI SA — TERNA SA — ETETH SA GREECE 25.00 2010201 0 0
58 | J\V ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 20062012 0 0
50 | J/VAKTOR SA— PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.0D 202012| 0 0
60 | J\V AKTOR SA— ATHENA SA GREECE 50.00 2008-2012 0 0
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REGISTERED | PARTICIPATION | UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N | JOINT VENTURE OFFICE % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
@o) | (PPIRPY)
61 | JVAKTOR SA—ERGOSYN SA GREECE 50.0 2010-2412 0 0
62 | JIVJ.&P.-AVAX SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.0 WP012| O 0
63 | IV ATHENA SA— AKTOR SA GREECE 50.0 2007-2012 0 0
64 | JV AKTOR COPRI KUWAIT 50.00 o 0
65 | JVQATAR QATAR 40.00 o 0
66 | JV AKTOR SA - AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100.00 2010-2012| 0 0
67 | CONSORTIUM BIOSAR ENERGY - AKTOR BULGARIA 100.0 2010-2012| 0 0
JIV TOMI SA — HLEKTOR SA (ANO LIOSIA
68 | LANDRILL . SECTION ) GREECE 100.00 2010-201p 0 0
69 | J/V TOMI— MARAGAKIS ANDR. (2005) GREECE 65.0 2010-2012| 0 0
70 | IV TOMI SA — ELTER SA GREECE 50.0 2000-2012 @ 0
71 | IV TOMI SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 100.0 2010-2012 0 0
72 | JIVKASTOR SA— TOMI SA GREECE 100.0 2010-20112 0 0
73 | JIVKASTOR SA— ELTER SA GREECE 50.0 2010-2012 0 0
74 | JIV KASTOR SA —ERTEKA SA GREECE 50.0 2010-2012 0 0
75 | 3V TOMI SA — ERGO SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREEE 75.00 20102014 0 0
76 | JIV TOMI SA — TECHNOGNOSIA IPIROU GREECE 90.4 012-2012| © 0
77 | IV ERGO SA - TOMI SA GREECE 15,0 2010-2012 0
78 | 3V TOMI SA — CHOROTECHNIKI SA GREECE 50.00 202012 | 0 0
79 | 3V TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (MYKONOS PORT) GREECE 50 2010-2012] 0 0
80 | J/V TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) GREECE 50, 2010-2012|  © 0
JV HELECTOR — TECHNIKI PROSTASIAS
- %
g1 | DY HELECTOR - GREECE 60.00 20102019 0 0
82 | JV TAGARADES LANDFILL GREECE 30.00 2006-2002 0 0
JV MESOGEIOS SA — HELECTOR SA —
_ P
83 | BILFINGER (KOZANI LANDFILL) GREECE 35.00 2007-201¢ 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA-BILFINGER BERGER
- P
84 | TVPRUS. PAPHOS LANDELL) CYPRUS 100.00 20062019 0 0
85 | JV DETEALA- HELECTOR-EDL LTD GREECE 30.0 20102 | 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (FYLIS
8 | IANDFILD) GREECE 99.00 2010201 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA
- P
87 | IMAVRORACH LANDELD GREECE 65.00 20102019 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA
- P
88 | (M IeRARLION LANDEILD GREECE 30.00 2006-201p 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (LASITHI b
89 | IANDFILD) GREECE 70.00 20062019 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA-BILFINGER BERGER
. %
90 | (MARATHOUNTA LANDFILL & ACCESS WAY) CYPRUS 100.00 2005-201¢ 0 0
91 | JVHELECTOR- ARSI GREECE 80.00 20102012 g 0
92 | JVLAMDA — ITHAKI & HELECTOR GREECE 30.00 200012 | 0 0
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REGISTERED | PARTICIPATION UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N | JOINT VENTURE OFFICE % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
(2/0) (IPP/RPY)
93 | J/VHELECTOR- ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70. 2010-2012 0 0
JIV BILFIGER BERGER - MESOGEIOS-
-201p
94 HELECTOR GREECE 29,00 2010-2012 0 0
95 JIV TOMI SA —-HELECTOR SA GREECE 100.Q 2007-2012 0 0
96 JIV KASTOR - P&C DEVELOPMENT GREECE 70.00 2010t2 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA ARCHIRODON-
-201p
97 | BOSKALIS(THERMAIKI ODOS) GREECE 50.00 2010201 O 0
98 JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 55.0 2010-2012 0
JIV AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA —
99 Foundation of the Hellenic World — PHASE A GREECE 56.00 2010-201¢ 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA-
100 Foundation of the Hellenic World — PHASE B GREECE 56.00 2010-201¢ 0 0
101 | J/V AKTOR SA -ATHENA GREECE 50.0 2009-2012 0 0
102 | J/V AKTOR —INTRAKAT -J & P AVAX GREECE 71.67 ®7-2012 0 0
103 JIV HOCHTIEF-AKTOR-J&P-VINCI-AEGEK- GREECE 19.30 2010-201p 0 0
ATHENA
J/IV VINCI-J&P AVAX-AKTOR-HOCHTIEF-
-201p
104 ATHENA GREECE 17.00 2009-2012 0 0
105 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA —ARCHITECH SA GREECE 50.0 010-2012 0 0
JIV ATTIKAT SA- PANTECHNIKI SA -J&P AVAX
106 | SA—- EMPEDOS SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-AEGEK GREECE 48.51 2009-2012 0 0
SA-ALTE SA
J/IV ETETH SA-J&P-AVAX SA-TERNA SA-
-201p
107 PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 18.00 2005-2012 0 0
108 .é/x PANTECHNIKI SA- J&P AVAX SA- BIOTER GREECE 39.32 2007-201p 0 0
109 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE 50. 102012 0 0
110 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA — GANTZOULAS SA GREECE 50.0 2005-2012 0 0
JIV ETETH SA-J&P-AVAX SA-TERNA SA-
-201p
111 PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 18.00 2007-201p2 0 0
J/IV “PANTECHNIKI-ALTE-TODINI -ITINERA "-
112 PANTECHNIKI-ALTE GREECE 29.70 2010-2012 0 0
113 | J/V TERNA SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 16.5 26pa12 0 0
J/V PANTECHNIKI SA — ARCHITECH SA- OTO
-201p
114 PARKING SA GREECE 45.00 2003-201p2 0 0
115 | J/V TERNA SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 40.0 202012 0 0
116 | J/V AKTOR SA — XANTHAKIS SA GREECE 55.0 201042 0 0
117 | J/V PROET SA -PANTECHNIKI SA- BIOTER SA GREECE 39.32 2010-2012 0 0
118 | J/V KASTOR — ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70. 2010-2012 0 0
119 | J/V AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 65.( 2010-2012 D 0
120 | J./V AKTOR SA -PANTRAK GREECE 80.0 2010-2012 0 0
121 | J/V AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI GREECE 100.0 200012 0 0
122 | J/IV AKTOR SA - TERNA - J&P GREECE 33.3 2010:20| 0 0
123 | J/V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A435) GREECE 5000 2008-2012 0 0
124 | J/V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A437) GREECE 5000 2007-2012 0 0
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Wo) | (PPIRPY)

125 | J/V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIAA438) GREECE 50.00 20082012 0 0
126 | JIVELTER SA —KASTOR SA GREECE 15,40 2010-2q12 0 0
127 | 3V TERNA - AKTOR GREECE 50.0 20092012 0 0
128 | J/V AKTOR - HOCHTIEF GREECE 33.00 20092012 g 0
129 | JIV AKTOR - POLYECO GREECE 52.0 20102002 G 0
130 | JIV AKTOR - MOCHLOS GREECE 70.00 20102012 g 0
121 | 2V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATWENT CREECE 000 2008201k o .
132 | J/V AKTOR SA- STRABAG AG GREECE 50.0p 2010202 0 0
133 | J/V EDISON — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 20092012 @ 0
134 iQ’NLD“f:'I\‘LSA ~ OKTANA SA (ASTYPALEA GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0
135 ‘v]@ié% SA — OKTANA SA (ASTYPALEA GREECE 50.00 2010201 0 0
136 | J/VLMN SA — OKTANA SA (TINOS ABATTOIR) GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0
137 | JIV AKTOR — TOXOTIS GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0
138 | J/V“JV TOMI— HELECTOR’ — KONSTANTINIDIS|  GREEE 70.00 20082012 0 0
139 | J/V TOMI SA - AKTOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT |  GREECE 100.00 20102014 0 0
140 | 3V AKTOR — TOXOTIS *ANTHOUPOLI METRO" GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0
141 | J/V AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA —GOLIOPOULOS SA  GREECE 48.00 20092017 0 0
142 | JIV AKTOR SA — IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.0 202012 0 0
143 | JV AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.0 20102012 0 0
144 | 3V ATOMON SA — TOMI SA GREECE 50.0p 20092012 0 0
145 | J/V AKTOR SA — TOXOTIS SA GREECE 50.00 2010201 O 0
146 | J/V AKTOR SA — ELTER SA GREECE 70.00 2009-2012 0 0
147 | IV ERGOTEM —KASTOR- ETETH GREECE 15,40 200924 0 0
148 | J/V LAMDA SA —N&K GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 500D 20102012 0 0
149 | J/VLMN SA -KARALIS GREECE 95.00 20102012 0 0
150 | JV HELECTOR- ENVITEC GREECE 50.00 2010-2012 0
151 | J/VLMN SA - KARALIS K. - TOMI SA GREECE 98.0 20102012| 0 0
152 | J/V CONSTRUTEC SA -KASTOR SA GREECE 30.0 20082 © 0
153 | D O S L OF OULOS SA- GREECE 30.00 20102012 0 0
154 | JYARTOR SR J&P AVAX SA-NGANETWORK | Greece 50.00 20102012 0 0
155 | J/V TOMI SA — ETHRA CONSTRUCTION SA GREECE 50. 20102012 0 0

3V TOMI SA — MEXIS L-TATSIS K.
156 | PARTNERSHIP (J/V TOMI SA- TOPIODOMI GREECE 50.00 20102012 0 0

PARTNERSHIP)
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REGISTERED | PARTICIPATION | UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N | JOINT VENTURE OFFICE % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
@o) | (PPIRPY)
J\ HELECTOR SA —TH.G.LOLOS-
- P
157 | 2V HELECTOR SA “THG GREECE 70.00 2011201 0 0
J HELECTOR SA —TH.G.LOLOS-
- P
158 | | TSOBANIDIS- ARSI SA- ENVITEC SA GREECE 49.85 2011-201¢ 0 0
159 | J/V HELECTOR SA — ZIORIS SA GREECE 51.00 20m2| 0 0
160 | J/V HELECTOR SA — EPANA SA GREECE 50.90 201124 0 0
161 | J/V LAMDA SA —GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 50.00 omai2| 0 0
162 | JIV TECHNIKI ARISTARCHOS SA —LMN SA GREECE 300 2011-2012| 0 0
JV TOMI SA — AP.MARAGAKIS ERGA
_ P
163 | IV IOWSAS GREECE 65.00 20112019 0 0
164 | JIV ELKAT SA — LAMDA SA GREECE 30.04 2011-2012 0 0
JV HELECTOR- LANTEC - ENVIMEC -
- P
165 | 2y HELECTOR GREECE 32.00 2010201 0 0
JV AKTOR SA - J&P (KOROMILIA ]
166 | KavaTALLORIG GREECE 60.00 2014 1 RPY
JIV J&P AVAX-AKTOR SA (ATTICA NATURAL ]
167 | Uns HETWORKS) GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
JIV J&P AVAX SA-AKTOR SA (DEPA ]
168 | Jec i ionL SUPPORT GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
AKTOR SA-ERETVO SA (CONSTRUCTION OF ]
169 | M S ERN ARY MUSEOM GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
170 | JIV KONSTANTINIDIS -HELECTOR GREECE 49.0 202042 | 1 RPY
JN “JIV MIVA SA —AAGIS SA” ~MESOGEIOS SA- ]
171 | Y IV M GREECE 15,00 2014 1 RPY
172 | IV AKTOR ARHOGAZ TURKEY 51.00 41 RPY
JN AKTOR SA-J&P AVAX SA (MAINTENANCE
173 | OF NATURAL GAS NATIONAL TRANSMISSION GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
SYSTEM)
J AKTOR SA — M.SAVVIDES & SONS
174 | IV AKTOR SA CYPRUS 80.00 11 RPY
175 | JV AKTOR - TERNA (STYLIDA JUNCTION) GREECE m 2012| 1 PP
JV AKTOR-PORTO CARRAS-INTRACAT ]
176 | o oA RVCR ) GREECE 50.00 2014 1 PP
177 | JV AKTOR-TERNA (NEW PATRAS PORT) GREECE 30.00 2012| 1 PP
176 | AIAS SA KASTOR SA /WESTERN LARISSA GREECE £0.00 o 1 P
BYPASS
179 | AIAS SA-KASTOR SA/RACHOULA ZARKOS GREECE 50.00 2012| 1 PP

The following joint venures were not consolidatedthie present financial statements, although ireduith the
interim summary financial report of 30.09.2012,thsy were tax-settled in Q4 2012: J/V AKTOR-ATHENA
PSITALIA 2, J/V AKTOR SA-STRABAG AG N1, J/V AKTOR & STRABAG SA MARKETS, J/V AKTOR-
PANTECHNIKI (PLATANOS), J/V AKTOR SA-PANTECHNINI SAJ/V TOMI SA-ARSI SA, J/V TOMI SA-
AKTOR FM. In addition to the above, J/V PANTECHNIA-LMN SA was not consolidated in relation to the
financial statements of the previous year as it taassettled in Q1 2012. Also, J/V PANTECHNIKI SABK
ETER SA was not consolidated using the proportitwithe equity method.
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9.d Row ‘Investments in Joint Ventures’ of the condated Statement of Financial Position shows the
participation cost in other non important Joint Weas, standing at €834 thousand on 31.12.2012a86876
thousand on 31.12.2011. The Group share in theltsesfi the aforementioned Joint Ventures appears in
Profit/(Loss) from Joint Ventures in the Incomet8taent, and stands at profit of €554 thousand @d22and loss

of €324 thousand for 2011.

The companies not included in consolidation and rélevant reasons are stated in the following taBkd
participations are shown in the financial statem@nthe acquisition cost less accumulated impaitme

REGISTERED

SIN CORPORATE NAME OFFICE

PARTICIPATION

DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL
PARTICIPATION PARTICIPATION

% % %

REASONS FOR
NON-
CONSOLIDATION

1 TECHNOVAX SA GREECE

DORMANT —
UNDER
LIQUIDATION

26.87 11.02 37.89

2 TECHNOLIT SA GREECE

DORMANT —
UNDER
LIQUIDATION

33.33 33.38

10 Investments in subsidiaries

The change to the book value of the parent compganyestments to consolidated undertakings waslks\s:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

COMPANY FIGURES

At year start
Additions- increase in participation cost
(Sales)

(Company dissolution)

At year end

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
940,259 942,277
183 38
(2,055)
(337)
940,106 940,259

The decrease of Investments in subsidiaries by €337sand pertains to ADEYP SA which was dissolve@4

2012,

The row “Sales” for 2011 presents the disposal @HBAR ENERGY SA by the parent ELLAKTOR SA to the

subsidiary AKTOR SA.

11 Investments in associates

All amounts in EUR thousand.

At year start

Additions new

Additions- increase in participation cost
(Sales)

Share in profit/ loss (after taxes)

Other changes in equity

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Note 135,863 201,391 34,871 34,871
282 - -
8,598 2,630
(1,310) (23,362) - -
2,288 1,064
(10,548) (2,078) - -
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CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Transfer to subsidiaries - (1,549) - -
Transfer to Assets available for sale 13 - (42,514) - -
At year end 134,891 135,863 34,871 34,871
Summary financial information on associates forZou2:
PARTICIPATIO
PROFIT/(L PERCENNTAGE
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES 0SS) (%)
1 ATHENS CAR PARK SA 24,991 16,899 2,416 -987 20.08
2 ANEMODOMIKI SA 115 2 - -3 43.00
3 ASTERION SA 3,928 3,340 482 17 50.00
4 AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. 683,962 769,949 147,591 4,458 20.00
5 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,441 9,486 - -133 35.00
6 GEFYRA SA 380,881 314,289 35,815 8,050 22.02
7 GEFYRA LITOURGIA SA 4,767 1,622 5,248 1,015 23.12
8 PROJECT DYNAMIC CONSTRUCTION 179 52 183 28 30.52
9 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 269 14 - -7 40.00
10 ENERMEL SA 8,589 66 - -16 46.43
11 EPANA SA* 21,673 13,300 2,594 274 16.00
12 TOMI EDL ENTERPRISES LTD 155 79 - 1 47.22
13 PEIRA SA 2,980 14 - -20 50.00
14 TERNA — PANTECHNIKI LTD 310 300 - 8 50.00
15 CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - - 50.00
16 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,717 1,366 417 -147 50.00
17 ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. 128,141 11 - 1,340 30.00
18 ELPEDISON POWER SA 647,044 499,435 407,090 -2,244 21.95
19 FREEQUEST HOLDING LTD* 275 209 225 43 16.00
20 METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK 8,291 4,192 - -26 22.91
21 POLISPARK SA 1,146 477 1,768 -62 25.04
22 SALONICA PARK SA 5,399 6,536 186 -518 24.70
23 SMYRNI PARK SA 10,516 2,706 465 -293 20.00

*The company'’s figures pertain to the period durimigich it was owned by the Group, i.e. H1 2012.

Summary financial information on associates forZoi1:

Amounts in EUR thousand

PARTICIPATION
PERCENTAGE
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES PROFIT/(LOSS) (%)
1 ATHENS CAR PARK SA 26,395 17,476 3,295 476 20.00
2 ANEMODOMIKI SA 134 18 - -3 43.00
3 ASTERION SA 4,051 3,481 - -7 50.00
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PARTICIPATION
PERCENTAGE

S/N COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES PROFIT/(LOSS) (%)

4 AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. 588,507 681,323 173,830 5,290 20.00
5 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,343 9,255 1 -32 23.38
6 GEFYRA SA 399,508 333,244 41,951 5,605 22.02
7 GEFYRA LITOURGIA SA 4,671 1,541 5,180 811 23.12
8 PROJECT DYNAMIC CONSTRUCTION 472 373 334 84 25.86
9 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 272 11 - -5 40.00
10 ENERMEL SA 8,561 22 - -34 39.33
11 EPANA SA 21,993 13,894 11,780 1,731 16.00
12 TOMI EDL ENTERPRISES LTD 159 79 - -7 40.00
13 PEIRA SA 2,998 13 - -32 50.00
14 TERNA — PANTECHNIKI LTD 297 287 - 1 50.00
15 CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - - 50.00
16 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,118 619 - -1 50.00
17 ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. 126,80p 15 - -57 30.00
18 ELPEDISON POWER SA 597,110 447,257 397,707 5,542 21.95
19 FREEQUEST HOLDING LTD 272 249 650 224 16.00
20 HERHOF VERWALTUNGS GMBH 1,276 1,358 - -100 40.00
21 METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK 9,187 5,062 - -29 22.91
22 POLISPARK SA 1,010 279 2,142 17 20.00
23 SALONICA PARK SA 5,769 6,460 281 -463 24.39
24 SMYRNI PARK SA 10,962 2,859 503 -303 20.00

In addition, REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA, DILAVHR SA AND PERME HELLAS SA were
consolidated through ATHENS RESORT CASINO SA, PEIBA and EPANA SA, respectively. Summary
information for 2012 is shown in the following tabl

PARTICIPATION
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES PROFIT/(LOSS) PERCENTAGE
1 | DILAVERIS SA 2,931 153 7 81 40.64
2 | REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA 123,965 42,033 96,5 3,392 15.30
ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSPORT (trade
3 | name PERME HELLAS SA)* 6,907 4,682 - - 9.50
*The company’s figures pertain to the period durimgich it was owned by the Group, i.e. H1 2012.
Summary information for 2011 is shown below:
PARTICIPATIO
PROFIT/(LOS N
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES S) PERCENTAGE
1 | DILAVERIS SA 2,842 144 7 -150] 40.64
2 | REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA 123,809 42,593 BEA, 7,787 15.30
ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSPORT (trade
3 | name PERME HELLAS SA) 6,903 4,68 1,493 -170 9J50
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12 Joint Ventures & Companies consolidated followinghe proportional method

The following amounts represent the Group’s sh&messets and liabilities in joint ventures and camips which
were consolidated following the proportional comdation method and which are included in the Statethof
Financial Position, together with the share of raes and expenses included in the Group’s Incomeigent
for financial years 2012 and 2011:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Receivables
Non-current assets 57,659 74,414
Current assets 449,145 466,318
506,805 540,732
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 3,171 4,959
Short-term liabilities 491,051 512,344
494,221 517,303
Equity 12,583 23,429
Income 203,494 351,604
Expenses (217,278) (389,244)
Earnings / losses (after tax) (13,784) (37,640)

13 Financial assets available for sale

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Note 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
At year start 284,851 7,355
Additions new - 3
Additions- increase in participation cost 23 -
(Sales) (93,605) -
Adjustment of reclassification of reserves
available for sale 23 (13,272) -
(Impairment) 31 - (2,193)
Transfer from Associates 11 - 42,514
Adjustment at fair value through profit and loss:
increase/(decrease) - 180,492
Adjustment at fair value through equity:
increase/(decrease) 23 (28,662) 56,680
At year end 149,335 284,851
Non-current assets 149,335 284,851

149,335 284,851
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Financial assets available for sale include thiefohg:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Listed securities: 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Shares — Greece (in EUR) 81 51
Shares — Abroad (in CAD) 144,437 280,007

Non-listed securities:

Shares — Greece (in EUR) 4,817 4,793
149,335 284,851

The parent company does not have any financiatsasailable for sale.

In the comparative figures as of 31.12.2011, tleegiase seen in rows “Transfer from Associates” ji&tinent at
fair value through profit and loss” and “Adjustmest fair value through equity” is due to the inétusin
Financial assets available for sale of the comzaBleROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD (acquired by ELDORADO
GOLD CORPORATION) and HELLAS GOLD SA. The impairmguertains to the holding in OLYMPIA ODOS
SA, in which ACTOR CONCESSIONS SA has a 17% holding

In the figures as of 31.12.2012, Sales of amouBt&¥% thousand represent the sale of part of theesteld by
the Group in ELDORADO GOLD CORPORATION during ther®nth period of 2012. The total profit from the
sale stands at €19,091 thousand (note 31). Thisuatriocludes profit of €13,272 thousand transferfiehn
Equity to profit and loss. The amount cashed imftbe sale stands at €112,696 thousand.

The fair value of non-listed securities is detemmirby discounting anticipated future cash flowsseohon the
market rate, and the required return on investmafrgmilar risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reportiage is the value at which financial assets abklfor sale
are shown.

14 Prepayments for long-term leases

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11

At year start 15,116 2,275
Additions 11,355 9,807
(Disposals) (212) -
(Depreciation and amortisation) (2,708) (237)
Reclassifications from Fixed assets under
construction - 3,270
At year end 23,551 15,116
Non-current assets 22,667 14,632
Current assets 885 484

23,551 15,116

Of the total prepayments for long-term leases, dh@unt of €21,385 thousand comes from the companies
MOREAS SA and MOREAS SEA SA (2011: €12,870 thouyaarl the amount of €2,166 thousand thousand
comes from companies in the Wind Farms segmentl(2t,245 thousand).
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15 Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12)

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Balance as
Balance as of Increase in Decrease in Unwind of of
31/12/2011 receivables receivables discount 31/12/2012
Assets
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC
12) 100,088 48,072 (45,993) 4,346 106,514
Total 100,088 48,072 (45,993) 4,346 106,514

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Non-current assets 16,269 43,284
Current assets 90,245 56,804
106,514 100,088

The receivable under Guaranteed receipt from graxoesponds to MOREAS SA.

16 Financial derivatives

Of the amounts presented in the following tables #imount of 145,826 thousand (31.12.2011: €112,486
thousand) corresponds to MOREAS SA, and the amotiil.644 thousand (31.12.2011: €1,441 thousand)
corresponds to HELECTOR-CYBARGO, and the amoun€4®4 thousand (31.12.2011: € 332 thousand)
corresponds to ATTIKI ODOS SA. Under short-ternbligies of 31.12.2011, the amount of €1,215 thauka
comes from MOREAS SA.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Long-term liabilities
Interest rate swaps for cash flow hedging 147,874 114,259
Total 147,874 114,259
Short-term liabilities
Interest rate swaps for cash flow hedging - 1,215
Total - 1,215
Total liabilities 147,874 115,474
Details of interest rate swaps
Nominal value of interest rate swaps 403,423 ,BRb
Nominal value of interest rate caps 16,751 54,594
Fixed Rate 2.01%-4.9% 2.01%-4.9%
Floating rate Euribor Euribor
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The fair value of the derivative used to hedge déml changes is posted under non-current assetsentte
residual maturity of the hedged asset is greatar 12 months.

The cash flow hedge portion deemed ineffective r@edgnised in the Income Statement correspondaites gf
€8 thousand for 2012 and losses of €279 thousand(fdl (note 32). Gains or losses from interes sataps
recognised in cash flow hedge reserves under Eqsityf 31 December 2012 will be recognised throgtfiit

and loss upon the repayment of loans.

The parent company holds no financial derivatives.

17 Inventories

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Raw materials

Finished products

Semi-finished products

Production in progress

Prepayment for inventories purchase
Other

Total

Less: Provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or

damaged inventory:
Raw materials
Finished products

Net realisable value

The Parent holds no inventory.

18 Receivables

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Trade

Trade receivables — Related parties

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

Trade Receivables - Net

Amounts due from customers for contract work

Income tax prepayment

Loans to related parties
Prepayments for operating leases
Time deposits over 3 months
Other receivables

Other receivables -Related parties

Less: Other receivable impairment provisions

Total

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
8,322 8,216
30,384 14,162
- 539
614 961
1,292 2,638
2,841 5,097
43,454 31,613
5 2,068
63 291
68 2,358
43,385 29,255

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
465,254 380,906 280 597
39 15,446 82,36 1,846 5,068
(21,335) (29,810) - (67)
459,365 373,462 2,126 5,598
145,713 131,287 - -
718 2,454 - -
39 20,838 20,730 156 237
28,767 31,484 - -
101,100 - - -
434,241 439,309 1,394 2,678
39 13,125 9,552 4,345 5,511
(11)38 (5,526) - -
1,192,486 1,002,752 8,020 14,024
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Non-current assets
Current assets

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
96,715 101,770 24 5,502
1,095,771 900,982 7,996 8,521
1,192,486 1,002,752 8,020 14,024

The account “Other Receivables” is analysed as\idl

Receivables from JVs
Sundry debtors

Greek State (taxes deducted & prepaid) & Insurance

organisations

Income for the financial year receivable
Prepaid expenses

Prepayments to suppliers/creditors
Cheques (postdated) receivable

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
144,737 152,869 - -
127,979 114,910 295 97
73,503 86,202 1,057 2,632

7,102 10,812 - -

16,628 16,183 42 42

47,452 45,651 - 7

16,840 12,682 - -

434,241 439,309 1,394 2,678

“Sundry debtors" both on 31.12.2012 and on 31.12L4Acludes the amount of €33.9 million which cepends
to receivables of THERMAIKI ODOS SA from the Gre8tate, in proportion to the Group’s stake of 50%tén

40.3).

Trade and Other receivables measured at net batkbased on the effective rate method stood at.888blion

for 2012 and €708.4 million for 2011.

The movement on provision for impairment of tradeeaivables is shown in the following table:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Balance as of 1 January 2011

Provision for impairment of receivables
Receivables written off during the year as
uncollectible

Unused provisions reversed
Foreign exchange differences

Balance as of 31 December 2011

Provision for impairment of receivables
Receivables written off during the year as
uncollectible

Unused provisions reversed
Foreign exchange differences
Balance as of 31 December 2012

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES
11,820 67
18,279 -
(236) -
(163) -
109 -
29,810 67
2,874 -
(9,728) (67)
(1,624) -
3 -
21,335 -
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The change to provision for impairment of tradesieables is shown in the following table:

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES

Balance as of 1 January 2011 - -
Provision for impairment of receivables 5,526
Balance as of 31 December 2011 5,526 -
Provision for impairment of receivables 8,596 -
Receivables written off during the year as
uncollectible (2,741) -
Balance as of 31 December 2012 11,381 -

The ageing analysis for Trade balances as of 3mber 2012 is as follows:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Not overdue and not impaired 184,784 198,535 957 1,651
Overdue:
3 -6 months 76,194 38,298 229 828
6 months to 1 year 47,487 49,970 364 1,282
1 -2 years 71,705 65,941 156 768
2 -3 years 40,965 17,196 33 432
Over 3 years 59,565 33,332 387 705
480,700 403,272 2,126 5,665
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables 8356) (29,810) - (67)
Trade Receivables - Net 459,365 373,462 2,126 5,598

Receivables are analysed in the following currencie

All amounts in EUR thousand. CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
EUR 964,682 762,508 8,020 14,024
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 45,602 48,348 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 56,239 39,056 - -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 24,257 12,162 - -
BRITISH POUND (£) 258 - - -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 8,548 2,224 - -
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 14,531 38,551 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 58,110 90,706 - -
OMAN RIYAL (OMR) 37 90 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 5,897 7,526 - -
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 13,982 1,582 - -
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 28 - - -
TURKISH LIRA (TRY) 314 - - -
1,192,486 1,002,752 8,020 14,024

The book value of long term receivables is appraxeario their fair value.
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19 Financial assets held to maturity
Financial assets held to maturity include the foilm:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Listed securities - bonds
EIB bond at 2.5%, maturity on 15.04.2012 - 68,842
EIB bond at 5.375%, maturity on 15.10.12 - 25,533
EIB bond at 4.375%, maturity on 15.04.13 41,339 3,642
EIB bond at 3.625%, maturity on 15.10.13 92,224 4,620
EIB bond at 2.125%, maturity on 15.01.2014 25,129
Total 158,691 182,607

The change in financial assets held to maturishswn in the table below:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
At year start 182,607 87,694
Additions 75,874 185,176
(Maturities) (94.975) (86,977)
(premium amortisation) (4,815) (3,286)
At year end 158,691 182,607
Non-current assets 25,129 88,232
Current assets 133,563 94,375
Total 158,691 182,607

Out of €158,691 thousand in total, ATTIKI ODOS S €152,944 thousand and AKTOR CONCESSIONS
SA owns €5,747 thousand.

The amortisation of the bond premium of €4,815 Hama (2011: €3,286 thousand) has been recognista in
Income Statement for the period, row Financial mebexpenses —net.

The fair value of bonds on 31.12.2012 stands a9£B® thousand (31.12.2011: €181,766 thousand®. Th
maximum exposure to credit risk on 31.12.2012 gmoads to the carrying value of such financial ssse

The currency of financial assets held to matustgturo.

The parent Company has no financial assets hettatarity.
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20 Committed deposits

The Group’s Committed Deposits stood at €81,828shnd and €47,943 thousand on 31.12.2012 and 3Q1112.
respectively. The largest part comes from the slidngi ATTIKI ODOS SA, and in particular by €37,515
thousand on 31.12.2011 and €37,609 thousand o2.20111.

Committed deposits in cases of self- or co-finanpegjects (e.g. Attica Tollway, wind farms, enviroantal

management projects, etc) correspond to accoungmgeshort-term instalments of long-term loansreserve
accounts. It should be noted that the balance obwats serving short-term instalments is used mmaye
subsequent amortisation loan instalments. Alscsethay correspond to cash deposits held as sedorithe

issue of guarantee letters from international, lyigated financial institutions.

21 Cash and cash equivalents

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Cash in hand 3,999 2,206 2
Sight deposits 228,896 240,434 764 3,466
Time deposits 473,939 563,514 -
Total 706,835 806,154 766 3,466

The balance of Time deposits at a consolidated leweesponds primarily to ATTIKI ODOS SA by €453&
thousand (2011: €500,184 thousand). The balantespwnds to many other subsidiaries.

The following table shows the rates of depositsqoedit rating class by Standard & Poor (S&P) a3112.2012.

Sight and time deposits %

Financial Institution Rating 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
(S&P)

A+ 0.1% 0.0%
AA- 3.7% 1.1%
A 5.5% 0.6%
A- 0.4% 0.0%
BBB+ 0.0% 9.4%
CCC 74.3% 77.7%
NR 16.0% 11.1%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0%

Out of the sight and time deposit balances of theufs as of 31.12.2012, approximately 88% is depdsitith six
banks with low or no credit rating, due to the Grsevereign debt crisis. It should be pointed botyvever, that
these banks cover the largest part of total cfadilities (letters of guarantee, loans, etc.) tgdrio the Group.

The rates of time deposits are determined afteotrans with selected banking institutions basedEuribor
for an equal period with the selected placement (geek, month etc).
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Cash and cash equivalents are analysed in thevialipcurrencies:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

EUR
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD)
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD)

US DOLLAR ($)

ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON)

SERBIAN DINAR (RSD)
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
DIRHAM (AED)

QATAR RIYAL (QAR)
OMAN RIYAL (OMR)

SAUDI ARABIAN RIYAL (SAR)
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN)
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL)
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB)
SUDANESE POUND (SDG)
TURKISH LIRA (TRY)

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

22  Share Capital & Premium Reserve

All amounts in EUR, save the number of shares

1 January 2011
31 December 2011

1 January 2012
31 December 2012

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
686,920 776,114 766 3,466
30 170 - -
184 200 - -
733 14,967 - -
7,487 969 - -
165 33 - -
2,087 3,346 - -
6,554 3,367 - -
2,055 88 - -
- 3 - -
269 5,216 - -
134 1,659 - -
22 17 - -
- 4 - -
195 - - -
706,835 806,154 766 3,466
Share Treasury
Number of Shares Share capital premium shares Total
172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (27,072) 679,086
172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (23,07 679,086
172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (27,072) 679,086
172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (23,07 679,086

The Company currently holds 4,570,034 treasuryeshaepresenting 2.58% of its paid up share cafitathe
total acquisition value of €27,072,275, at the ageracquisition price of €5.92 per share. The Caoryipashare
capital amounts to EUR 182,311,352.39, divided Iit@,001,313 shares with the face value of €1.08.ea
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23 Other reserves

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1 January 2011

Foreign exchange differences
Transfer from retained
earnings

Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale / Cash
flow hedge

Effect of sale of 15% of
MOREAS SA

Reclassification adjustment of
cash flow hedge reserve

31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Foreign exchange differences
Transfer from retained
earnings

Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale / Cash
flow hedge

Effect of participation change
in subsidiaries

Adjustment of reclassification
of reserves available for sale

31 December 2012

FX Cash Flow
Statutory Special Untaxed Available for differences hedging Other
reserves reserves reserves sale reserves reserves reserves reserves Total
40,573 86,921 72,260 (144) 3,856 ,&38) 39,298 190,135
- - - - (2,212) - - (2,212)
1,949 11,378 904 - - - - 14,231
- - - 56,680 - (33,866) - 22,814
- - - - 7,320 - 7,320
- - - - (1,278) (8,784) {10,062)
42,522 98,299 73,164 56,536 366 7,968) 39,298 222,226
42,522 98,299 73,164 56,536 366 989) 39,298 222,226
R - - - (2,458) - - (2,458)
2,132 7,878 52,915 - - - - 62,925
- - - (28,662) - (23,238) - (51,900)
271 370 (255) - (817) (100) - (532
- - - (13,272) - - - (13,272)
44,925 106,546 125,824 14,602 08,9 (111,296) 39,298 216,989

Out of the decrease of €23.238 thousand seen €&k flow hedging reserves for 2012, the amou@6a897
thousand is due to Group associates. Group asssdiatl no contribution to the increase of €2,4683hnd seen
in the foreign exchange difference reserves. Assesicontributed by 15,775 thousand to the deciea&42,650
thousand in Cash flow hedging reserves, and catétibby €2,116 thousand to the decrease of €3 8and
in exchange difference reserves.

The reclassification adjustment of €13,272 thouseqmtesents profit transferred from Equity in tmedme
Statement when part of the shares in ELDORADO G@@RPORATION was sold. In the comparative figures
for FY 2011, the amount of €56,680 thousand by tvitiee Assets available for sale reserve was inettags
mainly due to a change in the fair value of EGUg(aied by ELDORADO) and HELLAS GOLD SA in the
period from the date of classification thereof asmRcial assets available for sale to 31.12.2011.

COMPANY FIGURES

1 January 2011
Transfer from/ to profit and loss

Changes in value of cash flow hedge

31 December 2011

Cash Flow
Statutory Special Untaxed hedging Other
reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves Total
18,114 30,691 50,044 (194) 3,910 ,362
- - 350 - - 350
- - - 194 - 194
18,114 30,691 50,394 - 3,910 18,1
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Cash Flow
Statutory Special Untaxed hedging Other
reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves Total
1 January 2012 18,114 30,691 50,394 3,910 103,109
31 December 2012 18,114 30,691 50,394 - 3,910 18,1

(a) Statutory reserve

The provisions of articles 44 and 45 of CodifiedM 8920 regulate the way the legal reserve is foramt used:
At least 5% of each year’s actual (book) net egmimust be withheld to form a statutory reservdil time

statutory reserve’s accumulated amount equalsaat &3 of the share capital. Upon decision of @dinary
General Meeting of Shareholders, the statutoryrvesmay be used to cover losses, and thereforenoiaye used
for any other purpose.

(b) Special reserves

Reserves of this category have been created upnsiate of the Ordinary General Meeting in past gedo not
have any specific designation and may thereforadeel for any purpose, upon decision of the Orditzeperal
Meeting.

(c) Untaxed reserves

The foregoing reserves may be capitalised andildigeéd (having due regard to the applicable lirdtat) upon
decision of the Ordinary General Meeting of shaldéis.

In case distribution is decided, the company waNéto pay the relevant taxes.

24  Borrowings

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Long-term borrowings
Bank borrowing 567,137 608,570 - -
Financial leases 1,494 116 - -
Bond loans 634,998 804,917 137,193 159,314
From related parties - 40 24,400 -
Total long-term borrowings 1,203,629 1,413,643 161,593 159,314
Short-term borrowing
Bank overdrafts 1,601 5,815 - -
Bank borrowing 216,931 214,482 75,000 20,000
Bond loans 333,750 257,575 14,721 64,720
Financial leases 545 118 - -
Total short-term borrowings 552,827 477,990 89,721 84,720
Total borrowings 1,756,456 1,891,633 251,314 244,034

The change seen in the Bond Loan row under short-terrowings mainly corresponds to a transfer afic
loans from long-term to short-term borrowings (ngirthe amount of €110.0 million by AKTOR

CONCESSIONS SA), as these mature within one yean the reporting date (31.12.2012).
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The total borrowings include amounts from subordidanon-recourse debt amounting to a total of €0&sllion
(2011: €1.023,3 million) from concession companiagparticular amounting to €518,0 million (20¥571.9
million) from ATTIKI ODOS SA, €470.5 million (201:1440.7 million) from MOREAS SA, and €10.7 million
(2011: €10.7 million) from THERMAIKI ODOS SA.

Exposure to changes in interest rates and the datesvoicing are set out in the following table:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

FIXED
INTEREST
RATE FLOATING RATE
upto 6
months 6 — 12 months Total
31 December 2011
Total borrowings 748,778 790,811 4,240 1,543,829
Effect of interest rate swaps 347,804 - - 347,804
1,096,582 790,811 4,240 1,891,633
31 December 2012
Total borrowings 718,458 745,544 10,070 1,474,072
Effect of interest rate swaps 282,384 - - 282,384
1,000,842 745,544 10,070 1,756,456
COMPANY FIGURES
FIXED
INTEREST
RATE FLOATING RATE
up to 6 months Total
31 December 2011
Total borrowings 49,685 194,349 244,034
49,685 194,349 244,034
31 December 2012
Total borrowings 74,185 177,129 251,314
74,185 177,129 251,314
The maturities of long-term borrowings are as falo
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Between 1 and 2 years 195,036 304,899 87,408 22,22
2to 5 years 416,563 487,785 74,185 137,093
Over 5 years 592,030 620,960 - -
1,203,629 1,413,643 161,593 159,314

Out of total borrowings, the amount of €718,5 roillirepresents fixed or regularly revised rate laaagly for

cofinanced/ self-financed projects at the averade of 4,64% (compared to €748,8 million at therage rate of
4,60% for 2011), while the additional amount of £2Bmillion is subject to rate risk hedging (inchsdloan
hedge and spread) at the average rate of 6,03%pgrech to €347,8 million at the average rate of &dbr

2011). All other borrowings, amounting to €755,8liom (as compared to €795,1 million in 2011) al@afing

rate loans (e.g. loans in EUR, Euribor plus spread)
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Group borrowing is broken down in the following mmcies:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
EUR 1,751,449 1,839,654
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 234 2,542
US DOLLAR ($) - 9,743
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 1,826 31,135
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 2,947 8,559

1,756,456 1,891,633

All Company borrowings are expressed in Euros.

In addition, on 31.12.2012, ELLAKTOR had issued pamy guarantees for €116.9 million (31.12.2011:3€23
million) in favour of companies in which it parti@tes, mainly to ensure bank credit lines or crémim
suppliers.

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by diseting anticipated future cash flows, using disd¢aates which
represent the current conditions on the bankindetar

The book value of short-term borrowings approaches fair value, as the discount effect is insfigaint. At a
consolidated level, the fair value of fixed rateroavings as of 31.12.2012, of a book value of €318illion, was
calculated at €686,5 million (as of 31.12.2011 fdie value of fixed rate borrowings of a book valoie€748,8
million amounted to €676,0 million).

At a parent company level the fair value of fixeder borrowings as of 31.12.2012, of a book valu€®f,2
million, is estimated at €73,0 million (respectiuehs of 31.12.2011:book value of €49,7 million daid value of
€47,0 million).

Financial lease commitments, which are comprisétiérabove tables, are analyzed as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Financial lease commitments — minimum lease
payments
under 1 year 593 127
1-5 years 1.563 121
Total 2,156 248
Less: Future financial debits of financial leases 117) (14)
Present value of financial lease commitments 2,039 234

The present value of financial lease commitmenéayzed below:
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
under 1 year 545 118
1-5 years 1,494 116
Total 2,039 234

The parent company has no financial lease liabdliti
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25

Grants

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Note 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
At year start 56,649 42,551
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 1,088 -
Additions 8,159 17,604
Transfer to results (Other income-expenses) 31 (3,873) (3,506)
At year end 62,023 56,649

The balance of Grants as of 31.12.2012 mainly caapithe following amounts:

)

i)

ii)

iv)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

iX)

€38,354 thousand for grants received by ELLINIKIGHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA under OPCE (CRES
and ELANET acting as intermediate agencies) forabestruction of Wind Farms in Kefalonia, Mytilini,
Alexandroupoli, Lakonia and Argolida. The grantqeartage represents 30% of each investment’s budget.

€10,021 thousand for grant received by subsidiaBAN SA under OPCE for the construction of a co-
generation power plant using biogas from the Anosia landfill. The grant amount covers 40% of the
investment’s budget.

€2,698 thousand for grant received by subsidiart HETOR from the European Commission for the
development of power plants using pioneering methedch as secondary fuel gasification (Gas Bianef
Polystabilat programs) and anaerobic digestion rgfamic waste (biogas program). The grand amount
represents approximately 55% of the budgeted ocoshé development of said power plants.

€2,207 for grant received by subsidiary AKTOR COMNSHONS SA-ARCHITECH SA for the
development and operation of a public parking wattal capacity of 958 parking spaces in teh Muratip
of Thessaloniki, area of YMCA junction.

€1,787 thousand for grant received by subsidiafyGRIKI DODEKANISSOU SA under OPCE regarding
project “Wind power utilisation for the power geation in the islands of Rhodes (3.0 MW), Kos (3.8VM
and Patmos (1.2 MW)". The government grant amoowtis 30% of the investment’s budget.

€1,573 thousand for grant received by HELECTOR $Wlen OPCE regarding project “Electrical power
generation from Tagarades Thessaloniki Sanitarydfithrbiogas” project, with a 5 MW capacity. The
government grant amount covers 40% of the investsibadget.

€2.053 thousand for grant received by subsidiaryEMDS ALKYONIS SA under OPCE for the
construction of a 6.30 MW Wind Farm in the Munidipaof Kissamos, in the Prefecture of Chania. The
government grant amount covers 30% of the investsibodget.

€470 thousand for a grant received by subsidial@ RENEWABLES SA under OPCE for the construction
of a 4,95 MW hydro plant at Smixiotiko stream, Meipality of Ziaka, Grevena. The government grant
amount covers 30% of the investment’s budget.

€211 thousand for grant received by subsidiary BEOLWKARPASTONIOU SA under OPCE for the

construction of a 1.2 MW Wind Farm in the Municiipalof Karystos, in the Prefecture of Evia. The
government grant amount covers 30% of the investsibadget.
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Of the Additions for the year standing at €8,158ugend, the amount of €6,867 thousand comes froniNEKI

TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA, the amount of €1,213 thondafrom ANEMOS ALKYONIS SA, and the

amount of €79 thousand from HELECTOR SA. The pa@mnpany has no grant balances.

26  Suppliers and other liabilities
The Company'’s liabilities from trade activities diree of interest.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Trade payables 257,668 207,202 370 83
Accrued expenses 19,579 20,846 143 194
Social security and other taxes 23,584 33,195 387 632
Amounts due to customers for contract work 60,948 47,649 - -
Prepayments for operating leases 1,682 1,719 - -
Other liabilities 473,577 390,366 1,143 2,508
Total liabilities — Related parties 3,518 4,049 1,167 659
Total 840,558 705,025 3,209 4,077
Long-term 25,016 24,062 866 217
Short-term 815,542 680,963 2,343 3,860
Total 840,558 705,025 3,209 4,077

The account “Other Liabilities” is analysed as dalk:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Sundry creditors 151,751 121,427 774 2,133
Advances from customers 172,623 110,995 - -
Liabilities to contractors 76,417 75,502 261 80
Liabilities to JVs 56,799 62,229 - -
Beneficiaries of fees for services provided and
Employee fees payable 15,989 20,213 108 295

473,577 390,366 1,143 2,508

Total payables are analysed in the following curiest

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
EUR 605,795 522,701 3,209 4,077
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 30,576 43,768 - -
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD) 176 119 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 72,983 24,777 - -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 31,655 5,220 - -
BRITISH POUND (£) 1 11 - -

(101) / (120)



ELLAKTOR SA
‘ ELLAKTOR Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS

for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 14,592 4,485 - -
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 33,859 43,784 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 34,771 42,514 - -
OMAN RIYAL (OMR) 236 941 - -
SAUDI ARABIAN RIYAL (SAR) - 104 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 8,185 15,279 - -
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 7,721 1,322 - -
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 8 1 - -
840,558 705,025 3,209 4,077

Trade and Other liabilities measured at net boakt osing the effective interest rate method aménirg583.4
million for 2012 (2011: €513.2 million).

The book value of long-term liabilities approachesir fair value.

27 Deferred taxation

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are conspéed when there is an applicable legal right topensate the
current tax receivables against the current tabiliiees and when the deferred income taxes invohesame tax

authority. The offset amounts for the Group areftfiewing:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11

Deferred tax liabilities 109,015 102,748
109,015 102,748

Deferred tax assets 41,979 34,091
41,979 34,091

67,036 68,657

Total change in deferred income tax is presentéabe

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Opening balance 68,657 79,373
Income statement debit/(credit) (Note 34) 2,895 ,5713)
Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit)
(note 34) (5,644) (8,567)
Acquisition/ disposal of subsidiary 1,178 1,443
Foreign exchange differences (50) (17)
Closing balance 67,036 68,657
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Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidesng the year, without taking into account offiegy of

balances with the same tax authority, are the iotig:
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Deferred tax liabilities:

1-Jan-11

Income statement debit/(credit)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

Foreign exchange differences

31-Dec-11

1-Jan-12

Income statement debit/(credit)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

Foreign exchange differences

31-Dec-12

Deferred tax assets:

1-Jan-11

Income statement debit/(credit)

Other comprehensive income (debit)/

credit

Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

31-Dec-11

1-Jan-12

Income statement debit/(credit)

Other comprehensive income (debit)/

credit

Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

31-Dec-12

Accelerated  Construction Other Total
tax contracts
depreciation
191,490 47,357 11,942 250,788
(15,934) (19,740) 3 3 (35,641)
1,452 - - 524
(17) - - (17)
176,991 27,617 11,974 216,582
176,991 27,617 11,974 216,582
(13,672) 184 684 2,803)
10 - 1,170 181
(50) - - (50)
163,279 27,801 13,829 204,909
Provisions Accelerated Tax Cash Flow Contract Other Total
tax losses hedging works
depreciation reserves
451 6.198 40.262 13.036 31.575 79.894 171.415
(448) 1.890 (26.442) - (4.561) (2.507)  (32.067)
- 25 8.521 - 21 8.567
- 9 - - - - 9
3 8.123 13.820 21.557 27.014 77.409 147.925
3 8.123 13.820 21.557 27.014 77.409 147.925
- 3.191 (13.055) (4.355) (1.480) (15.699)
- - - 5.639 - 5 5.644
- 3 - - - - 3
3 11.317 765 27.196 22.660 75.934  137.874
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The offset amounts for the Company are the follgwin
COMPANY FIGURES

All amounts in EUR thousand.

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Deferred tax liabilities 496 397
496 397
Total change in deferred income tax is presentémibe
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Opening balance 397 90
Income statement debit/(credit) (note 34) 98 244
Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit) (note 34 - 63
Closing balance 496 397

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidesng the year, without taking into account offise of
balances with the same tax authority, are theiotig:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accelerated Other Total
tax
depreciation
1-Jan-11 693 100 793
Debit/(credit) in profit and loss 163 94 257
31-Dec-11 857 193 1,050
1-Jan-12 857 193 1,050
Debit/(credit) in profit and loss 166 (76) 90
31-Dec-12 1,022 117 1,140
Deferred tax assets:
Accelerated Other Cash Flow Total
tax hedging
depreciation reserves
1-Jan-11 601 38 63 702
Income statement debit/(credit) - 13 - 13
Other comprehensive income (debit)/ credit - - (63) (63)
31-Dec-11 601 51 - 652
1-Jan-12 601 51 - 652
Income statement debit/(credit) - (9) - (9)
31-Dec-12 601 43 - 644

In relation to changes to Greek tax laws made 8ftet2.2012, see note 41.1.
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28 Retirement benefit obligations
All amounts in EUR thousand.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FineRoisition are the following:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position
for:
Retirement benefits 7,600 7,640 109 98
Total 7,600 7,640 109 98

The amounts recognised in the Income Statemenhar®llowing:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Income statement charge for:
Retirement benefits 4,757 5,866 21 142
Total 4,757 5,866 21 142

The amounts reported in the Statement of FinaRmaltion are:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Present value of non-financed liabilities
9,407 8,327 145 130
Non-booked actuarial (earnings)/losses (1,705) (687) - (32)
Non-booked past service cost (102) R (36) -
Liability in Statement of Financial Position 7,600 7,640 109 98

The amounts reported in the Income Statement are:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Current employment cost 1,513 1,124 4 23
Financial cost 390 472 6 14
Depreciation of non-booked actuarial profit / (Joss 11 156 2 11
Net actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in the yea 5 107 - 95
Past service cost (207) (40) - -
Cut-down losses 3,045 4,047 8 -
Total included in staff benefits 4,757 5,866 21 42
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The movement in liability as presented in the Statiet of Financial Position is as follows:

Opening balance
Indemnities paid

Total expense charged in the income statement

Closing balance

CONSOLIDATED

The main actuarial assumptions used for accouptimgoses are:

Discounting interest

Future salary raises

29 Provisions

All amounts in EUR thousand.

1 January 2011

Additional provisions for financial year
Unused provisions reversed

Foreign exchange differences

Used provisions for financial year

31 December 2011

1 January 2012

Additional provisions for financial year
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary
Unused provisions reversed

Foreign exchange differences

Used provisions for financial year

31 December 2012

Analysis of total provisions:
Long-term

Short-term

Total

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
7,640 8,824 98 193
(4,797) (7,050) (20) (237)
74,75 5,866 21 142
7,600 7,640 109 98
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
3.60% 4.80%
- 4.00%

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

Other Other
provisions Total provisions Total
124,429 124,429 519 519
44,885 44,885 - -
(3,805) (3,806) - -
221 221 - -
(7,558) (7,558) - -
158,172 158,172 519 519
158,172 158,172 519 519
10,556 10,556 - -
105 105 - -
(270) (270) - -
(385) (385) - -
(4,531) (4,531) - -
163,647 163,647 519 519

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
121,202 118,449 519 519
42,445 39,723 - -
163,647 158,172 519 519

(106) / (120)



‘ ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

With regard to “Other provisions”, the amount 0fi61315 thousand (2011: €111,299 thousand) pertaitise
provision for heavy maintenance of the ATTIKI OD@3 concession contract, the amount of €2,269 thulisa
(2011: €2,205 thousand) to tax provisions for uiteddfinancial years, and the amount of €46,063uskhad
(2011: €44,668 thousand) to other provisions. Ofhewisions also include the amount of €28,371 tlamal
pertaining to a provision made for future inability perform a partner’'s obligation abroad, with ebhiwe
participate in the same Joint Venture (2011: €26 tB8usand).

The amount of €519 thousand shown in Company Fgpeetains to provisions for unaudited years (38i®).

30 EXxpenses per category

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1-Jan to 31-Dec-12

1-Jan to 31-Dec-11

Distribution  Administrative Distribution  Administrative
Note  Cost of sales costs expenses Total Cost of sales costs expenses Total
Employee
benefits 33 136,480 1,626 21,781 159,887 207,226 ,6351 19,214 228,075
Inventories used 381,598 9 243 381,851 342,889 - 209 343,098
Depreciation of
tangible assets 6 39,325 62 2,995 42,382 42,210 5 7 5,005 47,290
Impairment of
PPE 6 1,144 - - 1,144 - - 47 47
Amortisation of
intangible assets 7 63,158 - 95 63,253 61,659 2 3 5 61,714
Depreciation of
investment
properties 8 1,067 - 397 1,465 219 308 527
Repair and
maintenance
expenses of
PPE 20,159 33 463 20,656 37,378 13 231 37,621
Operating lease
rents 14,424 322 1,363 16,108 15,943 45 2,792 7808,
Third party fees 357,070 2,574 20,607 380,250 6,687 5,064 21,487 433,188
Other 51,461 2,186 10,165 63,812 70,316 2,438 93El, 84,690
Total 1,065,886 6,812 58,108 1,130,806 1,184,477 9,271 61,283 1,255,031
COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 31-Dec-12 1-Jan to 31-Dec-11
Cost of Administrative Cost of Administrative
Note sales expenses Total sales expenses Total
Employee benefits 33 - 597 597 - 2,213 2,213
Depreciation of tangible assets 6 - 186 186 - 198 198
Depreciation of investment
properties 8 - 969 969 - 969 969
Repair and maintenance
expenses of PPE - 32 32 - 3 3
Third party fees 160 1,154 1,314 446 913 1,359
Other - 1,106 1,106 - 1,260 1,260
Total 160 4,044 4,204 446 5,557 6,003
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31

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Income / (expenses) from participations & secisif@part from

dividerds’
Profit from the disposal of % in ELDORADO/ EUROPEAN

GOLDFIELDS (EGU) & adjustment at fair value of the
remaining holding

Profit /(loss) from the disposal of subsidiaries
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of Associates
Profit/ (losses) from the sale of PPE
Profits/(losses) from sale of intangible assets
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of investment prdp
Amortisation of grants received

Impairment of JVs (-).

Impairment of assets available for sale (-)
Impairment of investment properties (-)
Rents

Impairment provisions and disposals

Other profit/ (losses)

Total

Other operating income/ expenses

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
Note 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
2,109 1,885 - (22)
19,091 261,250 - -
,61B - 3,423
B8 (20) - -
1,511 3,153 2 -
) @ - - -
- (1) - R
25 3,873 3,506 - -
- (1) - ®
13 - (2,193) - -
8 (2,340) 4,100) - -
7,161 7,778 2,374 2,618
(12,927) @91 -
(7,642) 7,753 (320) 401
12,067 201,793 2,057 6,414

Given the overall economic uncertainty, and paldidy the ongoing recession of the Greek econony it
effects on the construction segment, relating tah bpublic projects and private economic activithet
Management proceeded on 31.12.2012, as it did di22D11, to more conservative estimates concerttiag
degree and time or recovery of the Group’s invoiaad non-invoiced receivables. For FY 2012, the ag@mnet
formed impairment and disposal provisions of €12,8#busand in total (the respective amount for PY22was
€77,189 thousand), with respective credit entniethe construction segment items “Trade”, “Rece@alfrom
construction contracts”, “Other receivables” andtH€r provisions”. These provisions pertain to:(@npleted
projects in the Public and wider Public sector, Wdrich the certification and receipt of relevantaamts has
become doubtful due to the adverse economic comditi (b) foreign projects, and (c) to a lesser réxte

receivables from the domestic private sector.

32

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Interest expenses
- Bank borrowings
- Financial Leases

Interest income
Net interest (expenses)/ income

Financial income/ (expenses) - net

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
(95,033) (96,987) (14,366) (11,908)
(80) (23) - -
(95,113) (97,010) (14,366) (11,908)
40,915 40,700 17 869
(54,198) (56,310) (14,349) (11,039)
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11

Interest of provision for heavy maintenance of AKITI

ODOS SA (4,550) (8,416) -

Net foreign exchange differences profit/ (lossydro

borrowings (261) 2,661 -

Profit/ (loss) from interest rate swaps to hedgehdows —

Transfer from reserve 8 279 -

Financial income/ (expenses) - net (59,002) (61,787 (14,349) (11,039)

33 Employee benefits

All amounts in EUR thousand.
CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Wages and salaries 115,031 167,707 495 1,997
Social security expenses 30,465 38,967 74 74
Pension costs - defined benefit plans 4,757 5,866 21 142
Other employee benefits 9,633 15,536 7
Total 159,887 228,075 597 2,213

34 Income tax

All amounts in EUR thousand.
CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12  31-Dec-11
Tax for the year 22,752 20,727 - 245
Deferred tax 2,895 (3,574) 98 244
Total 25,647 17,153 98 489

Pursuant to Law 2011, the income tax rate for leguities is set at 20% for FY 2011 and thereaffeurther, a
25% withholding tax is imposed on the profits disited by domestic companies, which is paid by beiagies
and applies to distributable profits approved frbinrdanuary 2012 and thereafter. Especially as regarafits

distributed within 2011, the withholding tax rase21%.

Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonyme and Limitiadbility Companies whose annual financial stateteen
are mandatorily audited by legally appointed auditre required to obtain an “Annual Certificat&ter Article
82(5) of Law 2238/1994, which is issued followingga audit performed by the legally appointed aurditr audit
firm that audits the annual financial statementsotycompletion of the tax audit, the legally appeihauditor or
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auditing firm issues to the company a “Tax Compd@Report” and then the legally appointed auditcaualiting

firm submits it to the Ministry of Finance electioally no later than ten days from the expiry dat¢he deadline
set for the approval of the company’s financiatestzents by the General Meeting of Shareholdere Mimistry

of Finance will choose a sample of certain compangpresenting at least 9% which will be re-audiigdhe

competent auditing services of the Ministry. Theditiin question will have been completed no latean

eighteen months of the date of submission of thex"Tompliance Report” to the Ministry of Finance.

In relation to changes to Greek tax laws made &ftet2.2012, see note 41.1.

The table presenting the analysis of unauditedhiiizd years of all companies under consolidatisnstiown in
Note 9.

Tax on profit before taxes of the company is ddfdrfrom the theoretical amount that would ariseéf use the
weighted average tax rate of the country from whighcompany originates, as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Accounting profit / (losses) before tax 57,919 90,034 (16,279) (9,893)
Tax calculated on profits under current tax raggsliad in the
respective countries 10,262 5,335 (3,256) (1,979)
Adjustments
Untaxed income (5,640) (17,656) )] -
Expenses non-rebatable for tax purposes 13,576 522,1 139 (30)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax receivablegwecognised 9,177 8,390 3,219 2,269
Prior period and other taxes 963 2,809 - 245
Use of tax losses from prior financial years (2)691 (3,112) -
Effect of change to tax rate - (768) - (17)
Taxes 25,647 17,153 98 489

The average tax rate for the Group for 2012 is 2%,72011: 5.93%), while the average weighted td® i®
44.28% (2011: 19.05%). This increase is mainlg thuthe reduced profits of Group subsidiaries dded in
countries with a low tax rate in relation to theyous year.

The tax corresponding to Other Comprehensive Indeme

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1-Jan to 31-Dec-12 1-Jan to 31-Dec-11
Tax
Tax (debit) (debit) /
Before tax / credit After tax Before tax credit After tax
Foreign exchange differences (3,309) - (3,309) (2,817) - (2,817)
Reclassification adjustment of the foreign
exchange differences reserve of EGU - - - (2,278) - (1,278)
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1-Jan to 31-Dec-12

1-Jan to 31-Dec-11

Changes in value of financial assets available

for sale
Cash flow hedge
Effect of change to tax rate

Reclassification adjustment of cash flow
hedge reserve of EGU

Other

Other Comprehensive Income

COMPANY FIGURES

Cash flow hedge

Other Comprehensive Income

35 Earnings per share

Profit/ (loss) attributable to parent company egihiblders (in € ,000)
Weighted average of ordinary shares (in ,000)

Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €)

Profit/ (loss) attributable to parent company egtilders (in € ,000)
Weighted average of ordinary shares (in ,000)

Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €)

36 Dividends per share

Tax
Tax (debit) (debit) /
Before tax / credit After tax Before tax credit After tax

(41,934) (41,934) 56,680 56,680
(35,293) 5,639 (29,654) (53,051) 9,139 (43,912)

- - (618) (618)

- (8,784) - (8,784)

(63) 5 (57) (243) 46 (197)
(80,600) 5,644 (74,955) (9,493) 8,567 (926)

1-Jan to 31-Dec-12

1-Jan to 31-Dec-11

Tax
Tax (debit) (debit) /
Before tax / credit After tax Before tax credit After tax
- 257 (63) 194
- 257 (63) 195

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
11,789 72,783
BRr.4 172,431
0.0684 0.4221

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
(16,378) (10,382)
BR4 172,431
(0.0950) (0.0602)

The Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholdwisl on 29.06.2012 decided to not distribute d@iwidi for
FY 2011. The dividends distributed for FY 2010 amied to €5,310,039.39 (2009: €17,700,131.30),6003
per share (2009: €0.10). Pursuant to article 16§8¢ Law 2190/1920, the amount of dividend atttitile to
treasury shares increases the dividend of othere8bklers. This dividend is subject to dividendhhiitlding tax,
in accordance with the applicable tax legislation.
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37 Commitments

The following amounts represent commitments foretsperating leases from Group subsidiaries, wiigh
leased to third parties.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
Up to 1 year 1,550 1,303
From 1-5 years 2,281 4,076
Over 5 years 611 2,257
Total 4,442 7,636

38 Contingent receivables and liabilities

(a) Proceedings have been initiated against theiisfar work accidents which occurred during thecexion of
construction projects by companies or joint vergurewhich the Group participates. Because the Gisdully
insured against work accidents, no substantial mbcances are anticipated as a result of rulingsnagéhe
Group. Other litigations or disputes referred tbitaation, as well as the pending court or arbidratulings are
not expected to have a material effect on the firrstanding or the operations of the Group orGmenpany,
and for this reason no relevant provisions have lieened.

(b) Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonyme and lkeidhitiability Companies whose annual financial staats
are mandatorily audited are required to obtain Anntial Certificate” under Article 82(5) of Law 223894.

This “Annual Certificate” is issued following a tadit performed by the legally appointed auditoaodit firm

that audits the annual financial statements. Uppmpdetion of the tax audit, the statutory auditoraadit firm

issues to the company a “Tax Compliance Report”thed the statutory auditor or audit firm submitsoi the
Ministry of Finance electronically. The “Tax Congatice Report” must be submitted to the Ministry ofalRce
no later than the tenth day of the seventh mortdr &hancial year end. The Ministry of Financelwihoose a
sample of certain companies representing at I€asbPall companies submitting a “Tax Compliance &#pto

be re-audited by the competent auditing servicethefMinistry. The audit must be completed no latean

eighteen months from the date of submission of Tlax Compliance Report” to the Ministry of Finance.

The unaudited years for the consolidated Group eomieis are shown in Note 9. The Group’s tax lidbgitfor
these years have not been finalised; thereforepbssible that additional charges are imposed \lemnelevant
audits are performed by the tax authorities (n®e ELLAKTOR, the parent company, has not beenatadited
for financial year 2010. It has been was auditead=¢ 2011 pursuant to Law 2238/1194 and has obdam&ax
compliance certificate from PricewaterhouseCoophswithout any adjustments regarding tax expenseb a
related tax provisions, as these are reflectedhénannual financial statements for 20Ebr the financial year
2012, the tax audit frorRricewaterhouseCoopers $Ain progress. For the subsidiaries domiciled egge, the
tax audit is in progress by thegally appointed auditors.

The Group companies which are domiciled in Greecenaardatorily audited by audit firmend have obtained
tax compliance certificate for FY 2011, are marketh an asterisk (*) in Note 9, in the column ofaumlited
years. In accordance with the applicable law, fom@nyear 2011 should be considered as the definitear for
tax audit purposes eighteen months after the “Tam@iance Report” has been submitted to the Mipistr
Finance.
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(c) The Group has contingent liabilities in relatim banks, other guarantees, and other mattersitise from its
normal business activity and from which no subshburden is expected to arise.

39 Transactions with related parties
All amounts in EUR thousand.

The aggregate amounts of sales and purchases &anstart, as well as the closing balances of vab&s and
liabilities at year end, which have resulted fraamsactions with related parties under IAS 24 aaréollows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
a) Sales of goods and services 53,301 83,128 3,670 4,393
Sales to subsidiaries - - 3,626 3,988
Sales to associates 1,493 4,857
Sales to related parties 51,808 78,271 44 405
b) Purchases of goods and services 32,706 44,067 , 2801 798
Purchases from subsidiaries - - 1,280 798
Purchases from associates 1 75 -
Purchases from related parties 32,705 43,992
c) Income from dividends - - 18 41
d) Key management compensation 7,236 9,172 718 931,5
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11
a) Receivables 49,409 52,648 6,346 10,815
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 6,219 10,711
Receivables from associates 5,633 12,414 1 1
Receivables from affiliates 43,777 40,234 126 103
b) Liabilities 3,518 4,089 25,567 659
Payables to subsidiaries - - 25,567 659
Payables to associates 1,580 809 - -
Payables to affiliates 1,937 3,281
c) Payables to key management 64 - - -

40 Other notes
1. No liens exist on fixed assets.

2. The number of employees on 31.12.2012 was 14 peifsorthe Company and 3,972 persons for the Group
(excluding Joint Ventures), and the respective ren:ibn 31.12.2011 were 16 and 4,054.

(113) / (120)



ELLAKTOR SA

A Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
ELLAKTOR for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

10.

11.

The decision of the Arbitration Court which had best up under Article 33 of the Concession Agragme
related to project “Design, construction, finangimgpmmissioning, maintenance and operation of the
underwater Thessaloniki artery”, was published 6r7¥ 2010, which awarded compensation of €43.7 onilli

to the concession company THERMAIKI ODOS SA, in eththe Group participates with 50%. Following
the aforementioned decision, all receivables frowm Greek State which have been awarded in favour of
THERMAIKI ODOS SA came up to €67.8 million. The Gims interest of €33.9 million as of 30.9.2012 is
posted under “Other receivables”.

On 24.2.2012, upon approval by Canadian courts, rniexger of all the shares of EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS (EGU) by ELDORADO GOLD CORPORATION wasropleted. Earlier, on 21.2.2012, the
Extraordinary General Meeting of each company ammtadhe merger proposal relating to the issue of ne
ELDORADO shares with an exchange ratio of 0.85 ER2DO shares for each EGU share.

By means of decision Ref.No. EM-7876/2012 of theolltg Head of Region, Athens North Sector Regional
Unit, the merger of subsidiaries ELTECH ANEMOS SANEMOS THRAKIS SA, EOLIKA PARKA

ELLADOS TRIZINIA SA, and EOLIKI ZARAKA METAMORFOSISSA, was approved and registered on
30.04.12 (announcements Ref.No. EM-7876/12(bis); /W5, EM-7877 and EM-7874, respectively). The
merger was made by absorption of the second, md fourth companies by the first, pursuant to the
combined provisions of articles 68-70, 72-75, 7d @8 of Codified Law 2190/1920, and articles 1-3 afv

2166/1993, as in force, the Amalgamation BalancseState for each absorbed company being 31.12.2011

By means of decision as of 04.05.12 of the Gende#ting of Shareholders of GAS COMPANY OF THE
SUBURBS SA, it was decided to proceed to the comigatissolution and liquidation.

By means of decision as of 18.05.12 of the Genlegting of shareholders of EFA CONSTRUCTION
PROJECTS, NATURAL GAS APPLICATIONS AND COMMERCIAL GTIVITIES SA, it was decided to
change the company’s name into PANTECHNIKI SA.

On 24.08.12, BIOSAR ENERGY transferred the complnpKl ADERES SA to Yangtze Solar Power
(Luxemburg) International Itd. The transfer pri¢ecsl at €1,800 thousand. ILIAKI ADERES SA operaes
2MW photovoltaic farm (location SAMBALES, Argolidand holds 2 photovoltaic farm generation licences
of 2MW and MW, respectively.

In accordance with Law 4093/2012 on the Approvathef Medium-Term Fiscal Strategy Framework 2013-
2016 — Urgent Implementing Measures of Law 2012taedVledium-Term Fiscal Strategy Framework 2013-
2016", a special solidarity levy is imposed on #ieity producers using RES and CHP plants, catedlan
the price of electricity sales to take place frofh2012 through 30.6.2014, and relates to operaiiagts and
any plants which might be trial commissioned orremied to the grid in the future. The specialdswity
levy for the Group is calculated as a percentagthefprice for electricity sale, before VAT, andrsls at
25% for photovoltaic plants which were trial comsiimed or connected to the grid by 31.12.2011, and
10% for other RES and CHP plants. Said levy forgagod 1.7.2012-31.12.2012 stands at €2,820 timousa
for the Group, and reduced net profit for the peéfdy an equivalent amount. The reduction broughhé&o
profit for the period which are attributable to @atr company equity holders stands at approxim#&2)997
thousand.

On 28.12.2012, the Merger Agreement as of 14.12 21the subsidiaries AKTOR SA, BIOSAR ENERGY
SA and D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA was registered witie Directorate of Registries and IS
Development, Department of Registry/General Registof Commerce Department (Ref.No.
20719/28.12.2012, 20720/28.12.2012, 16315/27.12.261 each of the above companies), under which
agreement the second and third were absorbed byirftecompany, in accordance with the combined
provisions of articles 68(2), 69-77 and 78 of CiedifLaw 2190/1920 and articles 1-5 of Law 2166/1983

in force, which was published in the Government éd&z(Bulletin of SA and LTD companies and General
REgistry of Commerce 14812 and 14847).

By virtue of Decision N0.K2-8899/31-12-2012 of the Ministry of Developmentpnipetitiveness,

Infrastructures, Transport and Networks, the meafethe subsidiary “REDS SA” with its wholly-owned
subsidiary “LOFOS PALLINI SA” by absorption of thatter by the former was approved on 31.12.2012, in
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12.

41

accordance with the combined provisions of artiéi8g) & 69-78 of Codified Law 2190/1920 and adil
1-5 of Law 2166/1993, as in force.

The total fees payable to the Group’s legal auslifor the mandatory audit on the annual finandetiesnents
for FY 2012 stand at €854.9 thousand (2011: €91f®@isand) and for other services at €170.5 thousand
(2011: €49 thousand).

Post balance sheet events

On 23.01.2013 the new tax law 4110/23.01.2013 veasqd. The most important changes are that acgordin
to the new law, the income tax rate for legal egiwill be 26% for FY 2013 and thereafter, and tihe
withheld tax on dividends approved after 1 Jan2&¥4 will be 10% (note 34). The estimated impagtrir
the recalculation of deferred taxes for the Grood the Company will amount to approximately €19,681
thousand and €149 thousand respectively.

In Q1 2013, AKTOR SA completed the refinancing ofleort-term loan of approximately €99 million,
through a long-term syndicated bond loan, while YOAJ EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA also achieved
the long-term refinancing of an existing loan o6€2million.

On 26.03.2013, after the Eurogroup meeting, theisidjent programme for Cyprus as agreed with the
Cypriot authorities was announced. This programime at ensuring the viability of the financial s@cin
Cyprus and restoring the country’s sustainable ldgveent and healthy finances for the years to corhe.
adjustment programme includes the participationlegositors keeping non-guaranteed deposits (oveéd €1
thousand) with Laiki Bank and the Bank of Cyprubeiiefore, this may cause uncertaintes in the gtadua
rebound in Greece also. The total deposits of Gemmppanies with Laiki Bank and the Bank of Cypms i
Cyprus stand at €600 thousand and €1,937 thousapeatively. Also, it should be noted that the Grbas

no exposure to transferable securities (e.g. bondbares) or other financial instruments in tHemeks. The
Group’s turnover from activities in Cyprus standsl®6% of the consolidated turnover for 2012, \uhie

not significant in relation to the Group’s consalied figures.
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E. Figures and Information for the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2012

‘A" ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

General Registry of Commerce No.: 251501000 (SA Reg.No. 874/06/B/86/16)
25 ERMOU STR. - 145 64 KIFISSIA

FIGURES AND INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR FROM 1 JANUARY 2012 TO 31 DECEMBER 2012
(published pursuant to article 135 of Law 2190 on entities preparing annual financial statements, consolidated or separate, under IAS/IFRS)

The following details and information, as these arise from the financial statements, aim at providing general information about the financial standing and results of ELLAKTOR SA and the ELLAKTOR Group of companies. Therefore, we recommend that before proceeding to any investment or other
transaction with the issuer, readers should visit the issuer's website where the financial statements and the certified auditor-accountant report are posted as necessary.

COMPANY DETAILS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (amounts in ,000 EUR)

Company's Registered Office:

Societes Anonyme Reg.No.: 874/06/B/86/16

25 Ermou str., 13th km, Athens-Lamia National Road, 145 64 Kifissia

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

. . T . 01/01- 01/01- 01/01- 01/01-
Competent Authority: Ministry of Economy, Competitiveness & Shipping, General Secretariat For 3U/12/2012  31/12/2011 31/12/2012  31/12/2011
Date of approval of the annual financial statements (from which Commerce, Companies & Creit Divsion Operating activities
summary information was drawn): 28 March 2013 Profit/ (Loss) before taxes 57.919 90.034 (16.279) (0.893)
Certified auditor: Despina Marinou (Reg.No. SOEL 17681) Plus/ less adjustments for:
Audit firm: PriceWaterhouseCoopers SA Depreciation and amortisation 103.226 106.025 1.155 1.167
Impairment of tangible assets, investment properties, joint ventures & financial assets
Type of audit report: Unqualified opinion available for sale 3.484 6.371 - 8
Company's website: www.ellaktor.com Provisions (5.947) 14.030 11 (95)
BoD composition: Foreign exchange differences (2.243) (834) @) -
Executive Members Non-executive Members (Directors) Results (income, expenses, gains and losses) from investing activities (46.508) (44.852) 300 (4.333)
Profit from sale of % in ELDORADO/EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU) &
Anastasios Kallitsantsis, Chairman of the BoD Loukas Giannakoulis, Director Georgios Sossidis adjustment at fair value of the remaining holding (19.091) (261.250) - -
Leonidas Bobolas, CEO Angelos Giokaris, Director loannis Koutras Debit interest and related expenses 95.113 97.010 14.366 11.908
Dimitrios Kallitsantsis, Director Edouardos Sarantopoulos, Director Dimitrios Hatzigrigoriadis (independent member) Impairment provisions and disposals 12.927 77.189 - -
Dimitrios Koutras, Director Georgios Bekiaris (independent member) :J;L:s/:t::s adjustments for changes in working capital accounts or related to operating
Decrease/ (increase) of inventory (14.008) 17.745 - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (amounts in ,000 EU R) Decreasel (increase) of receivables (88.459) 123.901 5.804 (881)
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES (Decrease)/ increase of liabilities (except banks) 145.590 (25.479) (710) (301)
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 Less:
ASSETS Debit interest and related expenses paid (98.383) (105.549) (14.125) (10.302)
Property, plant and equipment 463.622 471.586 3.034 3.224 Taxes paid (29.007) (49.609) (2) (915)
Investment property 171.055 154.272 56.879 57.847 Total Cash Inflows/(Outflows) from Operating Activities (a) 114.613 44.732 (9.391) (13.637)
Intangible assets 1.078.685 1.093.123 - - Investing activities
Other non-current assets 487.818 703.600 975.002 980.633 Sale of % holding in ELDORADO/EGU 112.696 93.898 - -
Inventory 43.385 29.255 - - (Acquisition)/ disposal of subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and other investments 7.931 (119.121) (23) (38)
Trade receivables 605.078 504.749 2.126 5.598 (Placements)/ collections of time deposits over 3 months (101.100) 117.200 - -
Other current assets 1.504.052 1.401.997 6.636 6.390 Purchase of PPE and intangible assets & investment properties (95.547) (124.417) (&) a7
TOTAL ASSETS 4.353.695 4.358.581 1.043.677 1.053.692 Income from sales of tangible and intangible assets and investments
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES in property 7.407 10.850 7 -
Share capital 182.311 182.311 182.311 182.311 Interest received 41.211 37.933 17 869
Other equity 784.828 871.045 605.420 621.798 Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related parties 367 9) (79) 298
Total equity attributable to parent company equity holders (a) 967.140 1.053.357 787.731 804.110 Dividends received 1.394 2.049 46 9.293
Non controlling interests (b) 288.020 261.657 - - Committed deposits (33.886) (13.147) - -
Total equity (c) = (a) + (b) 1.255.159 1.315.013 787.731 804.110 Total inflows/(outflows) from investing activities (b) (59.526) 5.236 (34) 10.404
Long-term borrowings 1.203.629 1.413.643 161.593 159.314 Financing activities
(Acquisition)/Disposal of participation share in subsidiaries from/to non-controlling
Provisions/ Other long-term liabilities 472.730 423.807 1.989 1.230 interests (10.993) 25.600 - -
Short-term borrowings 552.827 477.990 89.721 84.720 Proceeds from borrowings 221.341 479.126 79.400 144.138
Other current liabilities 869.350 728.128 2.643 4.318 Repayment of borrowings (365.904) (543.339) (72.500) (165.000)
Total liabilities (d) 3.098.536 3.043.568 255.946 249.582 Payments of leases (595) (401) - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (c) + (d) 4.353.695 4.358.581 1.043.677 1.053.692 Dividends paid (4.915) (10.687) (175) (4.292)
Tax paid on dividends (2.244) (3.603) - (584)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (amounts in ,000 EUR) Grants received 8.159 17.604 R _
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES Third party participation in share capital increase of subsidiaries 745 563 - -
01/01-31/12/2012  01/01-31/12/2011 01/01-31/12/2012  01/01-31/12/2011 Total inflows/(outflows) from financing activities (c) (154.406) (35.137) 6.725 (25.739)
Turnover 1.232.817 1.204.319 199 694 Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalen  tsfor the period (a) + (b) + (¢ (99.319) 14.831 (2.700) (28.971)
Gross profit 166.931 19.842 39 248 Cash and cash equivalents at year start 806.154 791.323 3.466 32.438
Profit/ (loss) before tax, financing and investing results 114.632 150.757 (1.948) 1.105 Cash and cash equivalents at year end 706.835 806.154 766 3.466
Profit/ (loss) before tax 57.919 90.034 (16.279) (9.893)
Less: Taxes (25.647) (17.153) (98) (489)
Profit/ loss after taxes (A) 32.272 72.881 (16.378) (10.382) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (amounts in ,000 EUR )

Parent company equity holders 11.789 72.783 (16.378) (10.382)

Non controlling interests 20.483 98 - - CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Other comprehensive income/ (expenses) after taxes  (B) (74.955) (927) 1) 195 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Total comprehensive income/ (expenses) after taxes  (A)+(B) (42.683) 71.954 (16.379) (10.188) Total equity at year start (1/1/2012 and 1/1/2011, respectively) 1.315.013 1.239.713 804.110 819.607

Parent company equity holders (55.887) 83.171 (16.379) (10.188) Total comprehensive income after taxes (42.683) 71.954 (16.379) (10.188)

Non controlling interests 13.203 (11.217) - - Change of participation share in subsidiaries (11.483) 14.867 - -

X o Dividends distributed & minority proportion in allocation of subsidiary results (5.687) (11.521) - (5.310)
Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €) 0,0684 0,4221 (0,0950) (0,0602)

Earnings before taxes, financing and investing resu Its, and
depreciation and amortisation 217.858 256.782 (793) 2.271 Total equity at year end (31/12/2012 and 31/12/2011 respectively) 1.255.159 1.315.013 787.731 804.110

Proposed dividend per share - (in €) -

ADDITIONAL FIGURES AND INFORMATION

1. The basic Accounting Principles are same as those followed as of 31.12.2011.

2. The unaudited years of Group companies are detailed in note 9 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2012. The unaudited years with
regard to the parent company ELLAKTOR are 2010-2012. ELLAKTOR, the parent company, has not been tax audited for financial year 2010. It
has been was audited for FY 2011 pursuant to Law 2238/1194 and has obtained a tax compliance certificate from PricewaterhouseCoopers SA

without any adjustments regarding tax expenses and related tax provisions, as these are reflected in the annual financial statements for 2011. The

parent company is currently being audited for FY 2012 (see note 38b to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2012).

3. There are no liens on the fixed assets of the Group and the Company.

4. Litigations or disputes referred to arbitration, as well as pending court or arbritration rulings are not expected to have a material effect on the

financial standing or the operations of the Group or the Company, and, for this reason, no relevant provisions have been formed.

5. Provisions formed in relation to the unaudited years stand at €2,269 thousand for the Group, and at €519 thousand for the Company. Other

provisions (short-term and long-term) for the Group stand at €161,378 thousand (see note 29 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2012).
6. The number of employees on 31.12.2012 was 14 persons forthe Company and 3,972 persons for the Group (excluding Joint Ventures), and the

respective numbers on 31.12.2011 were 16 and 4,054.

7. All manner of transactions (inflows and outflows) in aggregate from year start, as well as receivables and liabilities balances for the Group and
the parent Company at current year end arising from transactions with related parties, as defined in IAS 24, are as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR Group
a) Income 53.301
b) Expenses 32.706
c) Income from dividends -
d) Receivables 49.409
e) Liabilities 3.518
) Key management compensation 7.236

Company

3.670
1.280
18
6.346
25.567
718

8. Eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit which is attributable to parent company shareholders by the weighted average of

ordinary shares over the period, excluding treasury shares.

9. The amounts of items which affected row "Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year (after taxes)" for the Group and the Company are as
follows: For the Group:expenses from Foreign exchange differences €3,309 thousand, expenses from Changes in value of cash available for sale
€41,934 thousand, expenses from Cash flow hedge €29,654 thousand, and other expenses €57 thousand; for the Company: expenses from Foreign
exchange differences €1 thousand.

10. Group companies and joint ventures, together with the country of establishment, the parent Company's percentage of direct or indirect participation
in their share capital, and their consolidation method are detailed in note 9 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2012 and are available onthe
Group's website www.ellaktor.com. The parent Company only holds an indirect stake in the consolidated joint ventures via its subsidiaries. Figures and
information about non-consolidated companies and joint ventures are set outin note 9d to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2012.

11. The following subsidiaries were included for the first time in the consolidated financial statements as of 31.12.2012, but had not been included
30.09.2012, as they were incorporated/acquired in Q4 2012: ILIOSAR SA, SOLAR OLIVE SA (acquisition) and AKTOR D.0.0 SARAJEVO
(incorporation).

Apart from the above companies, the financial statements for the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2011, did not include the following subsidiaries:
DINTORNI ESTABLISHMENT LTD, NEASACO ENTERPRISES LTD, BIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD, COPRI-AKTOR, AKTOR
INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LTD and LEVASHOVO WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT L.L.C (incorporation).

With regard to the interim summary financial report as of 30.09.2012, the following companies are no longer consolidated: a) ADEYP SA, ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI CONSUNTANT ENGINEERS LTD, EXANTAS MARITIME COMPANY and SYROS MARINES SA (dissolution), b) BIOSAR SA and
D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA (absorbed by AKTOR SA) and c) LOFOS PALLINI SA (absorbed by REDS SA).

Apart from the above companies, the following companies are no longer consolidated in relation to the consolidated financial statements for the
previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2011: a) ANEMOS THRAKIS SA, EOLIKA PARKA ELLADOS TRIZINIA SA and EOLIKI ZARAKA METAMORFOSIS SA
(absorbed by ELTECH ANEMOS SA), b) PSITALIA MARITIME COMPANY (sold to third parties in Q1 2012), and ILIAKI ADERES SA (sold to third
parties in Q3 2012).Also, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as of 31.12.2011, EPANA SA and FREEQUEST HOLDINGS LTD are no
longer consolidated using the equity method, as they were sold to third parties in Q2 2012.

A change was made in the consolidation method of company HERHOF-VERWALTUNGS compared to the consolidated financial statements as of
31.12.2011. The company was consolidated as an associate using the equity method; starting from Q2 2012, the company is consolidated using the full
consolidation method as a subsidiary, as a result of the Group's increased stake in said company.

12. Where necessary, the comparative figures have been reclassified to agree with the changes made to the presentation of figures for the current year
(see note 2.29 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2012).

13. The Company’s Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders not to distribute any dividends for FY
2012.

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS
ID Card No. = 434814

THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS
ID Card No. Z 237945

Kifissia, 28 March 2013

THE FINANCIAL MANAGER THE HEAD OF ACCOUNTING DEPT.

ALEXANDROS K. SPILIOTOPOULOS
ID Card No. X 666412

EVANGELOS N. PANOPOULOS
ID Card No. AB 342796
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F. Information under article 10 of Law 3401/2005

During 2012, and in 2013 until 27.03.2013, the Camppublished the following press releases-annaupoés
to the information of investors.

Date & Time Subject

REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC - COMMENTARY ON PUBLICATION -
29/1/2013 15:02 ENGLISH

29/1/2013 13:23 REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC - COMMENTARY ON PUBLICATION

25/1/2013 15:40 ANNOUNCEMENT - ENGLISH

24/1/2013 17:32 ANNOUNCEMENT

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
21/12/2012 11:58 Disclosure of transactions

21/12/2012 11:56 DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

07/12/2012 14:05 WRITE-OFF OF DIVIDEND FOR FY 2006

03/12/2012 09:50 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

03/12/2012 09:48 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/11/2012 12:03 PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 30.09.2012

29/11/2012 18:24 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

29/11/2012 18:20 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

29/11/2012 18:16 Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

29/11/2012 18:13 Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ——
29/11/2012 17:36 PRESS RELEASE

28/11/2012 15:32 Invitation to teleconference

09/10/2012 11:14 Presentation of ELLAKTOR Group in NY- Greek Investment Forum

21/09/2012 12:59 REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC - ENGLISH

20/09/2012 20:04 REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC - ENGLISH

06/09/2012 10:05 Participation in the 7th Annual Greek Roadshow in London

03/09/2012 13:43 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

03/09/2012 13:41 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT
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31/08/2012 14:07

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 30/6/2012

30/08/2012 19:31

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/08/2012 19:29

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/08/2012 19:24

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/08/2012 19:21

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/08/2012 17:47

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
30.06.2012 — PRESS RELEASE

29/08/2012 13:42

INVITATION TO TELECONFERENCE

04/07/2012 11:04

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
Disclosure of transactions

04/07/2012 11:00

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

03/07/2012 11:07

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE GM - ENGLISH

02/07/2012 15:52

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE GM

02/07/2012 12:38

PRESS RELEASE OF ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING - ENGLISH

29/06/2012 15:53

PRESS RELEASE OF ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

15/06/2012 09:41

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO GM- REVISED NOTICE

06/06/2012 17:32

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO GM

01/06/2012 15:43

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

01/06/2012 15:41

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

31/05/2012 12:19

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
PRESENTATION OF RESULTS

31/05/2012 09:18

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

31/05/2012 09:16

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

31/05/2012 09:12

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

31/05/2012 09:09

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/05/2012 17:25

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PRESS
RELEASE

28/05/2012 14:22

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS/REPORTS - INVITATION TO TELECONFERENCE

25/05/2012 11:25

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
Disclosure of transactions

25/05/2012 11:22

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

24/05/2012 12:01

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
Disclosure of transactions
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24/05/2012 11:57

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

23/05/2012 11:30

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
Disclosure of transactions

23/05/2012 11:26

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

22/05/2012 11:06

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
Disclosure of transactions

22/05/2012 11:02

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

30/04/2012 10:57

REPLIES TO LETTERS-QUERIES OF ATHEX/CMC

27/04/2012 17:30

REPLY TO QUESTION OF ATHEX - COMMENTARY ON PUBLICATION

09/04/2012 14:58

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

09/04/2012 14:56

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

02/04/2012 13:41

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/
Presentation of ELLAKTOR Group results for 2011

30/03/2012 19:39

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/03/2012 19:33

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/03/2012 19:26

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/03/2012 19:12

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — PRESS
RELEASE

29/03/2012 17:54

ANNOUNCEMENT OF FINANCIAL LOG 2012

29/03/2012 17:33

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
Invitation to Teleconference

22/03/2012 17:27

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANTS EVENTS — EXECUTION OF A
PROJECT CONTRACT IN BULGARIA

27/01/2012 17:32

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 2007:
Disclosure of transactions

27/01/2012 17:30

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

26/01/2012 12:12

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT

25/01/2012 18:20

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT

16/01/2012 17:24

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT

27/03/2013 15:51

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2013

27/3/2013 14:49

REPLY TO A QUESTION FROM THE CAPITAL MARKER COMMISSION

All the aforementioned documents (Press Releasasodncements) and all other announcements madkeby t
company are available at www.ellaktor.com, sectitdisnouncements” and “Press Releases” under “lrorest
Relations”.

Also, the Annual Financial Statements, the Cediffaiditor-Accountant certificates, and the Direstaeports of

the companies incorporated in the Consolidatedri€iaa Statements of ELLAKTOR SA, are available éttions
“Financial Figures” and “Investor Relations”, amdsubsection “Subsidiaries — Financial Statements”.
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G. Website where the Company and Consolidated Finamal Statements and Subsidiary
Financial Statements are posted

The Company’s annual financial statements on a dalml@ed and individual basis, the Certified Audito
Accountant Report, and the Directors’ reports aaglable at www.ellaktor.com.

The financial statements of consolidated compagiegosted on the internet, at www.ellaktor.com.
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